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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

NOTICE OF MEETING

4 December 2009

Councillors of the Mindarie Regional Local Government are respectfully advised that an
Ordinary Meeting of the Council will be held in the Council Chambers of the Town of
Victoria Park, 99 Shepperton Road, Victoria Park, at 5.30pm on Thursday 10 December
2009.

The business papers pertaining to the meeting follow.

Your attendance is requested.

QL&/\M/L___

KEVIN POYNTON
Chief Executive Officer

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL - MEMBERSHIP

Cr J Bissett (John) Town of Victoria Park
Cr D Boothman (David) City of Stirling

Cr R Butler (Rob) City of Perth

Cr S Cooke (Sharon) City of Stirling

Cr S Farrell (Steed) Town of Vincent

Cr R Fishwick (Russ) City of Joondalup
Cr L Gray JP (Laura) City of Wanneroo
Cr K Hollywood (Kerry) City of Joondalup
Cr D Newton JP (Dot) City of Wanneroo
Cr C MacRae (Corinne) Town of Cambridge
Cr J Robbins (Jason) City of Stirling

Cr B Stewart (Bill) City of Stirling

NB: Although some Councils have nominated alternate members, it is a precursor to any
alternate member acting that a Council carries a specific resolution for each occasion that
the alternate member is to act, referencing Section 51 of the Interpretation Act. The
current Local Government Act does not provide for the appointment of deputy or alternate
members of Regional Councils. The DLGRD is preparing an amendment to rectify this
situation.
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MINUTES OF THE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING OF THE MINDARIE REGIONAL
COUNCIL HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF THE TOWN OF VICTORIA PARK,
99 SHEPPERTON ROAD, VICTORIA PARK WESTERN AUSTRALIA ON 10
DECEMBER 2009 COMMENCING AT 5.30PM.

PRESENT: Chairman Cr R Fishwick
Cr J Bissett
Cr D Boothman
Cr R Butler
Cr S Cooke
Cr S Farrell
Cr L Gray JP
Cr K Hollywood
Cr C MacRae
Cr D Newton JP
Cr J Robbins
Cr B Stewart

APOLOGIES: Nil
ABSENT: Nil

IN ATTENDANCE:
Mindarie Regional Council Officers K F Poynton Chief Executive Officer
K Dhillon
C Gibson
L Nyssen
M Tolson

Member Council Officers E Albrecht
J Bonker
K Caple
C Colyer
G Eves
D Forster
J Giorgi
M Glover
G Hunt
A Kyron
R Lotznicker
J Pritchard
M Tidy
A Vuleta

Consultants M Cave L Gallop
J King J Woodhouse

VISITORS: Nil
MEDIA: Nil

Confirmed by resolution of the Council on 25 February 2010

............................................................... Chairman
PUBLIC: R Sebrechts
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1 OATHS/AFFIRMATIONS OF ALLEGIANCE AND DECLARATIONS OF OFFICE

All Councillors completed a Declaration of Office proforma.

Mr John Woodhouse explained to Councillors the preferential voting process of Chairman
and Deputy Chair for Mindarie Regional Council.

Elections were then conducted by the CEO in accordance with the appropriate legislation,
and the MRC Constitution. The CEO declared appointments as follows:

Chairman : Cr Fishwick
Deputy Chair : Cr Mac Rae

The Chairman and Deputy Chairman then completed their Declaration of Office proforma.

(a) Audit Committee : Chairman, Cr Butler, Cr Boothman
MOTION: (Moved: Cr Stewart Seconded: Cr Hollywood)
(Carried: 12/0)
(b) CEO Performance Review Group : Chairman, Deputy Chair
Cr Gray
MOTION: (Moved: Cr Hollywood Seconded Cr Butler)
(Carried: 12/0)
Cr Bissett
MOTION: (Moved: Cr Stewart Seconded Cr Cooke)
(Carried: 12/0)
(c) MWAC Representative : Cr Bissett
MOTION: (Moved: Cr Stewart Seconded: Cr Booth)
(Carried: 12/0)
(d) RRF Project Advisory Group Representative : Cr Gray
MOTION: (Moved: Cr MacRae Seconded Cr Newton)
(Carried: 12/0)

Notes:
. Appointments of Chairman, and Deputy Chair until 30 June 2010
. All other appointments until Local Government elections - 2011

2 QUESTION TIME

Nil.

‘ 3 ATTENDANCE AND APOLOGIES

Refer Page 3.
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|4 MINUTES

‘ 4.1 ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 15 OCTOBER 2009

MOTION: (Moved: Cr MacRae Seconded: Cr Butler)

The Minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 15 October 2009 have been printed
and circulated to members of the Council.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting of Council held on 15 October
2009 be taken as read, confirmed and the Chairman invited to sigh same as a true

record of the proceedings.

(Carried: 12/0)

5 ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman, Cr Fishwick, thanked fellow Councillors for electing him to the position of
Chair. He welcomed all Councillors — those returning to Mindarie Regional Council and
those new to Mindarie Regional Council.

He made particular mention of the leadership of the former Chairman, Cr Rod Willox.

6 DEPUTATIONS

Nil

7 BUSINESS FROM A PREVIOUS MEETING TREATED AS AN ORDER OF THE
DAY

Nil

8 REPORTS

Declaration of Financial/Conflict of Interest to be recorded prior to dealing with each item.

Disclosure of Financial and Proximity Interests

(@) Members must disclose the nature of their interest in matters to be discussed at
the meeting. (Section 5.6B and 5.65 of the Local Government Act 1995).

(b) Employees must disclose the nature of their interest in reports or advice when
giving the report or advice to the meeting. (Sections 5.70 and 5.71 of the Local
Government Act 1995).

Disclosure of Interest Affecting Impartiality

(a) Members and staff must disclose their interest in matters to be discussed at
the meeting in respect of which the member or employee has given or will
give advice.
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8.1 TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP — 27 NOVEMBER 2009

8.1.1 Tech Com. ltem 1

SUBJECT: BUSINESS REPORT (FOR THE PERIOD 21 SEPTEMBER 2009 - 19
NOVEMBER 2009)

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Mac Rae Seconded: Cr Farrell)
TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive this progress report for the period 21 September 2009 —
19 November 2009 against Annual Business Plan 2009/2010.

Nil discussion.
COUNCIL RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive this progress report for the period 21 September 2009 —
19 November 2009 against Annual Business Plan 2009/2010.

(Carried: 12/0)

8.1.2 Tech Com. Item 2

SUBJECT: RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY UPDATE REPORT (FOR THE
PERIOD 16 OCTOBER 2009 — 10 DECEMBER 2009)

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Newton Seconded: Cr Farrell)
TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION
That Council note the RRF update report.

The CEO was requested to provide electronic copies of the RRFA and User Manual to all
Councillors.

COUNCIL RECOMMENDATION
That Council note the RRF update report.

(Carried: 12/0)

8.1.3 Tech Com. Item 3
SUBJECT: MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL OFFICER FORUMS

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Stewart Seconded: Cr Gray)
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TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

) Endorse consultant recommendations as follows:

That two committees be established, with one to consider
upcoming Mindarie Regional Council Meeting Agendas (the
Agenda Review Committee) and the other committee established
to deal with strategic projects as a planning group (Strategic
Project Group)

That the committee dealing with the agenda review not be
established as a committee of the Council but rather an ad hoc
group be convened by the Mindarie Regional Council CEO

That the committee dealing with the strategic projects be
established as a committee of the Council under s5.8 and s5.9(2)(e)
(employees and other persons) of the Local Government Act 1995

That the Mindarie Regional Council CEO in convening a committee
related to agenda review consider calling it the “Agenda Review
Committee”

That the name of the proposed project planning committee to be
established under s5.8 of the Local Government Act 1995 be called
the Strategic Project Committee

That the membership of the proposed Agenda Review Committee
be determined by the Mindarie Regional Council CEO on the
understanding that each member Council will be invited to have
one representative on the Committee

That the Mindarie Regional Council in establishing the proposed
Strategic Project Committee appoint the Mindarie Regional Council
CEO and the CEO or his/her nominee as the employee
representative from each member Council

That the Mindarie Regional Council in establishing the proposed
Strategic Project Committee appoint a deputy to the Mindarie
Regional Council CEO and member Council CEO of another
employee as deputy representative by position title

That employees, other than the member Council representative or
deputy member Council representative, be permitted to attend
meetings of the Strategic Project Committee to provide specialist
knowledge and support

That the Strategic Project Committee of the Council submit a
report to each Mindarie Regional Council Meeting

That the report of the Strategic Project Committee contain where
appropriate recommendations and progress reports on matters
under consideration by the Strategic Project Committee.

That a Mindarie Regional Council Agenda contain a “stand alone”
agenda item for the receiving and consideration of the minutes
from meetings of the Strategic Project Committee

That the Mindarie Regional Council CEO consider when
establishing the Agenda Review Committee including the following
roles and functions in the terms of reference:
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1) examine all the reports that are to be included on the
MRC Meeting Agenda;

2) review the information provided in each agenda item
to ensure that it is adequate for the MRC to make a
decision;

3) ensure all matters have a recommendation or an

explanation as to why no recommendation has been
submitted; and

4) ensure the recommendations reflect the current
policy and practice of the MRC and member
Councils.

That the Strategic Project Committee prepare for consideration by
the Mindarie Regional Council a draft terms of reference for the
role and function of the Strategic Project Committee, having regard
to the following:

1) lead research and policy direction on key strategic
issues for recommendation to the MRC;

2) address any cross organisational issues that would
benefit from focussed effort and corporate attention
and oversight;

3) address any issues that may have a high social,
environmental and financial impact on the member
Councils or the MRC;

4) consider the reports prepared on strategic projects
and recommend to the MRC an appropriate course
of action; and

5) assist the MRC CEO in developing strategies to
respond to Government requirements as they affect
the business operations of the MRC

(i) Authorise Chief Executive Officer to develop a policy, including Terms of
Reference for the Agenda Review Committee and Strategic Project
Committee, for consideration by Council in February 2010

Nil Discussion.

COUNCIL RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

) Endorse consultant recommendations as follows:

That two committees be established, with one to consider
upcoming Mindarie Regional Council Meeting Agendas (the
Agenda Review Committee) and the other committee established
to deal with strategic projects as a planning group (Strategic
Project Group)

That the committee dealing with the agenda review not be
established as a committee of the Council but rather an ad hoc
group be convened by the Mindarie Regional Council CEO
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° That the committee dealing with the strategic projects be
established as a committee of the Council under s5.8 and s5.9(2)(e)
(employees and other persons) of the Local Government Act 1995

° That the Mindarie Regional Council CEO in convening a committee
related to agenda review consider calling it the “Agenda Review
Committee”

° That the name of the proposed project planning committee to be

established under s5.8 of the Local Government Act 1995 be called
the Strategic Project Committee

° That the membership of the proposed Agenda Review Committee
be determined by the Mindarie Regional Council CEO on the
understanding that each member Council will be invited to have
one representative on the Committee

° That the Mindarie Regional Council in establishing the proposed
Strategic Project Committee appoint the Mindarie Regional Council
CEO and the CEO or his/her nominee as the employee
representative from each member Council

° That the Mindarie Regional Council in establishing the proposed
Strategic Project Committee appoint a deputy to the Mindarie
Regional Council CEO and member Council CEO of another
employee as deputy representative by position title

° That employees, other than the member Council representative or
deputy member Council representative, be permitted to attend
meetings of the Strategic Project Committee to provide specialist
knowledge and support

° That the Strategic Project Committee of the Council submit a
report to each Mindarie Regional Council Meeting

° That the report of the Strategic Project Committee contain where
appropriate recommendations and progress reports on matters
under consideration by the Strategic Project Committee.

° That a Mindarie Regional Council Agenda contain a “stand alone”
agenda item for the receiving and consideration of the minutes
from meetings of the Strategic Project Committee

° That the Mindarie Regional Council CEO consider when
establishing the Agenda Review Committee including the following
roles and functions in the terms of reference:

1) examine all the reports that are to be included on the
MRC Meeting Agenda;

2) review the information provided in each agenda item
to ensure that it is adequate for the MRC to make a
decision;

3) ensure all matters have a recommendation or an

explanation as to why no recommendation has been
submitted; and
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4) ensure the recommendations reflect the current
policy and practice of the MRC and member
Councils.
° That the Strategic Project Committee prepare for consideration by

the Mindarie Regional Council a draft terms of reference for the
role and function of the Strategic Project Committee, having regard
to the following:

1) lead research and policy direction on key strategic
issues for recommendation to the MRC;

2) address any cross organisational issues that would
benefit from focussed effort and corporate attention
and oversight;

3) address any issues that may have a high social,
environmental and financial impact on the member
Councils or the MRC;

4) consider the reports prepared on strategic projects
and recommend to the MRC an appropriate course
of action; and

5) assist the MRC CEO in developing strategies to
respond to Government requirements as they affect
the business operations of the MRC

(i) Authorise Chief Executive Officer to develop a policy, including Terms of
Reference for the Agenda Review Committee and Strategic Project
Committee, for consideration by Council in February 2010

(Carried: 12/0)

8.1.4 Tech Com. Item 4

SUBJECT: ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS AND FEE SETTING MECHANISM
MOTION: (Moved: Cr MacRae Seconded: Cr Butler)

TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

That Council approves the Draft Budget Process and the Fee Setting Mechanism
detailed under “Budget Process and Fee Setting Mechanism” above.

The CEO advised, in response to a question, that the process of establishment of a
revised pricing model was dependent on Member Councils establishing positions on
various options, prior to the next workshop.

Some Councils have yet to advise the completion of this work to establish a position,
although advice has been received to the effect that this work will be completed by end
December 20009.
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COUNCIL RECOMMENDATION

That Council approves the Draft Budget Process and the Fee Setting Mechanism
detailed under “Budget Process and Fee Setting Mechanism” above.

(Carried: 12/0)

8.1.5 Tech Com. Item 5

SUBJECT: MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL RESOURCE RECOVERY STAGE
TWO OUTLINE PLAN

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Hollywood Seconded: Cr Boothman)
TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

) Approve the proposed ‘way ahead’ with respect to resource recovery
related issues, namely progress of tasks as follows:

o Authorisation for CEO MRC to seek formal advice from City of
Stirling on that Council’s ‘post Atlas’ plans, including plans for
ongoing commitment to a co-mingled collection system

° Completion of the regional integrated waste plan

o Confirmation of the State Government’s waste strategy, including
the approach to Advanced Waste Treatment (AWT)

. Confirmation of MRC policy regarding exemptions, following
completion of the revised pricing model

(i) Review progress on these tasks in April 2010, with a view to potentially
revising the ‘wait and see’ approach for Resource Recovery Stage Two

The Mover and Seconder agreed to a Council decision to amend (i) as follows:

. Final dot point
- Delete : Confirmation

- Insert : Development
COUNCIL RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

) Approve the proposed ‘way ahead’ with respect to resource recovery
related issues, namely progress of tasks as follows:

o Authorisation for CEO MRC to seek formal advice from City of
Stirling on that Council’s ‘post Atlas’ plans, including plans for
ongoing commitment to a co-mingled collection system

° Completion of the regional integrated waste plan
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° Confirmation of the State Government’'s waste strategy, including
the approach to Advanced Waste Treatment (AWT)

. Development of MRC policy regarding exemptions, following
completion of the revised pricing model

(i) Review progress on these tasks in April 2010, with a view to potentially
revising the ‘wait and see’ approach for Resource Recovery Stage Two

(Carried: 12/0)

8.1.6 Tech Com. Item 6

SUBJECT: ANNUAL REPORT 2008/2009

MOTION: (Moved: Cr MacRae Seconded: Cr Butler)
TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

0) note the Auditors Report (provisional to Mindarie Regional Council’s
signing the Statement of Declaration on the Financial Statements)

(i) adopt the Annual Report, including The Financial Statements for Year
Ended 30 June 2009

(iii)  authorise the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer to sign the Statement
of Declaration on behalf of Mindarie Regional Council

Cr Stewart queried why the audit statement was unsigned. Mr Dhillon advised that, in his
view, the appropriate process was as follows:

° Council to adopt the Annual Report and sign the Statement of Declaration
° Auditor to sign Auditors Report
Recommendation was put to the vote and lost.
MOTION: (Moved: Cr Bissett Seconded: Cr Boothman)
The CEO is to deal with this matter under delegated authority prior to the next
Ordinary Council Meeting by ensuring that the Auditor signs the Audit report prior

to the Annual Report being submitted to the Minister.

(Carried: 12/0)

8.1.7 Tech Com. Iltem 7

SUBJECT: CONSTRUCTION OF AN EXTENSION TO EXISTING WORKSHOP
BUILDING AT TAMALA PARK WASTE MANAGEMENT FACILITY

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Bissett Seconded: Cr Newton)
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TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

) accept the tender (Tender No. 13/102) offered by Devco Builders of
$329,991.35 excluding GST for the construction of the workshop
extension at Tamala Park

(i) approve an additional expenditure of $100,000.00 for construction of the
workshop extension
The CEO tabled Supplementary Information to Item 8.1.7 with revised recommendation.

REVISED RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

0) accept the tender (Tender No. 13/102) offered by Devco Builders of
$329,991.35 excluding GST for the construction of the workshop
extension at Tamala Park subject to demonstration by Devco Builders of
a satisfactory financial position

(i) approve an additional expenditure of $100,000.00 for construction of the
workshop extension

(iii) approve allocation of additional funds of $100,000.00 which will be
funded from savings expected on “Excavation — Phase 3 Stage 2"

Council, upon a suggestion from Cr Bissett, requested the CEO to investigate alternatives
to the title ‘Tamala Park Waste Management Facility’ in light of the potential for confusion
with Tamala Park Regional Council.

Cr Stewart indicated support for the bid by Western Australian Building Group.
COUNCIL RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

0) accept the tender (Tender No. 13/102) offered by Devco Builders of
$329,991.35 excluding GST for the construction of the workshop
extension at Tamala Park subject to demonstration by Devco Builders of
a satisfactory financial position

(i) approve an additional expenditure of $100,000.00 for construction of the
workshop extension

(iii)  approve allocation of additional funds of $100,000.00 which will be
funded from savings expected on “Excavation — Phase 3 Stage 2~

(Voting Requirement — Absolute Majority)

(Carried: 9/3)
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8.2 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

8.2.1 File No: FIN/5-02

SUBJECT: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 30
SEPTEMBER 2009 AND 31 OCTOBER 2009

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Stewart Seconded: Cr Robbins)
MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That the Financial Statements as attached at Attachment One and Two for the
months ended 30 September 2009 and 31 October 2009 be noted.

Nil Discussion.
COUNCIL RECOMMENDATION

That the Financial Statements as attached at Attachment One and Two for the
months ended 30 September 2009 and 31 October 2009 be noted.

(Carried: 12/0)

8.2.2 File No: FIN/5-02

SUBJECT: LIST OF PAYMENTS MADE FOR THE MONTHS ENDED 30
SEPTEMBER 2009 AND 31 OCTOBER 2009

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Robbins Seconded: Cr Newton)

MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That Council endorse the list of payments made, as per the delegation made to the
Chief Executive Officer, for the months ended 30 September 2009 and 31 October
20009.

Nil Discussion.

COUNCIL RECOMMENDATION

That Council endorse the list of payments made, as per the delegation made to the
Chief Executive Officer, for the months ended 30 September 2009 and 31 October
2009.

(Carried: 12/0)
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8.2.3 File No: COR/1

SUBJECT: DELEGATED AUTHORITY : 2009/2010 CHRISTMAS NEW YEAR
RECESS

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Farrell Seconded: Cr Stewart)

MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That in accordance with Section 5.42 of the Local Government Act 1995, the Chief
Executive Officer be delegated authority by an ABSOLUTE MAJORITY to exercise
the powers and duties of the Council, other than those referred to in Section 5.43 of
the Act from 10 December 2009 to 25 February 2010:

0] in relation to general matters, where the recommendation is for an item of
business of a general nature, a majority of all Elected Members are in
agreement

(i) a report summarising the items of business dealt with by delegated
authority is submitted for information to the Council meeting to be held
on 25 February 2010

Nil Discussion.

COUNCIL RECOMMENDATION

That in accordance with Section 5.42 of the Local Government Act 1995, the Chief
Executive Officer be delegated authority by an ABSOLUTE MAJORITY to exercise

the powers and duties of the Council, other than those referred to in Section 5.43 of
the Act from 10 December 2009 to 25 February 2010:

) in relation to general matters, where the recommendation is for an item of
business of a general nature, a majority of all Elected Members are in
agreement

(i) a report summarising the items of business dealt with by delegated
authority is submitted for information to the Council meeting to be held
on 25 February 2010
VOTING REQUIREMENT - Absolute Majority

(Carried: 12/0)

Closure of meeting to the Public.
MOTION: (Moved: Cr MacRae Seconded: Cr Butler)

That in accordance with Local Government Act 1995 Section 5.23 (2) (c) and (d) the
meeting be closed to the public.

(Carried: 12/0)
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8.2.4 File No: WST/119

SUBJECT: RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY - ISSUES RE REDUCED
AVAILABILITY OF PROCESSING CAPABILITY

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Butler Seconded: Cr Gray)
MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

0] approves the Rectification Plan at Attachment One to this Item , as a
basis for development of a “ Standstill Agreement”

(i) authorises the Chief Executive Officer to work with BioVision 2020 Pty
Ltd to develop a "Standstill Agreement” for the implementation of the
Rectification Plan referred to in this Item, and to refer the Standstill
Agreement back to Council for approval

Suspension of Standing Orders
MOTION: (Moved: Cr MacRae Seconded Cr Gray)

That Standing Orders be suspended so as to allow general discussion on all
matters associated with Item 8.2.4.

(Carried: 12/0)

The Chairman advised Council that the Supplementary Information dossier associated
with this Item would be included with the Minutes.

Mr John King, former Project Director for the Resource Recovery Facility (RRF), from JK
Consultants, who had been appointed to assist the administration on this matter,
addressed the meeting. Key points were as follows:

. The process being followed for dealing with the Forced Outage is in
accordance with the Resource Recovery Facility Agreement (RRFA)

. A major principle followed in establishing the RRFA as a Build Own and
Operate contract was that Mindarie Regional Council should not have greater
liability than it would have if it was the owner of the RRF (such as would have
happened if a Design and Construct model was adopted for the project)

. Insurance is a primary mechanism for covering the costs of BioVision (BV) and
the Mindarie Regional Council associated with the Forced Outage. Claims will
be made against either the Industrial and Special Risk Insurance or the
Professional Indemnity Insurance, depending on the outcome of a detailed
investigation currently being undertaken by the insurers

. Details of the Fee payable to BioVision by Mindarie Regional Council during
the Forced Outage were provided, together with the potential total liability of
Mindarie Regional Council under various scenarios that could eventuate as a
result of Mindarie Regional Council agreeing to the Rectification Plan
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The means available to BioVision to meet its obligation to reimburse Mindarie
Regional Council for payments made in accordance with the Rectification Plan
were identified as insurance payments received, damages claimed by
BioVision from the subcontractor(s) responsible for the fault, additional equity
provided by the BioVision shareholders and from the Development Security of
$2,500,000 being held by Mindarie Regional Council

The options available to the Mindarie Regional Council in the event that
BioVision fails to restore the RRF to an Availability of greater that 92% and
other grounds for Mindarie Regional Council to call a Default were explained,
together with the likely implications of Mindarie Regional Council calling a
Default under these circumstances

Mr King, the CEO and Ms Melanie Cave then answered Councillor questions.

Councillors agreed that careful consideration needed to be given to any alteration to the
Council’s risk, as established in the RRFA, in any further work.

Resumption of Standing Orders.

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Boothman  Seconded: Cr Bissett)

(Carried: 12/0)

Adjournment.

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Stewart Seconded: Cr MacRae)

That, in accordance with Standing Orders Clause 16.1, the meeting be adjourned for
five minutes. (8.10pm)

(Carried: 12/0)

Re-commencement of meeting.

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Butler Seconded: Cr Cooke)

That, in accordance with Standing Orders Clause 16.1, the meeting be re-
commenced. (8.15pm)

(Carried: 12/0)

The Mover and Seconder agreed to two (2) amendments from Council to the
Recommendation as follows:

At (i)

- Delete ‘approve’ insert ‘endorse’
- Delete the comma after “item”
At (ii)

- Delete ‘for approval’

Cr Farrell requested that his suggestion for inclusion of a reason for the amendment be

recorded.
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Council requested that the structure of any future meeting on this matter include a briefing
from BioVision, as a pre-curser to the meeting.

AMENDED MOTION AS FOLLOWS PUT TO THE VOTE

That Council:

@) endorse the Rectification Plan at Attachment One to this Item as a basis
for development of a “ Standstill Agreement”

(i) authorises the Chief Executive Officer to work with BioVision 2020 Pty
Ltd to develop a "Standstill Agreement" for the implementation of the
Rectification Plan referred to in this Item, and to refer the Standstill
Agreement back to Council

(Carried: 12/0)

Meeting Open to the Public

MOTION: (Moved: Cr Stewart Seconded: Cr Butler)
That the meeting now be opened to the public.

(Carried: 12/0)

Council took Motion 8.2.4 as read.

9 NOTICE OF MOTION FOR CONSIDERATION AT THE FOLLOWING MEETING ‘

Nil

10 GENERAL BUSINESS - SEE NOTE (1) ‘

Letter of Appreciation — Cr Willox

Council resolved that a letter of appreciation be forwarded to Cr Willox.

MOTION: (Moved: Cr MacRae Seconded: Cr Gray)

(Carried: 12/0)

Chairman Closing Remarks

The Chairman thanked outgoing Town of Victoria Park CEO, Mr John Bonker, for his
support to Mindarie Regional Council, and welcomed Mr Arthur Kyron, incoming CEO,

Town of Victoria Park.

The Chairman issued best wishes for the festive season to all.




MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 22
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009
11 NEXT MEETING
11.1  Ordinary Council Meeting
° 25 February 2010
. 5.30pm
° City of Joondalup
\ 12 CLOSURE - MEETING DECLARED CLOSED AT 8.40PM
Notes
Q) Under this item, members have the opportunity to:
@) make a statement providing information related to the Council's
business;
(b) to ask a question relevant to the Council's business.

Under this item a member shall not raise any matter directly related to any

other item on the agenda and shall

consideration at another meeting.

not foreshadow any motion for
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Managing waste and recovering resources responsibly
Constituent Members: Cities of Perth, Joondalup, Stirling, and Wanneroo.
Towns of Cambridge, Victoria Park and Vincent
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP

NOTICE OF MEETING

20 November 2009

Members are advised that a meeting of the Technical Working Group of the Mindarie
Regional Council will be held in the Committee Room of the Town of Cambridge, 1

Bold Park Drive, Floreat, Friday 27 November 2009 commencing at 8.30am.

Items for consideration are attached.

Yours faithfully

QL&/\M/L___

KEVIN POYNTON
Chief Executive Officer

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009

MEMBERS: K Poynton Chief Executive Officer Mindarie
E Albrecht Manager Waste Fleet Stirling
K Caple Director City Businesses Wanneroo
C Colyer Director Infrastructure Cambridge
K Dhillon Finance & Business Services Manager  Mindarie
G Eves Director Infrastructure Management Stirling
D Forster Director Business Units Perth
M Glover Director Infrastructure Services Joondalup
E Herne Director Corp Resource Management Stirling
R Lotznicker  Director Technical Services Vincent
P Hoar Coordinator Waste Mgt Joondalup
S Spinks Manager City Business Wanneroo
M Tolson Operations Manager Mindarie
A Vuleta Director Technical Services Vic Park
| Watkins Projects Manager Mindarie

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP OF THE

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL HELD IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM OF THE

TOWN OF CAMBRIDGE, 1 BOLD PARK DRIVE, FLOREAT, ON 27 NOVEMBER

2009 AT 8.30AM.

PRESENT:

Members Messrs

VISITORS

APOLOGIES

K Poynton

Ed Albrecht
Karen Caple
Chris Colyer
Kalwant Dhillon
Doug Forster
Martyn Glover
Peter Hoar
Mike Tolson
Anthony Vuleta
lan Watkins
Paul Winton

Lynda Nyssen
Cathy Gibson

Shane Spinks

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Not applicable

Chairman

Operations Manager
Director City Businesses
Director Infrastructure
Chief Financial Officer
Director of Business Units
Director Infrastructure Sves
Coordinator Waste Mgt
Operations Manager
Director Technical Services
Project Manager

Business Manager Waste Ops

Stirling
Wanneroo
Cambridge
Mindarie
Perth
Joondalup
Joondalup
Mindarie
Vic Park
Mindarie
Wanneroo

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009
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ITEM 1 BUSINESS REPORT
(for the period 21 September 2009 — 19 November 2009)

File No: COR/8 (D/09/6026)
Attachment(s): Nil.

Author: Kevin Poynton

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with current information on all business
activities.

BACKGROUND

The Council at its meeting held in October 2008, resolved, inter alia, to approve a revised
Strategic Plan. Council, at Special Council Meeting 28 May 2009, approved Annual
Business Plan 2009/2010. This business report is now presented in a format consistent
with both the Strategic Plan and approved Annual Business Plan. New information since
the last report is provided in ‘bold italics’.

DETAIL
OBJECTIVE ONE — WASTE MANAGEMENT

Objective One is ‘to manage waste in a way that
. Maximises resource recovery
. Minimises waste to landfill
in order to minimise environmental impact.
Existing Waste Processing Projects — Tamala Park
This table describes business activity for the period 1 July 2009 — 30 September
2009 for member councils, and others, in terms of tonnage (received for

processing) and revenue associated with this tonnage.

Information related to landfill and recycling activity at Tamala Park to end October 2009 is
presented in the table below.

TONNAGE REVENUE
Target %| Actual % Target % | Actual %
Landfill Total Budget | Yearto | Yearto Budget Yearto | Yearto
RRF Actual Actual Tonnage 2009/10 Date Date Actual G/L $ 2009/10 Date Date
MEMBERS
Processable
Cambridge 2,177.57 701.25 2,878.82 9,500 | 33.33%| 30.30%] $ 346,898 | $ 1,144,800 33.33%| 30.30%
Joondalup 8,686.16 8,703.57 17,389.73 55,941 | 33.33%| 31.09%]$ 2,095,464 |% 6,740,900 33.33%]| 31.09%
Perth 4,828.38 4,828.38 16,000 | 33.33%| 30.18%] $ 581,820 | $ 1,928,000 33.33%]| 30.18%
Stirling - 4,253.22 4,253.22 12,000 | 33.33%| 35.44%| $ 512,513 | $ 1,446,000 33.33%]| 35.44%
Victoria Park 2,021.80 1,914.84 3,936.64 13,964 | 33.33%| 28.19%] $ 473,427 | $ 1,682,700 33.33%| 28.13%
Vincent - 3,998.15 3,998.15 13,742 | 33.33%| 29.09%| $ 480,738 | $ 1,655,900 33.33%]| 29.03%
Wanneroo 7,274.98 7,738.19 15,013.17 49,300 | 33.33%| 30.45%] $ 1,808,080 | $ 5,940,700 33.33%]| 30.44%
Sub Total
Processable 20,160.51 32,137.60 52,298.11 | 170,447 | 33.33%| 30.68%] $ 6,298,940 | $ 20,539,000 33.33%| 30.67%)
MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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TONNAGE REVENUE
Target %| Actual % Target % | Actual %
Landfill Total Budget | Yearto | Yearto Budget Yearto | Yearto
RRF Actual Actual Tonnage 2009/10 Date Date Actual G/L $ 2009/10 Date Date

Non-
Processable
Cambridge 846.19 846.19 1,200 | 33.33%] 70.52%] $ 56,176 | $ 79,200 33.33%]| 70.93%
Joondalup 3,777.67 3,777.67 10,261 | 33.33%| 36.82%] $ 249,444 | $ 677,200 33.33%| 36.83%
Perth 45.25 45.25 37| 33.33%| 122.30%] $ 2,987 | $ 2,400 33.33%]| 124.46%
Stirling 31,633.89 31,633.89 105,000 | 33.33%| 30.13%] $ 2,084,279 |$ 6,930,000 33.33%]| 30.08%
Victoria Park 519.24 519.24 689 | 33.33%| 75.36%] $ 34,269 | $ 45,500 33.33%]| 75.32%
Vincent 115.07 115.07 484 33.33% 23.77%] $ 7595 | $ 31,900 33.33%| 23.81%
Wanneroo 11,185.63 11,185.63 24,700 33.33%| 45.29%] $ 735,040 | $ 1,630,200 33.33%| 45.09%
Sub Total Non-
Processable 48,122.94 48,122.94 142,371 33.33%) 33.80% $ 3,169,790 | $ 9,396,400 33.33%| 33.73%
Sita BioVision
Residues 7,294.12 7,294.12 30,000 33.33% 24.31%] $ 481,412 | $ 1,980,000 33.33%| 24.31%
SUB TOTAL
MEMBERS 20,160.51 87,554.60 | 107,715.17 | 342,818 | 33.33%| 31.4299 $ 9,950,142 | $ 31,915400| 33.33% 31.18%
CASUALS
South Perth 121.34 121.34 3,090 | 33.33% 3.93%] $ 13237 | $ 337,100 33.33% 3.93%
Trade & Cash 13,102.40 13,102.40 46,000 | 33.33% 2848%f $ 1,477,948 |$ 5,018,140 33.33%]| 29.45%
Sub Total
Casuals 13,223.74 13,223.74 49,090 33.33| 26.94% $ 1,491,185|$ 5,355,240 33.33%| 27.85%
TOTAL 20,160.51 100,778.40 120,938.91 | 391,908 33.33% 30.86% $ 11,441,327 | $ 37,270,640 33.33 30.70%
RECYCLING
Recycling
Centre sales $ 209,119 | $ 350,000 33% 60%

Current information in relation to Tamala Park landfill and recycling activities is as follows:

The issue of resolution of a contractual dispute with a service provider,
formerly known as JJ MacDonald, has progressed to the point where
MRC legal advice is that it is now appropriate for MRC to negotiate with
the current owner of JJ MacDonald. Legal fees this far expended by MRC
total approx $30,000

Utilisation of Tamala Park limestone has continued both onsite and via
exploitation of offsite activities

An investigation into the characteristics of future gas management plan is in
progress with a view to the conduct of a tender exercise in early 2010. Some
options for this include:

- MRC to purchase a service and manage the products i.e. electricity,
credits

- MRC to establish a ‘revenue sharing’ arrangement with the
contractor

Key tasks associated with the groundwater management plan for 2009/2010
are as follows:

- Groundwater sampling, analysis and reporting

- The annual ground water monitoring report, including the results
from 18 new bores was presented to DEC in March 2009

- Specialist groundwater monitoring/management  consultancy
services will be required for planning any groundwater remediation
requirements in FY 09/10 that may arise as a result of the leachate
plume being detected to the north of Stage |

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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- Additional 3 borehole clusters are likely to be required to aid the
investigation of the above item

° Access to Federal Government funds to establish a ‘used - fridge
management capability’ as an internal rather external service, at a cost saving
of $29,000 per annum, has commenced. These funds are being used to train
two staff on ‘used fridge management’

Existing Waste Processing Projects — Neerabup

Progress against a project to establish and operate a Resource Recovery Facility (RRF)
at Neerabup in is contained in a separate report within this agenda.

OBJECTIVE TWO — WASTE PROCESSING OPPORTUNITIES

Objective Two is to identify, evaluate and implement opportunities for expansion of the
waste management business.

An Integrated Regional Plan
Tasks associated with the development of an integrated regional plan have been
progressed as follows:

. Discussions with Member Council officers

. Preparation of Background Paper
The Hyder team will brief the TWG on progress at 1030hrs 27 November 2009.
Additional Processing Facilities
Tasks associated with the establishment of additional processing facilities for operation by

Mindarie Regional Council have been progressed as follows:

. Balcatta Transfer Station (City of Stirling)

- Investigation into Mindarie Regional Council operation of Household
Hazardous Waste (HHW) component completed

- Alternative approach re issue of incentive scheme or other cost
sharing models for HHW collection, is currently under investigation
by City of Stirling

. ‘Son of Tamala’ Landfill

- Issue of a Call for Submission (CFS) package, and receipt of five
responses

- Concurrently, work is progressing to investigate land for potential
purchase for use as a landfill, if required

OBJECTIVE THREE — INDUSTRY LEADERSHIP AND ADVOCACY

Objective Three is to identify and promote industry-wide initiatives for improvements to
waste/resource management, particularly in relation to waste minimisation and resource
recovery.

SWMP Projects

Progress on current SWMP projects during the reporting period has been as follows:

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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1. 2 Bin Trial

This project seeks to address the problem of “which bin to put it in” and optimise
household and non residential collection systems so that they are ready for future
improvements in recycling recovery and processes. The object of this project is to develop
and trial a collection system that is optimised to suit future organic and inert waste
recycling for all manner of premises, without the introduction of a new “class of waste”
stream and the expenses associated with the supply of bins, trucks, staff and
environmental emissions associated with collection vehicles.

Participating Local Government — Town of Cambridge

Current Progress:

° Consultation with Town of Cambridge officers

° Approval from council to conduct trial within Town of Cambridge

° Trial to be conducted February and March 2010

. Capital purchase quotations finalised

. Bin delivery and collection quotations finalised

° Liaison with Perth Waste and Cleanaway for collection and audit
processes

. Newsletter article in local newspapers

. Finalised public consultation and marketing process

2. Bulky Waste Characterisation

This project is designed to identify the makeup of the various waste streams, identify their
sources (where they represent a single significant source). This information will then allow
the Mindarie Regional Council and the City of Stirling to redesign their respective transfer
stations including charging policy and materials handling procedures to increase the
amount of waste diverted from landfill.

Participating Local Governments: City of Stirling, Mindarie Regional Council

Current Progress:
e Audits undertaken at Balcatta Recycling Centre 31 August — 21 September
e Audits undertaken at Tamala Park 29 September — 23 October
e Draft report completed

o Final report early December

3. Best practice bulky hard waste and garden waste verge collections

This project seeks to identify best practice recovery of bulky hard and green waste from
households for the purpose of reuse and recycling.

During the project staff will audit materials placed on verges for collection, interview
officers from member councils and collection contractors and collate detail on all member
council collection services.

The information gathered will be used to:

. Optimise and standardise the delivery of Local Government bulky waste verge
collections
MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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. Increase the amount of waste diverted from landfill by means of reuse and
recycled

. Maximise the convenience of recycling and disposing of bulky waste to the
region’s householders

° Reduce to the community the financial and environmental costs associated
with the disposal of bulky waste

. Produce best practice recommendations for verge collection processes

° Increasing the collection of reusable goods by charities ahead of the hard

waste collection cycle
Participating Local Governments: All member councils

Current Progress:

e |Interviews conducted with all member councils to collate collection
processes

e On street audits conducted of bulk waste in six local authorities (no
collections in Vincent during project period)

e |Interviews conducted with collection contractors

e Met with charity groups to discuss extending involvement throughout region

4. Events Recycling

The results of these investigations will be used to develop new waste management
models and procedures for use throughout the region. The waste management models
will also make allowance for the different sizes of events.

Participating Local Governments: City of Perth, consultation with all member councils

Current Progress:

. Research to identify current “best practice” waste capture and recycling
at events and public places

. Developed draft Guide to WasteWise Community Events in conjunction
with WMRC officers

. Guide distributed to WESEG members for review

5. Council Infrastructure Works Waste Recycling

This project is designed to bring together all of the Engineering and Parks operational staff
with responsibility for the recycling and disposal of solid waste generated through the
construction and maintenance of Local Government infrastructure with a focus on
pavement, drainage and parks operations.

The object is to identify best infrastructure waste avoidance and recycling practice
and then seek to adopt the best practices through all member Local Governments
through copying techniques and sharing contracts.

Participating Local Governments: All member councils

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Current Progress:

. Interviews conducted with all member councils on current infrastructure
waste management processes and volumes

° Inspected all depot areas and storage amenities

° Interviews conducted with inert waste recyclers

. Final report mid December

6. Reducing the Direct Environmental Impact from the Transport of
Collected Recycling and Waste Materials for Present and Future
Scenarios

The objective of this project is to identify what opportunities exist and what steps need to
be taken to optimise the collection and transport of materials for the purposes of recycling
and disposal.

The project is intended to identify the optimum travelling distances for kerbside collection
vehicles in terms of premises serviced, fuels consumed and emissions to the atmosphere
from when a truck is filled to capacity to the point of discharge and;
What benefits can be derived from:

. Locating processing facilities closer to the point of collection and;

. Using transfer stations to sort and move waste to more remote recycling

facilities and landfill sites.

Participating Local Governments: All member councils, collection contractors

Current progress
. Data collection from member councils
° Engaged Hyder Consulting to undertake study as part of Regional Plan
development

Partnership Activities

Key partnership activities during the reporting period have been as follows:
. Municipal Waste Advisory Council (MWAC)

- Continued liaison with State Government representatives on an
improved approach for management of the landfill levy issue,
particularly in relation to the usage of levy funds

- Development of a submission on the draft State Government
waste strategy

o Forum of Regional Councils (FORC)

- Further discussions with the Waste Authority WA on opportunities
for partnership

- Progress of a plan to obtain amendments to proposed State
Government changes to WARR legislation, particularly in relation to
the use of levy funds

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Waste Management Association of WA (WMAA(WA))

- Development of project plans for utilisation of $100k from
Waste Authority

Industry Training Council (EUPA)

- Review and revision of waste industry training needs, using levy
funds. This work is in progress

CEO MRC represented WALGA at an Environmental Forum in Sydney on 12
November 2009, where he delivered a presentation on AWT projects in WA.

OBJECTIVE FOUR — COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Objective Four is to engage with the community in the Mindarie region in order to promote
behaviour consistent with the region’s operational plans for waste/resource management.

Marketing Activities

Key marketing activities progressed during the reporting period were as follows:

The Marketing and Waste Education Plan was endorsed by Council at its
October meeting

The upgraded website went live on September 10
Compilation of the Annual Report commenced
Work continued on upgrading of the Style Guide

Monthly community update advertisements in Community Newspapers
appeared in September, October and November

MRC participated in the West Australian National Recycling Week
supplement (early November)

Education Activities

Key education activities progressed during the reporting period were as follows:

The official opening on 22 September of the new Education Centre on
site at Tamala Park, which will be utilised for tour group visits and for
school teacher professional development

The premiere of a new DVD produced by kids for kids about the need to
reduce, reuse and recycle, which will be used in waste education activities

Completion of the final HHW Disposal Day in the 09 program at Town of
Vincent on 19 September

Support of member councils with the metropolitan-wide battery
collection program. Battery bins are now in place in each Council area

The Perth and Victoria Park 09/10 fridge calendars are currently in
production

Successful completion of our fourth Earth Carers training course, bringing the
total number of Earth Carers to more than 100

Participation in a joint Regional Council display on waste management at
the Perth Royal Show

Installation of display panels in the viewing platform at the RRF

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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. Planning commencing on fit-out of displays at the RRF Visitors Centre

o Tours are continuing to have good levels of interest and mobile display
activity has increased in line with the summer event schedules of
member Councils

° Support provided to City of Perth for the Big Aussie Swap Party in
Forrest Place on November 10

. Participation in a segment on the Garden Gurus (Channel 9) to reinforce
the reduce, reuse, recycle message

Community Engagement Advisory Group (CEAG) Activities

Key CEAG activities progressed during the reporting period were as follows:

. Continuation of regular CEAG meetings

o CEAG has reviewed its Roles & Functions Statement

° CEAG is in the process of reviewing performance against the CPA
. The CEAG vacancy has been filled

OBJECTIVE FIVE — ORGANISATIONAL MANAGEMENT

Objective Five is to maintain excellent management of the Mindarie Regional Council
organisation.

Business Systems

Key projects associated with this port folio are as follows:

. Investigation of improved budget preparation process, in conjunction with
member councils

. Investigation of personnel resourcing mix, prior to Budget 2010/2011

. Investigation of improved TWG governance model for Council December 2009

. Progress of a project to develop a revised pricing model to a milestone of

‘officer consideration — next draft’, scheduled for December 2009
Member Council Partnerships

Key activities progressed as follows:

° Liaison Tamala Park Regional Council (TPRC) re buffer and associated issues,
with a plan to develop a joint submission for TPRC/MRC consideration

On the matter of Town of Cambridge exemption request, CEO Mindarie Regional Council
and CEO Town of Cambridge have agreed that this matter is best left until investigations
on a revised pricing model and an ‘exemption approach’ are completed. This is now
estimated to be end 2009.

Establishment Agreement

The administration has received correspondence from Town of Vincent advising a position
of support for ‘one vote — one Council’, as distinct to the existing model, in any future draft
Establishment Agreement. This position is at odds with other Council positions on this
matter i.e. retention of status quo.

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009 ITEM 8.1.1



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 35
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

Attendees at an Officer Business Workshop on 13 August 2009 agreed ‘way ahead’ as
follows:

. Finalisation of the draft Establishment Agreement, for MRC endorsement and
subsequent consideration by member councils

° Development of a suite of potential Constitution amendments, for consideration
by MRC and member councils in the event of non-agreement to the draft
Establishment Agreement

The Establishment Agreement work is closely linked to the pricing model, and will occur in
synchronisation with this pricing model work. The estimated timeframe for presentation of
a final draft Establishment Agreement to Council will depend on pricing model progress.
CONSULTATION

Not applicable

STATUTORY ENVIRONMENT

Not applicable

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

This progress report reflects progress against approved activities associated with the
Council’'s annual Business Plan.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

These activities are conducted within the context of the approved Council budget for any
particular financial year.

COMMENT

Council business is currently being conducted within the framework of the Annual
Business Plan.

MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive this progress report for the period 21 September 2009 —
19 November 2009 against Annual Business Plan 2009/2010.

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MEETING - 27 NOVEMBER 2009
CEO MRC provided additional information as follows:

. HHW

- Exploration in progress to find ways to assist City of Stirling with
regards increased resourcing due to increased demand

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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. Battery Collection
- Options to improve collection systems under investigation
- Includes collection bin modifications and idea re ‘Bissett bin’
o Millipedes
- Proliferation at Kinross from Tamala Park causing concerns
- For investigation with Kinross Residents Association
° Pricing Policy
- Further action dependent on finalisation of City of Stirling position
with respect to options

CEO MRC accepted a task to investigate groundwater contamination remediation
responsibilities.

TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive this progress report for the period 21 September 2009 —
19 November 2009 against Annual Business Plan 2009/2010.
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ITEM 2 RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY UPDATE REPORT (for the
period 16 October 2009 - 10 December 2009)

File No: WST/13-02 (D/09/6038)
Attachment(s): Nil

Author: lan Watkins

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with information relating to the final
development, commissioning and operation of the Stage 1 Resource Recovery Facility
(RRF) at Neerabup. New information since the last report is provided in ‘bold italics’.
BACKGROUND

Stage 1 RRF contract was signed with BioVision 2020 on 23 November 2007.
Construction commenced on 27 February 2008 with Practical Completion being achieved
on 15 July 2009.

The 20 year contract operational period commenced on 16 July 2009.

o Contract framework includes:
o Contractor - BioVision 2020 (Ownership - 70% Westscheme; 30% SITA)
. Build Own and Operate (BOO) contract structure
. 100,000 tonnes per year
. 20 year contract
° Contract commencement date 16 July 2009
o Contract end date 15 July 2029
DETAIL
Operations

As at 16 July 2009 facility operations commenced.

Typical operational conditions include:

. MRC to deliver 400 tonnes per day - Monday to Friday

. BioVision to process 285 tonnes per day - seven days per week

o 40,000 kilolitres of water consumed per year

o 3 MW hours of power consumed

° Approximately 40,000 tonnes of compost produced annually

° Approximately 30,000 tonnes of residue sent to Tamala Park annually
. 1,200 tonnes of ferrous metal recycled annually
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Composter Structural Issues

Council is being regularly updated on events surrounding the composter structural
issues. Regular updates will continue to be provided to Council as and when new
information comes available.

On 25 November 2009 the MRC received the Draft Rectification Plan from BioVision
and at the Council site visit and briefing on 3 December there will be an update
provided of current events.

Waste Delivery

Under normal operating circumstances, the Cities of Joondalup and Wanneroo and
the Towns of Victoria Park and Cambridge deliver waste to the RRF. This has
temporarily ceased due to the composter structural issues.

The City of Perth and the Town of Vincent have opted to continue to dispose of waste at
the Tamala Park landfill.

The RRF will typically accept approximately 2,000 tonnes of waste per week. With the
large volume disposal pit available, it is not critical that the precise daily tonnage be
achieved each day, so long as the weekly average is approximately 2,000 tonnes per
week.

Graph No. 1 provides detail of the Actual Tonnage of waste delivered in comparison to
Scheduled Tonnage.

Graph No. 1 — Actual vs. Scheduled Tonnage
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During August and the early part of September, the RRF was operating at below
optimum capacity. This was due to a number of relatively minor construction
“punch-list” items that were being progressively resolved following the completion
of commissioning.
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On 16 September 2009 a crack was identified in composter number 1. On 22
September 2009 SITA shut down composter 1. Following extensive investigation,
additional cracks were identified in both composters. On 27 October 2009
composter 2 was also shut down resulting in the complete cessation of waste
delivery to the facility.

Key Performance Indicators

KPI's as per the RRFA are as follows:

KPI Target | Contract | August | Sept Oct
Year to
Date
Environmental Standard - Number 0 0 0 0 0
of Breaches
Waste Diversion 71.4% 60.0% | 64.5% | 50.2% | 36.5%
Quality of Compost - Number of 0 0 4 3 3
Breaches
Quantity of Recyclable Packaging 0.8% 0.77% | 0.88% | 0.77% | 1.06%
Health and Safety - Number of 0 0 0 0 0
LTI's
Community Acceptance - Number 0 0 0 1 2
of Complaints *
Project Culture - PAG Chairperson 100 100 100 100 100
Score

* Numerous complaints relating to a single event are treated as a single complaint.

KPI's relating to waste type (Waste Diversion, Quality of Compost, and Quantity of
Recyclable Packaging) are able to be adjusted so far as the variability in the quality
impacts a particular KPI. Consequently; there will be no fee abatement for failure to
achieve the related KPI's for the first year of operation, until waste variability has been
finalised.

Waste diversion

Waste diversion can only be truly assessed once the facility has been operated in a
steady state for a few months. The facility has yet to reach this level of reliability
due to the operational issues being experienced over the past few months.

It is anticipated that once the composters have been repaired, the facility will
rapidly achieve a steady state of operation allowing the waste diversion KPI to be
more accurately assessed.

Compost Quality

Up to 31 October 2009, 3,458 of compost had been produced.

To date compost has been delivered to the following locations:

. Turf farms
o Olive farms
. Custom Compost facilities north and south of Neerabup for blending, storage

blending and then distribution to customers
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Recently, the MRC Project Manager visited both of the Custom Compost storage
and blending operations including having discussions with the Environmental
Health Officer at the Shire of Gingin and the DEC.

The outcome of the visits was that the current management of the BioVision
compost was not likely to cause environmental problems.

Within the RRFA there is a maximum lead level of 250mg/kg. 15 tests have been carried
out on the compost, of these, 13 tests have lead levels above the stipulated 250mg/kg.
The maximum test result has been 380mg/kg.

Within the Australian Standard (AS 4454) the maximum lead level is 420mg/kg for C2
restricted use compost. Although the lead levels are above the RRFA maximum levels, all
tests have been below the C2 (restricted use) maximum level and hence still able to be
used for certain applications.

The elevated lead levels are a function of the incoming waste stream. The MRC needs to
concentrate on community education to remove electronic waste, batteries etc from the
waste stream. Further effort will be required to identify what components of the waste
stream are contributing to the heavy metals in the compost.

Quantity of Recyclables

The quantity of metals recycled to date has reached 0.77% of total tonnes processed.
This is close to the target of 0.8%.

Air Quality

The City of Wanneroo waste delivery truck drivers have raised concern with
regards to the quality of the air (odour and dust) within the receive hall.

BioVision/SITA has been advised of their concerns and following a number of
conversations, SITA is currently undertaking an investigation of the air quality
within the receive hall as well as throughout the facility.

It is anticipated that the air quality monitoring results will be available prior to the
composters being repaired, and the subsequent need for waste deliveries to
recommence. Following the receipt of the air quality monitoring results
discussions will be held with the City of Wanneroo and the waste delivery truck
drivers to address relevant concerns.

Community Complaints

As a result of a few complaints from the Wanneroo Golf Club, the MRC and SITA
visited the club president (22/10/09) to discuss options to improve communications
and reporting of odour complaints. It was agreed that the golf course groundstaff
would report odours to SITA and be used as the “barometer” to assess levels of
odour. A proforma complaints form was also provided to the golf course.

Following the meeting there have been a number complaints received from the golf
course. This information is being used by SITA to evaluate the impact of the RRF
on the golf course.

Members of the golf course management team have recently visited the RRF and
confirmed that the smell that is being experienced on the course is that odour
emanating from the biofilters.
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On 18 November 2009 the DEC Licensing Officer and Air Quality Branch visited the
RRF. SITA advised that the DEC visit “went very well”. The MRC Project Manager
confirmed with the DEC that they were happy with the visit to the RRF.

Secondly Waste Treatment Facility Working Group

The SWTF WG last met on 30 October 2009. Notes from the meeting have previously
been circulated to Council.

With the development of the RRF (stage 1) complete and now in the operational
stage, the usefulness of the SWTF WG is currently being assessed. It is likely that
with the development of Stage 2 RRF, a revised strategic group will be formed to
guide strategic development within the region.

Project Advisory Group

MRC Representatives: BioVision Representatives:
Elected Member to be advised Emmanuel Vivant

Kevin Poynton (CEO) Marco Fontana Giusti
Eddy Albrecht (City of Stirling) Nial Stock

MRC Alternates: BioVision Alternates:
Elected Member to be advised Casimiro da Fonseca
Kalwant Dhillon Craig Barker

Chris Colyer (Town of Cambridge) Kevin Wilson

Following recent Local Government elections it is necessary that the elected
members of the PAG be nominated.

The PAG recently met on 4 November 2009.

Items dealt with by the group include:

. Composter Structural Issues

. Rectification Plan

. Power Outage Plan

. Compost Marketing Plan

. Liquidated Damages Accounts
. Waste Diversion Target

o Residue Processing

° Odour Complaints

MRC Infrastructure Development

Building Works

BCL Construction was awarded the building works (Contract 13/95). This work is
currently being undertaken on site with completion anticipated in late November.

Groundwater Bores

Bore 1 and Bore 2 have been installed and plumbed into the permanent underground
services to provide supply water to the RRF and MRC facilities.
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Weighbridge

The automated weighbridge has been functioning since the commencement of
commissioning (21 April 2009).

As previously reported, there have been reliability problems with the unmanned
weighbridge. The majority of these have been progressively resolved; however reliability
continues to be an issue. Typical problems include:

. Wireless communications between Neerabup and Tamala Park — breaks in
communications

. Power supply — RRF power trips; computers being unplugged by tradesmen
related to building works

° Vehicles on weighbridge — driving onto weighbridge before other vehicle has
driven off the other side; vehicles moving before transaction has been
concluded

° Swipe cards — vehicles swapping swipe cards; lost swipe cards being

cancelled and then being found and then reused
A temporary weighbridge operator has been put in the weighbridge office to monitor
weighing procedures to resolve issues as they occur. It is hoped that, in time, once most
issues have been resolved, the weighbridge operator can be removed and the
weighbridge operated in an unmanned condition as originally anticipated.
MRC Future Site Works

On completion of the building works, the following activities are yet to be completed:

. Landscaping — compost trial plots
o Visitors Centre fitout
. Develop site tour program

Landscaping

The majority of the landscaping on site has recently been completed involving the planting
of native shrubs and trees within the MRC area and along the road frontage. Native
species have been selected to blend in with the Bush Forever area to the east of the site.
In addition, trial plots will be developed adjacent to the Visitors Centre where trails will be
conducted using RRF compost in different quantities to grow a range of plants as a
demonstration of the benefit of using compost.

Community Engagement

The MRC community engagement program continues to be managed via the Community
Engagement and Advisory Group (CEAG).

The group last met on 21 October 2009 at the Joondalup Resort. Issues discussed at the
meeting included:

. Project update

. Reviewing the CEAG Roles and Function

° Reviewing the Chairperson Roles and Functions
. Replacement member for Bob Stidwell
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. Community monitoring program

J Odour Management

RRF Agreement (RRFA)

The RRFA is the contract that exists between the MRC and BioVision and besides
typical contractual requirements, covers aspects relating to:

. Obligations of both the MRC and the contractor
. The Project Advisory Group

° Development security and performance guarantees
. Project agreements and lease

o Pre-Construction activities

o Construction activities

. Initial Operating Period (2 years)

° Operation and Maintenance

. Delivery and Treatment of Processable Waste
. Products and Residue

. Compost Marketing and Sales

. Variations and agreed variations

° Charges for performance of service

. Monitoring and records

. Financing

. Gate fee model

. Limits and Liabilities

. Insurance

o Default

. Force Majeure

. MRC Steps in rights

. Future Stages

° Miscellaneous provisions

Copies of the RRFA are available if so required by Councillors.
CONSULTATION

Consultation has occurred with the following groups:

o Cardno

. Freehills

. Woodhouse Legal
o BioVision2020
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. SITA

o Member Councils
STATUTORY ENVIRONMENT
Nil
POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Nil
STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

The development and operation of resource recovery in the region is consistent with the
following Principals described in Strategic Plan 2009 — 2029:

. Community Focus
o Innovation

. Partnership

o Leadership

In particular, Stage 1 RRF conforms with Objective 1 — Waste Management to maximise
resource recovery and minimise waste to landfill in order to minimize environmental
impact.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Project Operational Summary below sets out the 2009/10 facility operating budget
against which operational costs are tracked throughout the year.

Project Operational Costs Summary for 2009/10 Financial Year — As at 18 November
2009

Item Budget Expenditure % Spent
(to 18/11/9)
Capital Expenses
2008/2009 Carryover $ 829,000 $382,259 46.1%
Total Capital Expenditure | $ 829,000 $382,259 46.1%
Operating Expenses
Consultancy
Specialist Project Consultants $ 50,000 $19,017 38.0%
Legal Consultants $ 50,000 $500 1.0%
Financial Consultants $ 10,000 $ - 0.0%
Insurance Consultants $ 10,000 $ - 0.0%
Project/Contract Management $ 80,000 $35,188 44.0%
Temporary Staff $ 10,000 $ - 0.0%
Sub-total $ 210,000 $54,704 26.0%
MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Item Budget Expenditure % Spent
(to 18/11/9)
Facility Operations
Building Maintenance $ 10,000 $2,433 24.3%
Building Cleaning $ 5,000 $ - 0.0%
Building Security $ 20,000 $ - 0.0%
Fencing and Gate Maintenance $ 5,000 $ - 0.0%
Road Maintenance $ 5,000 $ - 0.0%
Bore and Pipework Maintenance $ 5,000 $ - 0.0%
Environmental Monitoring $ 20,000 $ - 0.0%
Community Monitoring Program $ 45,000 $20,489 45.5%
Landscape and Gardens $ 30,000 $12,201 40.7%
MRC Admin Charge $ 100,000 $33,333 33.3%
Utilities $ 10,000 $ - 0.0%
Council Rates $ 27,000 $12,862 47.6%
Compost Disposal $ 545,000 $41,580 7.6%
Tipping Fees $14,600,000 $3,521,919 24.1%
Sub-Total $15,427,000 $3,644,817 23.6%
Total Operating Expenses $15,637,000 $4,081,780 26.1%

MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the RRF update report.

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MEETING - 27 NOVEMBER 2009

Kevin Poynton updated the group on the current composter structural issues. Next
meeting with the legal team to be held on Monday 30" September with a briefing paper to
be prepared for discussion on Thursday 3™ December at the RRF Induction for
Councillors. Formal consideration will take place on 10" December at the Ordinary

Council meeting.

The Group recommended minor changes to the report as follows:

. Amend Waste Delivery section to reflect that waste deliveries to the RRF had
ceased as a result of the composter structural issues and take a cautionary
standpoint when describing the availability of the RRF

. The City of Wanneroo requested a section being added relating to the City’s
waste delivery truck drivers concerns relating air quality in the delivery hall

TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the RRF update report.
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ITEM 3 MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL OFFICER FORUMS
File No: GOV/29 (D/09/6041)
Attachment(s): 1. BHW Consulting Report

Author: Kevin Poynton

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with recommendations for the revision of
officer forums for consideration of Mindarie Regional Council (MRC) business issues.

BACKGROUND

Currently, MRC has one officer forum — titled Technical Working Group (TWG) — which
considers all business items prior to their inclusion in agendas for Ordinary Council
Meetings (OCM). Non-business, or governance items have been submitted to these OCM
as CEO Items, without TWG consideration.

Council has previously endorsed an approach from the CEO, and supported by Member
Council officers, for a review of this model. Independent industry specialists, Mr Bruce
Wittber and Ms Helen Westcott, have undertaken an investigative project on this matter.
This work has involved discussions with the CEO, other administrative officers and
Member Council officers.

The report from these independent specialists is at Attachment One to this Item. Council
consideration is now appropriate.

DETAIL

The independent work from Mr Wittber and Ms Westcott contains a number of
recommendations as follows:

1. That two committees be established, with one to consider upcoming Mindarie
Regional Council Meeting Agendas (the Agenda Review Committee) and the other
committee established to deal with strategic projects as a planning group
(Strategic Project Group).

2. That the committee dealing with the agenda review not be established as a
committee of the Council but rather an ad hoc group be convened by the Mindarie
Regional Council CEO.

3. That the committee dealing with the strategic projects be established as a
committee of the Council under s5.8 and s5.9(2)(e) (employees and other
persons) of the Local Government Act 1995.

4. That the Mindarie Regional Council CEO in convening a committee related to
agenda review consider calling it the “Agenda Review Committee”.

5. That the name of the proposed project planning committee to be established under
s5.8 of the Local Government Act 1995 be called the Strategic Project Committee.

6. That the membership of the proposed Agenda Review Committee be determined
by the Mindarie Regional Council CEO on the understanding that each member
Council will be invited to have one representative on the Committee.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

That the Mindarie Regional Council in establishing the proposed Strategic Project
Committee appoint the Mindarie Regional Council CEO and the CEO or his/her
nominee as the employee representative from each member Council.

That the Mindarie Regional Council in establishing the proposed Strategic Project
Committee appoint a deputy to the Mindarie Regional Council CEO and member
Council CEO of another employee as deputy representative by position title.

That employees, other than the member Council representative or deputy member
Council representative, be permitted to attend meetings of the Strategic Project
Committee to provide specialist knowledge and support.

That the Strategic Project Committee of the Council submit a report to each
Mindarie Regional Council Meeting.

That the report of the Strategic Project Committee contain where appropriate
recommendations and progress reports on matters under consideration by the
Strategic Project Committee.

That a Mindarie Regional Council Agenda contain a “stand alone” agenda item for
the receiving and consideration of the minutes from meetings of the Strategic
Project Committee.

That the Mindarie Regional Council CEO consider when establishing the Agenda
Review Committee including the following roles and functions in the terms of
reference:

a) examine all the reports that are to be included on the MRC Meeting
Agenda;

b) review the information provided in each agenda item to ensure that it is
adequate for the MRC to make a decision;

c) ensure all matters have a recommendation or an explanation as to why no
recommendation has been submitted; and

d) ensure the recommendations reflect the current policy and practice of the
MRC and member Councils.

That the Strategic Project Committee prepare for consideration by the Mindarie
Regional Council a draft terms of reference for the role and function of the
Strategic Project Committee, having regard to the following:

a) lead research and policy direction on key strategic issues for
recommendation to the MRC;

b) address any cross organisational issues that would benefit from focussed
effort and corporate attention and oversight;

c) address any issues that may have a high social, environmental and
financial impact on the member Councils or the MRC;

d) consider the reports prepared on strategic projects and recommend to the
MRC an appropriate course of action; and

e) assist the MRC CEO in developing strategies to respond to Government
requirements as they affect the business operations of the MRC.

Consideration is now appropriate.

CONSULTATION

TWG Officers
MRC Administration
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STATUTORY ENVIRONMENT
The revised model is consistent with good governance.

The revised model is likely to have some implications for the revision of the MRC Standing
Orders Local Law.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

No applicable.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable.

MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

For TWG Discussion.

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MEETING — 27 NOVEMBER 2009
The Group agreed as follows:

° Agenda Review Committee (ARC)
- Need for flexibility with regard member council representation
- Consultant recommendations supported

. Strategic Project Committee (SPC)
- Consultant recommendations supported

- Need for flexibility with regard member council representation
The Group agreed ‘way ahead’ as follows:

o Council consideration of consultant recommendations
. Preparation of MRC policy on Officer Forums, including Terms of Reference

The Group noted that a key success factor would be the allocation of projects to the SPC.
The Group further agreed on a broad scheduling rule ie. SPC in the alternative months to
ARC

TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

That Council:
0) Endorse consultant recommendations as follows:

o That two committees be established, with one to consider
upcoming Mindarie Regional Council Meeting Agendas (the
Agenda Review Committee) and the other committee established
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to deal with strategic projects as a planning group (Strategic
Project Group)

. That the committee dealing with the agenda review not be
established as a committee of the Council but rather an ad hoc
group be convened by the Mindarie Regional Council CEO

° That the committee dealing with the strategic projects be
established as a committee of the Council under s5.8 and s5.9(2)(e)
(employees and other persons) of the Local Government Act 1995

o That the Mindarie Regional Council CEO in convening a committee
related to agenda review consider calling it the “Agenda Review
Committee”

° That the name of the proposed project planning committee to be

established under s5.8 of the Local Government Act 1995 be called
the Strategic Project Committee

° That the membership of the proposed Agenda Review Committee
be determined by the Mindarie Regional Council CEO on the
understanding that each member Council will be invited to have
one representative on the Committee

° That the Mindarie Regional Council in establishing the proposed
Strategic Project Committee appoint the Mindarie Regional Council
CEO and the CEO or his/her nominee as the employee
representative from each member Council

° That the Mindarie Regional Council in establishing the proposed
Strategic Project Committee appoint a deputy to the Mindarie
Regional Council CEO and member Council CEO of another
employee as deputy representative by position title

o That employees, other than the member Council representative or
deputy member Council representative, be permitted to attend
meetings of the Strategic Project Committee to provide specialist
knowledge and support

o That the Strategic Project Committee of the Council submit a
report to each Mindarie Regional Council Meeting

. That the report of the Strategic Project Committee contain where
appropriate recommendations and progress reports on matters
under consideration by the Strategic Project Committee.

° That a Mindarie Regional Council Agenda contain a “stand alone”
agenda item for the receiving and consideration of the minutes
from meetings of the Strategic Project Committee

o That the Mindarie Regional Council CEO consider when
establishing the Agenda Review Committee including the following
roles and functions in the terms of reference:

1) examine all the reports that are to be included on the
MRC Meeting Agenda;

2) review the information provided in each agenda item
to ensure that it is adequate for the MRC to make a
decision;
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3) ensure all matters have a recommendation or an
explanation as to why no recommendation has been
submitted; and

4) ensure the recommendations reflect the current
policy and practice of the MRC and member
Councils.

. That the Strategic Project Committee prepare for consideration by

the Mindarie Regional Council a draft terms of reference for the
role and function of the Strategic Project Committee, having regard
to the following:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

lead research and policy direction on key strategic
issues for recommendation to the MRC;

address any cross organisational issues that would
benefit from focussed effort and corporate attention
and oversight;

address any issues that may have a high social,
environmental and financial impact on the member
Councils or the MRC;

consider the reports prepared on strategic projects
and recommend to the MRC an appropriate course
of action; and

assist the MRC CEO in developing strategies to
respond to Government requirements as they affect
the business operations of the MRC

(i) Authorise Chief Executive Officer to develop a policy, including Terms of
Reference for the Agenda Review Committee and Strategic Project
Committee, for consideration by Council in February 2010
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ATTACHMENT ONE

TOITEM 3

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP

27 NOVEMBER 2009

BHW CONSULTING REPORT
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Consulting

DISCUSSION PAPER
DEVELOPMENT OF COMMITTEES
MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
NOVEMBER 2009
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Disclaimer

This report has been prepared by BHW Consulting for the Mindarie Regional
Council.

Although every care has been taken in preparing and producing this document, no
responsibility is accepted by BHW Consulting for any loss or damage suffered at
any time by any parties as a result of any error, omission or inaccuracy, whether
caused by negligence or any cause whatsoever.

BHW Consulting 2
November 2009

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009 ITEM 8.1.3



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 54
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

CONTENTS

DISCIAIMET ...ttt b et b bt e bt r bt n s 2
L] (0TI YRS 4
RECOMMENUALIONS .....vcvieie ettt ettt 5
INEFOTUCTION ..ottt 7
[T Tod (0 011 ] o SRS 8
COMMITEEE STIUCTUIE........coiiiitiiecees et 9
COMMITEEE NBIME ...ttt bbb bbb bbbttt b bt 12
Committee MEmMBDEISNIP .....coiiiiiiie e 13
Committee Reporting FrameWOrK ... ..ot 16
Role and FUNCtion 0f COMMITIEE .........ccoiiiiiiiiieice s 17
Committee Relationships to Mindarie Regional Council Standing Orders ...........ccccceeeienene 19
BHW Consulting 3
November 2009

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009 ITEM 8.1.3



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 55
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

Glossary

The Act Local Government Act 1995

BHW BHW Consulting

CEO Chief Executive Officer

MRC Mindarie Regional Council

Standing Orders Mindarie Regional Council Standing Orders Local Law

2000
Working Group Technical Working Group
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Recommendations

1.

10.

11.

That two committees be established, with one to consider upcoming
Mindarie Regional Council Meeting Agendas (the Agenda Review
Committee) and the other committee established to deal with strategic
projects as a planning group (Strategic Project Group).

That the committee dealing with the agenda review not be established
as a committee of the Council but rather an ad hoc group be convened
by the Mindarie Regional Council CEO.

That the committee dealing with the strategic projects be established
as a committee of the Council under s5.8 and s5.9(2)(e) (employees
and other persons) of the Local Government Act 1995.

That the Mindarie Regional Council CEO in convening a committee
related to agenda review consider calling it the “Agenda Review
Committee”.

That the name of the proposed project planning committee to be
established under s5.8 of the Local Government Act 1995 be called the
Strategic Project Committee.

That the membership of the proposed Agenda Review Committee be
determined by the Mindarie Regional Council CEO on the
understanding that each member Council will be invited to have one
representative on the Committee.

That the Mindarie Regional Council in establishing the proposed
Strategic Project Committee appoint the Mindarie Regional Council
CEO and the CEO or his/her nominee as the employee representative
from each member Council.

That the Mindarie Regional Council in establishing the proposed
Strategic Project Committee appoint a deputy to the Mindarie
Regional Council CEO and member Council CEO of another
employee as deputy representative by position title.

That employees, other than the member Council representative or
deputy member Council representative, be permitted to attend
meetings of the Strategic Project Committee to provide specialist
knowledge and support.

That the Strategic Project Committee of the Council submit a report
to each Mindarie Regional Council Meeting.

That the report of the Strategic Project Committee contain where
appropriate recommendations and progress reports on matters under
consideration by the Strategic Project Committee.
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12. That a Mindarie Regional Council Agenda contain a “stand alone”
agenda item for the receiving and consideration of the minutes from
meetings of the Strategic Project Committee.

13. That the Mindarie Regional Council CEO consider when establishing
the Agenda Review Committee including the following roles and
functions in the terms of reference:

a) examine all the reports that are to be included on the MRC
Meeting Agenda;

b) review the information provided in each agenda item to ensure
that it is adequate for the MRC to make a decision;

c) ensure all matters have a recommendation or an explanation
as to why no recommendation has been submitted; and

d) ensure the recommendations reflect the current policy and
practice of the MRC and member Councils.

14. That the Strategic Project Committee prepare for consideration by
the Mindarie Regional Council a draft terms of reference for the role
and function of the Strategic Project Committee, having regard to the
following:

a) lead research and policy direction on key strategic issues for
recommendation to the MRC,;

b) address any cross organisational issues that would benefit from
focussed effort and corporate attention and oversight;

c) address any issues that may have a high social, environmental
and financial impact on the member Councils or the MRC;

d) consider the reports prepared on strategic projects and
recommend to the MRC an appropriate course of action; and

e) assist the MRC CEO in developing strategies to respond to
Government requirements as they affect the business
operations of the MRC.
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Introduction

BHW Consulting (BHW) was engaged by the Mindarie Regional Council (MRC)
to develop a Discussion Paper to review the current operation of the Technical
Working Group (Working Group). The purpose of this review is to determine the
most appropriate:

BHW Consulting

Committee structure;

Committee name;

Committee membership;

Committee reporting framework;

Role and function of committee; and

Whether the committee is to be covered by the MRC Standing Orders.
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Background

The Mindarie Regional Council (MRC) was formed in 1989 under the provisions
of the then Local Government Act 1960 and currently operates Part 3 Division 4
of the Local Government Act 1995 (the Act). The MRC’s member Councils are
the Town of Cambridge, City of Joondalup, City of Perth, City of Stirling, Town
of Victoria Park, Town of Vincent and City of Wanneroo.

The MRC Vision is setting and achieving the standard for minimising the impact
of waste on the environment, for the benefit of the Region's community.

The MRC Mission is to deliver an effective, efficient and environmentally sound
waste processing service that leads to sustainable waste management practices
through a “reduce, reuse and recycle” philosophy.

The primary area of activity of the MRC is waste management including disposal
to landfill, green waste treatment, recycling and research/development.

In July 2009 BHW met with the MRC’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Kevin
Poynton, to discuss the preparation of a Discussion Paper that would provide a
review of the structure, membership, reporting framework of the Working Group
and to determine whether the Working Group should be incorporated as a
standing committee within the MRC’s Standing Orders.

To assist in the preparation of the Discussion Paper, Bruce Wittber from BHW
met with the Working Group at its meeting on Friday 21 August 2009.

BHW has subsequently met with MRC’s CEO on a number of occasions to
review the details of the requirements for the Discussion Paper.

At the MRC Meeting on 15 October 2009 the Council discussed the issues
associated with the formation of a Strategic Advisory Group and noted the plan
for a Discussion Paper to be provided at a subsequent meeting.

BHW Consulting 8
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Committee Structure

The role and function of the current Working Group revolves around a mixture of
reviewing the upcoming MRC Meeting Agenda (as an agenda settlement group)
and undertaking research and investigation into the development of strategic
projects for presentation to the MRC. The Working Group is not a formal
committee of the MRC appointed under the Act.

The question that arises in considering the most appropriate committee structure
for the MRC for the future is whether there should be two committees, one to
consider upcoming MRC Meeting Agenda and the other to deal exclusively with
strategic projects as a planning group. For ease of description in the Discussion
Paper one committee will be referred to as the Agenda Review Committee and the
other as the Strategic Projects Committee.

Before determining the most effective committee structure under the Act it is
appropriate to examine the function of each of the two committees as previously
described.

The Agenda Review Committee would have a single function, that of reviewing
the contents of the agenda for the next MRC Meeting. Put simply, this committee
would be the means for agenda settlement to take place. Once reviewed, the
document will be developed into the final agenda that is submitted to the MRC
Meeting.

It is the view of BHW that there is no need for the Agenda Review Committee to
be established under the Act as it will in fact not have any reporting functions to
the MRC.

The Strategic Projects Committee, however, will be actively involved in planning,
researching and developing strategic projects for consideration by the MRC.

BHW is of the view that the Strategic Projects Committee should be established
under the Act.

BHW understands that the membership of the current Working Group is of one
employee representative from each member Council, with the Working Group
generally meeting every two months. The Working Group is chaired by the
MRC’s CEO with support from other MRC staff.

It is also understood that the Working Group has to date not been formally
established under s5.8 of the Act and as such has no formal structure within the
context of the MRC’s operations.

If the Working Party is changed to the Strategic Project Committee, based on the
advice of BHW, it should be a formal committee within the structure of the MRC
and have direct reporting rights to a Council meeting. Such a committee would be
established under s5.8 of the Act.
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S5.8 of the Act provides that a local government can establish by absolute
majority decision committees of three or more persons “to assist the Council and
exercise the powers and discharge the duties of the local government that can be
delegated to committees”.

The only type of committee that could be established based on the membership of
the current Working Group, which is a representative of each member Council,
who are not employees of the MRC and the MRC CEO is under s5.9(2)(e) of the
Act a committee comprising employees and other persons.

It is also understood by BHW that in the past the Working Party or similar
committee may have been chaired by a member of the MRC Council and during
the discussions at the MRC Council Meeting on 15 October 2009 this matter was
also raised as a possible consideration.

If the MRC determined that this would be an appropriate approach the committee
would need to be established under s5.9(2)(c) of the Act which allows for council
members, employees and other persons.

BHW is of the view that as the broad functions and role of the proposed Strategic
Project Committee are of a technical nature it does not lend itself to having an
involvement by an elected member. It is important to appreciate there is a distinct
difference in the roles of a technical group and the elected members within the
local government structure. Technical expertise is required to develop proposals,
prepare reports and submit a detailed analysis to the Council, which then has the
responsibility to determine a position based on the advice provided.

BHW believes that the role of the committee would be more effective if it was
established as one comprising of employees and other persons only.

The establishment and subsequent appointment to the committee under s5.9(2)(c)
or s5.9(2)(e) of the Act would mean that the current method of operation may
require some modification.. For example, the MRC CEO could not automatically
be appointed the presiding member as there needs to be an election for presiding
member and deputy presiding member from amongst the members (s5.12(1) of
the Act). Likewise, if an elected member was appointed to the committee that
person would not necessarily be the presiding member.

Whilst it is not the intent of this Discussion Paper to canvas who should or should
not be elected as the presiding member for the Strategic Project Committee, it be
noted that that other members of the committee, given their particular role with
their employer may not have the opportunity to commit the necessary time to the
role.
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Recommendations

1. That two committees be established, with one to consider upcoming
Mindarie Regional Council Meeting Agendas (the Agenda Review
Committee) and the other committee established to deal with strategic
projects as a planning group (Strategic Project Group).

2. That the committee dealing with the agenda review not be established
as a committee of the Council but rather an ad hoc group be convened
by the Mindarie Regional Council CEO.

3. That the committee dealing with the strategic projects be established
as a committee of the Council under s5.8 and s5.9(2)(e) (employees
and other persons) of the Local Government Act 1995.
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Committee Name

Whilst there is no specific terminology that needs to be used, naming a committee
established under the Act with terms such as “group”, “committee” or “working
party” does not in BHW's view remove any of the requirements that apply to
committees established under s5.8 of the Act.

As the committee proposed to be set up to deal with the agenda is not established
under the Act the name does not need to be formally considered by the MRC. It is
the view of BHW that the name should reflect the role and function so when the
CEO sets up this committee it could be called the Agenda Review Committee.

As it is proposed that the proposed planning committee be established under the
s5.8 of the Act it is necessary for the MRC to determine a suitable title for the
committee. To reflect its primary function BHW considers that it should be called
the Strategic Project Committee.

Recommendations

4. That the Mindarie Regional Council CEO in convening a committee
related to agenda review consider calling it the “Agenda Review
Committee”.

5. That the name of the proposed project planning committee to be
established under s5.8 of the Local Government Act 1995 be called the
Strategic Project Committee.
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Committee Membership

The current membership of the Working Group is of one employee representative
from each member Council that generally meets every two months. The Working
Group is chaired by the MRC CEO with support from other MRC staff.

Membership of the proposed Agenda Review Committee will be determined by
the MRC CEO. Whilst it is likely to contain a representative of each member
Council there is no formal position that needs to be decided by the MRC as to
who should be the representative.

The key value of the member Council representative having direct involvement in
the review of the agenda is that the member Council representative involved will
be able to brief and respond to questions from the elected member(s) of the MRC.
There could also be the opportunity to give additional background information to
the material that has been outlined in the agenda.

It is preferable that the member Council representative is familiar with the issues
listed on the agenda. For example, if the matter relates to the annual MRC Budget
the involvement of the finance specialist from the member Council may be
helpful. At other times different specialist input may be beneficial to the
determination of the most appropriate recommendation.

With regard to the membership of the proposed Strategic Project Committee,
based on the establishment of a the committee under s5.9(2)(e) of the Act it is
proposed that each member Council would have one employee representative and
a deputy representative, who are classed as “other persons” within the terms of the
Act. The member Council representative and in the representatives absence the
deputy representative would have formal voting rights.

The member Council representative is generally the employee with overall
responsibility for waste management within the member Council. Attendance at
meetings of the Strategic Project Committee would be limited to the member
Council representative or deputy member Council representative.

In regard to appointing member Council participants to committees Clause 17.3 of
the Mindarie Regional Council Standing Orders Local Law 2000 (Standing
Orders) reads as follows:

17.3 Appointment of Members from Participants to Committees

(1) Where the Council establishes a committee with members from participants,
the appointment of those members shall be made according to the wishes of the
participants.

(2) Where the members of a committee established by the Council are to be
employees of participants, those employees are to be the CEO of the respective
participants or employees appointed by the CEO of the respective participants

Establishing a committee under the Act places some responsibility on the member
Council CEO to ensure that an appropriate person is appointed by the MRC as

BHW Consulting 13
November 2009

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009 ITEM 8.1.3



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 65
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

this is a formal process and once appointed the CEO is the only person who can
terminate and reappoint. BHW is of the opinion that this clause should be
carefully considered when the Standing Orders are next reviewed to ensure that
there is a level of consistency as to the member Council representative and that
the representative is not changed unnecessarily. The establishment of the
committee under the Act also requires a level of commitment on the part of the
representative to attend the meetings of the committee.

In relation to appointing a person or a position holder s53 of the Interpretations
Act 1984 should be noted which states:

Where a written law confers a power or imposes a duty upon a person to appoint
or designate a person to —

(&) perform any function;

(b) be a member of any board, tribunal, commission, committee,
council, or other similar body, whether corporate or
unincorporate; or

(c) be or do any other thing,

that person may make the appointment or designation either by appointing or
designating a person by name or by appointing or designating the holder of an
office by the term designating his office; and any such appointment or designation
of the holder of an office shall be construed as the appointment or designation of
the person from time to time holding, acting in, or lawfully performing the
functions of the office.

This allows the member Council representative to be appointed by title of their
position. This would allow a smooth transition should a new employee be
appointed to the position.

Technical employees other than the member Council representatives and member
council deputy representatives have the opportunity to be invited to attend
meetings on an ad hoc basis to give their specialist knowledge to the committee
but would have no formal voting rights.

Recommendations

6. That the membership of the proposed Agenda Review Committee be
determined by the Mindarie Regional Council CEO on the
understanding that each member Council will be invited to have one
representative on the Committee.

7. That the Mindarie Regional Council in establishing the proposed
Strategic Project Committee appoint the Mindarie Regional Council
CEO and the CEO or his/her nominee as the employee representative
from each member Council.

8. That the Mindarie Regional Council in establishing the proposed
Strategic Project Committee appoint a deputy to the Mindarie
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Regional Council CEO and member Council CEO of another
employee as deputy representative by position title.

9. That employees, other than the member Council representative or
deputy member Council representative, be permitted to attend
meetings of the Strategic Project Committee to provide specialist
knowledge and support.

BHW Consulting 15
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Committee Reporting Framework

With the establishment of the proposed Strategic Project Committee as a
committee of the MRC under s5.9(2)(e) of the Act it is necessary to develop a
framework to formalise the process by which the Working Group report to the
MRC.

S5.17 of the Act limits the powers that can be delegated to a committee
established under s5.9(2)(e) of the Act to the proper management of the local
government’s property and an event in which the local government is involved. In
effect this means that the committee would have limited opportunity to act under
delegation.

As a committee of the MRC appointed under the Act it is a requirement for the
proposed Strategic Project Committee to prepare minutes of each meeting (s5.22
of the Act). The minutes are then presented to the MRC and can take the form of a
report of the committee to the MRC or simply the presentation of the minutes to
the MRC so that it may be received and for any recommendations that may be
included to be considered by the MRC for adoption. The method used to submit
the minutes to the MRC is dependent on the preference of the MRC.

The minutes of the committee must also be submitted to the next meeting of the
committee for confirmation.

The minutes of the Strategic Project Committee meeting provide the opportunity
for the Strategic Project Committee, to present reports and recommendations for
consideration by the MRC. It is likely that projects, which the Strategic Project
Committee is developing, may not have a formal recommendation at each
meeting however the minutes provide an opportunity to submit a progress report.

The MRC Agenda would include a specific agenda item for the receipt and
consideration of the minutes of the Strategic Project Committee.

Recommendations

10. That the Strategic Project Committee of the Council submit a report
to each Mindarie Regional Council Meeting.

11. That the report of the Strategic Project Committee contain where
appropriate recommendations and progress reports on matters under
consideration by the Strategic Project Committee.

12. That a Mindarie Regional Council Agenda contain a “stand alone”
agenda item for the receiving and consideration of the minutes from
meetings of the Strategic Project Committee.

BHW Consulting 16
November 2009

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009 ITEM 8.1.3



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 68
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

Role and Function of Committee

In discussions BHW had with members of the current Working Group on 21
August 2009, it would appear that the role and function of the Working Group is
twofold.

In looking at the role and function of the proposed Agenda Review Committee it
is considered the role should be as follows:

e examine all the reports that are to be included on the MRC Meeting
Agenda;

e review the details to ensure that the information is adequate for the MRC
to make a decision;

e ensure all matters have a recommendation or an explanation as to why no
recommendation has been submitted; and

e ensure the recommendations reflect the current policy and practice of the
MRC and member Councils.

Whilst difficult to develop a comprehensive statement of the role and function of
the Strategic Project Committee, it is BHW’s opinion that the committee should
consider the following when determining its role and function:

e lead research and policy direction on Kkey strategic issues for
recommendation to the MRC;

e address an cross organisational issues that would benefit from focussed
effort and corporate attention and oversight;

e address any issues that will have a high social, environmental and impact
on the member Councils or the MRC,;

e consider the reports prepared by technical support on strategic projects and
recommend to the MRC an appropriate course of action; and

e assist the MRC CEO in developing strategies to respond to Government
requirements as they affect the business operations of the MRC.

The role and function is best to be developed by the Strategic Projects Committee
itself taking account of the requirements of the MRC and member Councils.

Recommendations

13. That the Mindarie Regional Council CEO consider when establishing
the Agenda Review Committee including the following roles and
functions in the terms of reference:

a) examine all the reports that are to be included on the MRC
Meeting Agenda;

b) review the information provided in each agenda item to ensure
that it is adequate for the MRC to make a decision;

c) ensure all matters have a recommendation or an explanation
as to why no recommendation has been submitted; and

d) ensure the recommendations reflect the current policy and
practice of the MRC and member Councils.
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14. That the Strategic Project Committee prepare for consideration by
the Mindarie Regional Council a draft terms of reference for the role
and function of the Strategic Project Committee, having regard to the
following:

a) lead research and policy direction on key strategic issues for
recommendation to the MRC;

b) address any cross organisational issues that would benefit from
focussed effort and corporate attention and oversight;

c) address any issues that may have a high social, environmental
and financial impact on the member Councils or the MRC;

d) consider the reports prepared by technical support on strategic
projects and recommend to the MRC an appropriate course of
action; and

e) assist the MRC CEO in developing strategies to respond to
Government requirements as they affect the business
operations of the MRC.
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Committee Relationships to Mindarie Regional Council
Standing Orders

The development of a committee structure for the MRC must also consider the
relationship any committee established has with the MRC Standing Orders.

The MRC current Standing Orders Local Law 2000 was published in the
Government Gazette on Monday 12 March 2001.

As the Agenda Review Committee, as proposed, is not a committee of the
Council there is no relationship between the committee and the Standing Orders.

As a committee of the Council the Strategic Project Committee is effectively an
extension of the Council, as the committee has been appointed by an absolute
majority decision. It logically follows, therefore, that the requirements the Act,
including the Standing Orders, must be adhered to.

Part 17 of the Standing Orders deals with Committees of the Council.
Clause 17.6 outlines that the Standing Orders applies to committees.
17.6 Standing Orders Apply to Committees

(1) Where not otherwise specifically provided, these Standing Orders apply
generally to the proceedings of committees, except that the following Standing
Orders do not apply to the meeting of a committee—

(a) Clause 8.2, in regard to seating;

(b) Clause 9.5, limitation on the number of speeches.

(2) These Standing Orders are to apply after making the appropriate alterations
to meetings of committees which are held via teleconference, e-mail or other
electronic or telecommunication means.

The Standing Orders outline that a committee can be established on the motion of
the Council with the functions being set out by the motion. The powers and duties
of the committee shall be as determined by the council from time to time.

In regard to appointing member Council participants to committees Clause 17.3 of
the Standing Orders reads as follows:

17.3 Appointment of Members from Participants to Committees

(1) Where the Council establishes a committee with members from participants,
the appointment of those members shall be made according to the wishes of the
participants.

(2) Where the members of a committee established by the Council are to be
employees of participants, those employees are to be the CEO of the respective
participants or employees appointed by the CEO of the respective participants.
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This clause allows the MRC to signify the number of member Council employee
representatives to be appointed and for the representative to be the CEO or for the
CEO to appoint another employee.

BHW Consulting 20
November 2009

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009 ITEM 8.1.3



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 72
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

ITEM 4 ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS AND FEE SETTING MECHANISM
File No: FIN/112 (D/09/6042)
Attachment(s): Nil

Author: Kalwant Dhillon

SUMMARY

The purpose of this item is to summarise the Annual Budget Process and the process for
the annual fee setting for Members and Non-Members.

BACKGROUND

The annual fee for Members and Non-Members are traditionally finalised and approved by
Council in April/May in conjunction with the Annual Business Plan.

The Budget is developed by the Administration in May/June and a budget briefing session
is usually held in June each year prior to the approval of the Budget by Council in July.

Councillors have, during the 2009/10 Budget process, expressed their desire to have an
input into the development of the Council’s Budget and this Paper is written to take this
into account.

DETAIL

The Administration has developed a Budget Process for the Council taking into account
the following:

e Information gathered from meetings held with fellow Regional Councils and
selected Member Councils’ Representative relating to the Budget Process in their
respective Councils

e Councillors’ requirement to have an input into the development of the Budget

e Operational requirements of the Council

e Legislative requirements

Budget Process and Fees Setting Mechanism

In line with this, the Budget Process will be phased out into six phases.

Phase | Draft Budget Parameters for Annual Budget

Aim - To develop the draft Budget Parameters for the following year which
will form the basis for the setting of the fees for Members and Non-
Members

Process - The forward estimates, relating to the following budget year, will be

“downloaded” from the Council’s approved Twenty Year Strategic
Financial Plan and this will be reviewed and updated by the
Administration Team for the following:

e Economic Indicators i.e. CPI

e Salary Rate increases in line with EBA Agreement

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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e Changes to cost for existing services covering both
Increases and Decreases

e New Initiatives

New initiatives would need to be supported by a Justification

Statement.

Timeline - March each year.

Phase Il Workshop / Briefing of Member Council Officers (TWG and
CFOs)

Aim - To finalise the Council’'s Budget Parameters for the following budget

year and the draft fees relating to Members and Non-Members.

Process - The draft Budget Parameters developed in Phase I, including New
Initiatives, and the draft fees relating to Members/Non-Members in
respect of the following budget year will be tabled at the “Officers”
workshop/briefings with the view to obtaining general consensus for
the following:

¢ New Initiatives

e Budget Parameters

o Draft Fees (based on the updated Budget Parameters)
Timing - Early to mid-April each year.

Phase Il Agreement on Budget Parameters by Council and Approval of
Fees for Members and Non-Members

Aim - The Budget Parameters finalised, including New Initiatives, at the
“Officers” Workshop/Briefing session and the Draft Fees (based on
the revised Budget Parameters) will be presented to the OCM with
the view to obtaining Approval by the Council.

Process - (8) The draft Budget Parameters will be finalised based on
the feedback and general consensus obtained at the
Member Council Officers’ Workshop/Briefing

(b) Draft Fees for Members and Non-Members for the
following year will be updated with the revised Budget
Parameters in (a) above

(c) The finalised Budget Parameters and Draft Fees for
Members and Non-Members will be tabled at the OCM

for Approval
Timing - OCMiin late April/Early May.
Phase IV Development of Draft Budget
Aim - To develop a draft Budget for the following Budget year.
Process - The draft budget for the following Budget year will be prepared by

the Administration based on the Agreed / Approved Budget
Parameters in Phase lll above. This would be presented to the
combined Workshop/Briefing for Councillors and Member Council
Officers prior to finalisation in June.

Timing - April to Mid-May.

Workshop/Briefing — end of May.
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Phase V Finalisation of Budget
Aim - To obtain agreement on the Budget for the following year.
Process - The first draft Budget will be finalised based on the agreed Budget

Parameters and the ‘feedback’ received at the May
Workshop/Briefing which will then be presented to the combined
Workshop/Briefing for Councillors and Member Council Officers for
a final review/comments.

Timing - Workshop/Briefing 3/4™ week June

Phase VI Adoption of Budget

Aim - To obtain Council approval for the Budget.

Process - The draft Budget will be finalised based on the feedback and

agreement obtained at the combined Workshops/Briefings for
Councillors and Officers in June and presented to the OCM.

Timing - July.

CONSULTATION

Consultation was undertaken with fellow Regional Councils and selected Member
Councils’ representative to arrive at a Budget Process which would allow adequate input
from Member Council Representatives and Councillors as well as being robust and
meeting the requirements of the Regional Council going forward.

STATUTORY ENVIRONMENT

The approach is consistent with meeting the timing and other requirements under the
Local Government Legislation.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The approach is consistent with existing Strategic Plan, Strategic Financial Plan and
Financial Precepts and Policies.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Nil.
STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

The process will provide greater comfort and transparency into the Budget Process and
this in turn would allow more reliance on the Strategic Financial Plan going forward.

MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That Council approves the Draft Budget Process and the Fee Setting Mechanism, detailed
under “Budget Process and Fee Setting Mechanism”, above.
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TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MEETING - 27 NOVEMBER 2009

The group’s comments on the two workshops to be held in May and June have been
incorporated.

TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

That Council approves the Draft Budget Process and the Fee Setting Mechanism
detailed under “Budget Process and Fee Setting Mechanism” above.
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ITEM 5 MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL RESOURCE RECOVERY STAGE
TWO OUTLINE PLAN

File No: WST/7 (D/09/6043)
Attachment(s): Nil

Author: Kevin Poynton

SUMMARY

The purpose of this item is to provide Council with a recommended ‘way ahead’ with
respect to future Mindarie Regional Council (MRC) projects associated with resource
recovery.

BACKGROUND

Mindarie Regional Council Strategic Plan 2009 — 2020 contains Mission as follows:

. Delivering effective, efficient and environmentally sound waste processing
services
. Leading our community in sustainable waste management practices

Current processing capabilities are as follows:
. Landfill (Tamala Park)

. Resource Recovery (Neerabup)

Consideration of further waste processing options is now required on basis of:

. Available feedstock for processing
. Community desire for alternative processing other than landfill
DETAIL

Potential Project Aim — RRF Stage Two

MRC to process some or all of that waste from member councils otherwise planned for
ongoing disposal to landfill at MRC facilities.

Guiding Principles

Some suggested guiding principles for project, consistent with those described in
Strategic Plan 2009 — 2029, and via amplification of ‘Innovation’ as follows:

. Maximisation of recovery of resources
. Optimisation of usage of ‘resources recovered’
. Exploitation of opportunities to recover energy

(Reference: Koegler, Klause: EU Policy and Climate Change)
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Forces Driving Change (FDC) (External) (what are the external forces driving
‘resource recovery’?)

. Decreased availability of landfill sites

. Increased cost of landfill

° Increased community demand for non-landfill processing solutions
° Increased need for resource utilisation rather than wastage

Reduced environmental footprint (greenhouse gasses)
Critical Success Factors (CSF)

(What is required to succeed in establishment of Resource Recovery Facility (RRF) within
local government environment)

) Balanced risk allocation between client i.e. MRC, and contractor

Affordable price for service

. Proven service provider and technology
° Community support for capability (location, process)
° State Government approvals to technology et al

Appropriate location

o Guaranteed feedstock for plant

Ongoing Member Council commitment

Strengths (MRC) (Internal)

. Demonstrated success of RRF Stage One project methodology (Build — Own —
Operate)
. Demonstrated cooperation of Member Councils for RRF Stage One,

particularly on financial issues

. Ability to deliver community commitment; suitable site, with State Government
approvals, and facility feedstock

. Demonstrated success of RRF Stage One project management by MRC

Weaknesses (MRC) (Internal)

. Lack of ‘own funds’ for capital investment

. Lack of ‘internal’ project management expertise

. Lack of internal resources to construct and operate facility
o Potential weakness in fee structure

Threats (External)

. Limited suite of technology providers at ‘bid submission’ stage
. Nil State Government guidance on ‘acceptable technology’
. Withdrawal of Member Council commitment
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. Community opposition to sites, or particular technologies e.g. incineration
. Lack of certainty associated with City of Stirling feedstock, based on ‘no City of
Stirling publicised plan’ past cessation of existing Atlas contract
o Lack of confirmation of State Waste Strategy at this stage
. Non-completion of the Hyder work on development of an integrated waste plan
for the Region
° Lack of proven performance of RRF Stage One
DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIONS
° Key characteristics for decision with respect to project options as follows:
- Project Model
1. Build — Own — Operate (BOO)
2. Other e.g. Design and Construct (D&C) (NON-BOO)
- Waste for Processing
1. Domestic Waste Only (SOME)
2. Domestic Waste plus Other (ALL)
with maximum/minimum tonnage tabulated as follows
Domestic Other
Minimum (tonnes) 2 27,000 N/A
Maximum (tonnes) | (1) 100,000 215,000

Options consist of combinations of characteristics.

Notes

(1) Based on ‘return of City of Stirling’

(2) Based on ‘continued departure — City of Stirling;
departure Town of Cambridge, Town of Vincent’

Location
1. MRC

Provided by MRC

2. Non — MRC

Provided by others e.g. contractor

tabulated below, in tabulated version of ‘decision tree’.

Eight (8) options generated and

OPTION 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
CHARACTERISTIC
Project Model BOO BOO BOO BOO NON NON NON NON
BOO BOO BOO BOO
Waste Processed ALL | SOME | ALL | SOME | ALL | SOME | ALL | SOME
Location MRC | MRC | NON NON MRC | MRC | NON NON
MRC | MRC MRC | MRC
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A PROPOSED ‘WAY AHEAD’

The Technical Working Group (TWG), at its October meeting, considered that the level of
uncertainty, posed by the summation of the THREATS, led to a conclusion that the MRC
is best advised to ‘wait awhile’ whilst some of these matters develop more certainty.

Notwithstanding this, preliminary tasks are recommended as follows:

. Authorisation for CEO MRC to seek formal advice from City of Stirling on that
Council’'s ‘post Atlas’ plans, including plans for ongoing commitment to a co-
mingled collection system

o Completion of the regional integrated waste plan

. Confirmation of the State Government’s waste strategy, including the approach
to Advanced Waste Treatment (AWT)

. Confirmation of MRC policy regarding exemptions, following completion of the
revised pricing model

CONSULTATION
. Technical Working Group
STATUTORY ENVIRONMENT
Not directly applicable.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Not directly applicable.
STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable.
MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

0] Approve the proposed ‘way ahead’ with respect to resource recovery related
issues, namely progress of tasks as follows:

. Authorisation for CEO MRC to seek formal advice from City of Stirling
on that Council's ‘post Atlas’ plans, including plans for ongoing
commitment to a co-mingled collection system

. Completion of the regional integrated waste plan

. Confirmation of the State Government’s waste strategy, including the
approach to Advanced Waste Treatment (AWT)

° Confirmation of MRC policy regarding exemptions, following completion
of the revised pricing model

(i) Review progress on these tasks in April 2010, with a view to potentially
revising the ‘wait and see’ approach for Resource Recovery Stage Two

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MEETING - 27 NOVEMBER 2009

Nil Discussion.
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TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

0] Approve the proposed ‘way ahead’ with respect to resource recovery
related issues, namely progress of tasks as follows:

° Authorisation for CEO MRC to seek formal advice from City of
Stirling on that Council’'s ‘post Atlas’ plans, including plans for
ongoing commitment to a co-mingled collection system

o Completion of the regional integrated waste plan

° Confirmation of the State Government’'s waste strategy, including
the approach to Advanced Waste Treatment (AWT)

° Confirmation of MRC policy regarding exemptions, following
completion of the revised pricing model

(i) Review progress on these tasks in April 2010, with a view to potentially
revising the ‘wait and see’ approach for Resource Recovery Stage Two
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ITEM 6 ANNUAL REPORT —2008/2009
File No: COR/9 (D/09/6047)

Attachment(s): 1. Annual Report 2008/2009 qualitative component
2. Auditors Report

Author: Kevin Poynton

BACKGROUND

The Mindarie Regional Council, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1995
Section 5.53, is required to submit an Annual Report. The Local Government Act specifies
that the Annual Report is to contain:

° A report from the Chairman

° A report from the Chief Executive Officer

° A report of the principal activities commenced or continued during the financial
year

. An assessment of the Local Government's performance in relation to each
principal activity

. An overview of the principal activities that are proposed to commence or to
continue in the next Financial Year

. The Financial Report for the Financial Year

° Such information as may be prescribed in relation to the payments made to
employees

o The Auditors Report for the Financial Year

. Such other information as may be prescribed

The Annual Report for a Financial Year is to be accepted by the Local Government no
later than 31 December after that Financial Year.

The financial statements for 2008/2009 have been prepared, and the annual audit has
been completed. The Annual Report has been finalised and is now submitted for Council
consideration. A copy is at Attachment One to this item.

DETAIL

Content of the Annual Report

The Annual Report, as presented, contains the following information:

. A description of those Councillors who form the Mindarie Regional Council

. A Chairman’s Report

. A Chief Executive Officer's Report

o A summary of the Council’s Strategic Plan

. A progress report on the Council's Annual Business Plan, together with

Business Performance

. Various reports on the Council’s activities
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. Various reports in relation to the financial management of the Regional Waste
Management Plan Council

This content conforms with the statutory requirements previously described.
Annual Audit Process

The Audit Report from the Councillor's Auditors is at Attachment Two to this item. No
qualifications have been issued on the Council’s accounts.

STATUTORY ENVIRONMENT

The submission of the Annual Report for 2008/2009 conforms with the requirements of the
Local Government Act 1995.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable.

COMMENT

The Annual Report for the Mindarie Regional Council has been completed, in accordance
with the requirements of Local Government Act 1995. This report includes the Financial
Statements for 2008/2009, together with Audit Report.

MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

0] note the Auditors Report (provisional to Mindarie Regional Council's signing
the Statement of Declaration on the Financial Statements)

(i) adopt the Annual Report, including The Financial Statements for Year Ended
30 June 2009

(iii) authorise the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer to sign the Statement of
Declaration on behalf of Mindarie Regional Council

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MEETING — 27 NOVEMBER 2009
Nil Discussion.
TWG OFFICERS REOCMMENDATION

That Council:

) note the Auditors Report (provisional to Mindarie Regional Council’'s
signing the Statement of Declaration on the Financial Statements)

(i) adopt the Annual Report, including The Financial Statements for Year
Ended 30 June 2009

(iii)  authorise the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer to sign the Statement
of Declaration on behalf of Mindarie Regional Council
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ATTACHMENT ONE

TO ITEMO 6

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP

27 NOVEMBER 2009

ANNUAL REPORT 2008/2009
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Final

Mindarie Regional Councillors
Council =1 July 2008 to 30 June 2009
Chairman  Cr Rod Willox AM, JP
Deputy Chairman Cr Corinne MacRae
Delegates
City of Joondalup  Cr Russ Fishwick, Cr Kerry Hollywood
City of Perth Cr Rob Butler

City of Stirling Cr Rod Willox AM, JP, Cr Peter Rose JP, Cr Ron
Sebrechts, Cr Kathryn Thomas

City of Wanneroo Cr Laura Gray JP, Cr Paul Miles (retired October 2008),
Cr Dot Newton JP (replacing Cr Miles)

Town of Cambridge Cr Corinne MacRae
Town of Victoria Park Cr John Bissett
Town of Vincent  Cr Steed Farrell
Senior Officers
Chief Executive Officer Kevin F. Poynton
Chief Financial Officer Kalwant Dhillon
Operations manager Mike Tolson

Administration Manager  Kathleen van Son
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Chairman’s Report

| am delighted to present the Annual Report of the Mindarie Regional Council for the
year ending 30 June 2009. It has been a momentous year in which significant events
have occurred which have changed the nature of the business forever.

Not only does the MRC operate one of the State’s largest landfill operations -- the only
government-managed facility to hold 1ISO14001 accreditation -- but we now also have
the ability to significantly reduce the amount of waste going to landfill through the
introduction of alternative waste technology.

The commissioning of the new Resource Recovery Facility, operated by BioVision 2020
Pty Ltd under contract to the MRC for a 20-year period, sees the Council partnering with
best practice organisations including SITA to deliver an innovative and environmentally
responsible service to the region.

Our journey on the road to resource recovery has taken hundreds of professionals,
technical specialists, Local Government officers, and members and representatives of
our community on a long journey, over a seven year period. We would not have
reached this destination without extraordinary commitment, wisdom, expertise — and
patience — by many dedicated individuals and | thank them all for their efforts.

Other very important achievements for the year include:

0 The continued provision of world class services for waste disposal to landfill for
approximately 590,000 customers in the region.

0 The continued expansion of our recycling business, particularly in regard to the
management of household hazardous waste and electronic waste, while the
economic downturn has affected markets for plastics, cardboard/paper and
glass.

0 Expansion of our electricity generation capability via landfill gas — of growing
importance in the current climate of concern about carbon emissions and
greenhouse gas reduction.

0 Continued good work by the Community Engagement Advisory Group (CEAG)
on matters related to the Resource Recovery Facility.

0 The development of a new Strategic Plan for the business for the Financial Years
2009 — 2029 which will come into effect on July 1% 2009.

0 Adoption of the twenty year Strategic Financial Plan for the period 2008/09 to
2027/28

0 The development of a business plan for Financial Year 2009/2010.

o0 The completion of further construction work to maximise the space available to
us for landfilling at Tamala Park.

0 The continued implementation of the Council’'s waste education strategy, via the
waste education strategy steering Group (WESSG), and consolidation of a
number of good initiatives.

o Further improvements to the Council’s business systems, particularly in relation
to financial management.
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Much has been happening at National and State levels in the area of waste.
Consultation to develop a National Waste Strategy commenced in the first half of 2009,
and will reach completion later in the year.

At State level a Parliamentary inquiry into waste management in the first half of the year
provided the opportunity for the MRC to work jointly with industry forums to seed the
vision of waste as an essential service. The State Government commenced the process
of developing a new waste Strategy for the State which was still in its formative stages
by the end of June 2009.

In the last weeks of the financial year the State Government announced a 300%
increase to the landfill levy and signaled an intention to hypothecate funds raised
through the landfill levy into the DEC for non-waste-related activities. While the move to
raise the landfill levy was supported, the MRC joined with other industry forums to
strongly argue for retention of the funds raised. This area of potential change is one of
the challenges still ahead for the waste industry as we move into the next financial year.

Other challenges for the future include the management of the existing landfill, the
identification of a landfill facility capability beyond Tamala Park, commencement of
operation of the resource recovery facility and the ongoing education of our community
about what not to put in the bin, and the support of waste minimisation as a priority to
reduce the increase in the volume of waste being generated.

The Council has continued to be involved in a number of external forums during the
year. These have included the Municipal Waste Advisory Council and the associated
Officer Advisory Group, the Forum of Regional Councils (FORC) and the Waste
Management Association (Western Australian Division).

The corporate management of the Council’s business continues to be excellent, and this
has been substantiated through the completion of the 2008/09 audit by the Council's
auditors.

A copy of the audit report is included in this document.

The good financial management of the finances of the Council is reflected in the healthy
financial position of the Council as at June 30 2009.

| thank all elected members of the Council for their work over the reporting year.

| also express my appreciation to the customers of our Council, as well as those who
provide an extensive range of consultative and logistical services to our business.

| also thank those dedicated officers from our Member Councils for their continuing
contribution to our business.

Next | thank Kevin Poynton, Chief Executive Officer, and the staff based at Tamala Park
for their continued good work in the execution of our business activities to an excellent
standard.

I would like to express our thanks to Russell Sewell and the community representatives
of our Community Engagement Advisory Group who have worked closely with the
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Council to reflect and advise us of the community’s views on various significant aspects
of the resource recovery project, and who would have been equally delighted to reach
the milestone achieved this year with the commissioning of the facility.

I commend this Annual Report to you.

Councillor Rod Willox AM JP

Chairman
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Chief Executive Officer’'s Report

It is with pleasure that | present my report on the business of the Mindarie Regional Council for
the year ending 30 June 2009. The business of the Council is described in two broad
dimensions:

e Management of current operations

o Projects

CURRENT OPERATIONS

Landfill Activity

The key business activity of the Council is disposal of waste to landfill, at the Tamala Park
Refuse Disposal Facility. Details of this disposal for the year ending 30 June 2009 are as
follows:

Member Councils

City of Joondalup 63,372 tonnes
City of Perth 14,470 tonnes
City of Stirling 86,447 tonnes
City of Stirling Bales 22,967 tonnes
City of Wanneroo 65,766 tonnes
City of Wanneroo Resid 17,965 tonnes
Town of Cambridge 10,551 tonnes
Town of Victoria Park 12,926 tonnes
Town of Vincent 14,203 tonnes

308,667 tonnes
Other Depositors

City of South Perth 14,807 tonnes

Other Casuals 47,133 tonnes
61,940 tonnes

Total Tonnage of waste received 370,607 tonnes

The receipt and processing of waste consists of:

e Waste to landfill

e General Waste
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Recycling Activity

The Council conducts a number of programmes which are designed to optimise the value of
resources disposed to Tamala Park. These programmes are as follows:

The disposal of selected reusable resources to the public, on a fee for purchase basis, for
reuse. This results in an annual income for financial year 2008/2009 being $245,563.

The disposal of particular waste streams, for recycling, in order to either, maximise their further
use or minimise their harmful impact to the environment.

These waste streams include:

Metal

Oil

Cardboard/paper

Batteries

Household hazardous waste
Paint

Glass

Staff

The Council has operated with a total of 34 full time staff, ten part time staff, and four positions
filled by contract staff during the year. The Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA),
established previously, has worked well and a revised EBA, titled Collective Workplace
Agreement, was approved in November 2008.

Our staff have continued to operate in a professional, diligent and co operative manner through
the year and should be congratulated on their endeavours. All staff have been provided
opportunities for training in areas relevant to their work. The annual review of the Chief
Executive Officer was successfully conducted by the Council in April 2009.

Customer Issues

Our Tamala Park team have continued to deliver excellent service to our customers, during the
year.

Facilities
The Council’'s improved administration facility has been in operation since September 2000, and

continues to be a valuable component of our business. The training room is utilised widely for
meetings, workshops, training and social events.

The Council has continued to meet at the facilities of member Councils, and the hospitality of
the member organisations is to be applauded.

In addition, the co-operation of the City of Stirling, Town of Vincent and Town of Cambridge
should be noted, with particular reference to these organisations’ ability to provide facilities for a
range of events including working group meetings, workshops and other forums.

Improvements to facilities at Tamala Park, including the administration centre were completed
this year.
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The establishment of infrastructure at the Neerabup Resource Recovery facility site is
scheduled to be completed in Financial Year 2009/2010.

Plant and Equipment

The Council continues to operate a fleet of contemporary equipment. The use of hire
equipment, where appropriate, is occurring, and this includes a tracked earthmoving item for
work on landfill batters, and elsewhere.

Occupational Safety and Health

The Council has continued to implement best practice Occupational Safety and Health systems
and currently has a certified Occupational Safety and Health Officer.

The Council has also introduced an electronic system for the management of inspections and
incidents related to OSH.

Governance

The Council has conducted its business in accordance with its previously completed Business
Manual. Appropriate amendments to this manual have occurred during the reporting year. The
Council's Business Manual is under review, and this exercise should be completed by early
2010, with respect to Council policies.

In addition the Council continues to operate contemporary governance systems, in accordance
with the appropriate legislation.

Records Management

The MRC Record Keeping Plan was formally approved by the State Records Office for a 5 year
period until 2010.

The electronic system which is capturing the MRC records electronically in conjunction with the
original paper based filing system is in Phase 2 of its development with training programmes
completed with Corporate and Operational staff during 2006. Training is ongoing for all new
staff with in house training for Corporate and Operations staff via the MRC Records Officer.

Retention schedules and electronic triggers for management of files and documents for
archiving have been set in place to ensure compliance with State Government Records
legislation.

Marketing and Education

The Council continued to host a variety of groups of visitors during the reporting year. These
have included school groups, overseas visitors, representatives of government, other Council
groups, and members of the public. The Council conducted a successful Corporate Function at
the Burswood on Swan Function Centre during the reporting year. Twice yearly issues of a
newsletter —- MRC News — have been produced and circulated to every household in the region.
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The Council continued to expand its Marketing & Education program, with key activities being
as follows:

e Creation of an Education Centre at Tamala Park

e Expansion of the Earth Carers program

e Launch of the Roaming Recycler mobile education van which takes the waste
message out to community events across the region

e Expansion of our tours program
e Production of Waste & Recycling Guides for a number of member Councils

e Ongoing good work by the Waste Education Strategy Steering Group

Regulatory Issues

The Council continues to maintain an excellent working relationship with the Department of
Environment and Conservation resulting in the continued renewal of licence conditions for the
Tamala Park operation.

The annual Environmental Compliance Audit was again conducted by Consultants from URS
and the results from this exercise were pleasing. In addition, the Council has worked closely
with the CSIRO in regard to Groundwater Management. In addition, the Council achieved
environmental certification to ISO 14000 standards.

Regional Cooperation
The Council has continued to cooperate on a regional basis with others. Examples of this work
include:
e The continued sharing of information with other Regional Councils, via the Forum of
Regional Councils (FORC)

e Continued involvement of staff in the planning and execution of the annual Waste
and Recycle Conference

e The conduct of Household Hazardous Waste collection days within the region

Landfill Operations

The Council continues to operate one of the largest Class Two landfill facilities in metropolitan
Perth in accordance with best practice. Compaction standards have been satisfactory. Work
has continued on the management of landfill gas from the existing landfill, and the development
of a Stage Two landfill. A number of operational improvements have occurred during the year,
including the exploitation of existing limestone using a crusher facility.

Projects
The Council has conducted the following projects during the reporting yeatr:

e The continuation of extensive groundwater investigative tasks by CSIRO

e Further works associated with development of a Stage Two Landfill
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e Further work associated with the management of landfill gas produced from the
Stage One Landfill, including generation of electricity

e Progress of work associated with the introduction of a resource recovery facility to
the region, including the work of a community engagement group, liaison with City of
Wanneroo on planning matters, and completion of work to satisfy the contractual
conditions appointment of a Contractor

e The introduction of an upgraded Weighbridge Management System

e The commencement of State Government — funded investigative projects under the
Strategic Waste Minimisation Plans (SWMP) initiative

¢ Investigations into the potential impact of an Emissions Trading Scheme (ETS) on
the business

Financial Issues

The Council has continued to operate in accordance with those previously approved financial
policies and precepts. The audit of the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 30
June 2009 has been completed and the Council is in a ‘healthy’ financial position. The Council
has approved the Budget for Financial Year 2009/2010 for implementation at its July 2009
Council Meeting.

Work has continued on the revision to the Council’s Pricing Model, and this is expected to be
completed in early 2010.

Future Directions

The Council has in place its key plans, namely, a Strategic Plan, a Strategic Financial Plan, a
Business Plan for 2009/2010, and an approved Budget 2009/2010. Significant projects for the
coming year are:

e The continuation of the exploitation of landfill gas, within sections of the Stage Two
Landfill
e The continuation of construction of cells in the Stage Two landfill

e The revision of the Council's Regional Waste Management Plan in the form of an
Integrated Waste Plan for the region

e Further work associated with the introduction of resource recovery within the region,
including commencement of planning for RRF Stage Two

e Adoption of an improved governance instrument, in the form of an Establishment
Agreement

e Continued implementation of the Council's Marketing Plan

e The continuation of work associated with ‘Son of Tamala’ landfill, carbon trading and
regional initiatives (under the SWMP program)

e Continuation of liaison with Tamala Park Regional Council on matters of common
interest associated with Tamala Park land

Conclusion
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In summary, | wish to express my appreciation to a number of individuals and groups for their
work during the year.

The Council’s current Chairman, Cr Rod Willox
The Council's Deputy Chair Cr Corinne MacRae

The Chairman of the Council's Secondary Waste Treatment Facility Working Group,
Cr Laura Gray

All those other Councillors who have participated in various forums associated with
Council’s business

Those Officers from Member Councils, who have been heavily involved in forums
such as the Technical Working Group, Secondary Waste Treatment Facility Working
Group and Waste Education Strategy Steering Group

Chief Executive Officers of the Member Councils

The staff of the Mindarie Regional Council, particularly the Managers — Mr Kalwant
Dhillon, Mr Mike Tolson, Ms Kathleen van Son, Gae Synnott and lan Watkins

All those customers of the Council’s business

Those external providers including Consultants, trades people, suppliers and
government agencies

The Community Engagement Advisory Group and our communities across the
region for their continued interest and involvement in the Council’s business.

Kevin F Poynton
Chief Executive Officer
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Annual Business Plan 2008/2009

Performance Summary

The Council's Annual Business Plan for the Year 2008/2009, together with associated
performance outcomes, is described here.

Objective One: Resource Management

Approved Action: € Develop and implement resource management programs, particularly for
landfill, recycling and reuse in accordance with State Government
requirements. e.g. Site Licence

Progress: v~ Programmes conducted in accordance with regulatory
requirements

Approved Action: ¢ Develop revised Master Plan for Tamala Park
Progress: v“Ongoing

Approved Action: ¢ Execute bush management activities as follows:

- implement limited bush management on completed landfill area, and
other areas

- finalise Bush Management Plan
Progress: »"Ongoing

Approved Action: € Implement gas management plan, including collection of revenue
Progress: v“Plan progressing according to contract

Approved Action: ¢ Execute groundwater management activities as follows:
- maintain existing groundwater monitoring via CSIRO
- implement plan for groundwater monitoring West of Marmion Avenue

Progress: Commencement of further site monitoring in the north of the site.
Postponement of monitoring West of Marmion due to lack of evidence to
support this task.

Approved Action: € Progress Resource Recovery Facility by actions as follows:
- construct facility

- progress Mindarie Regional Council community liaison programme for
Resource Recovery Facility

Progress: v~ Construction and commissioning completed. Community
liaison ongoing
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Approved Action: € Implement revised Regional Concept for Waste Management including
community engagement and education, in accordance with best practice

Progress: v“Implemented via Waste Education Strategy Steering Group

Approved Action: € Plan and implement Community Communication Plan 2008/2009 including
newsletters, publicity, Annual Report and Corporate Function and
educational activities

Progress: v"Communication activities completed satisfactorily

Approved Action: € Progress the alignment of waste management services within the region,
particularly in regard to, initially, collection and disposal of hazardous
waste

Progress: v Collection and disposal of HHW proceeding via static facilities
(Tamala Park, Balcatta) and member Council collection days

Objective Two: Resource Business Creation

Approved Action: € Investigate business opportunities associated with existing facilities i.e.
Tamala Park, Neerabup

Progress: v~ Opportunities progressed include limestone disposal and e-
waste recycling

Approved Action: € Develop concepts for ‘landfill beyond Tamala’
Progress: v“Call for Submissions exercise completed

Objective Three: Industry Leadership

Approved Action: ¢ Participate in defined external industry-related forums e.g. MWAC, WMAA,
WALGA, and FORC

Progress: v"Conducted consistent participation in these forums

Approved Action: € Research contemporary practice for future waste and resource industry
development, service delivery and waste education

Progress: v"Research activities progressed via SWMP projects

Approved Action: ¢ Develop integrated initiatives to capitalise on these future options

Progress: v

Approved Action: € Strengthen partnerships with Government, industry and academic
institutions in order to promote improvement in waste management sector

Progress: v Progressed via FORC initiatives in respect to landfill levy, and
Waste and Recycle Conference participation
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Objective Four: Organisational Management

Approved Action: ¢ Finalise Establishment Agreement
Progress: v Facilitation of member council discussion

Approved Action: € Maintain and improve existing contemporary business systems, e.g.
finance, procurement, project management, customer service and
marketing, structure, staffing

Progress: v“Key initiative has been development of marketing plan

Approved Action: ¢ Strengthen Member Council partnerships and relations
Progress: Commencement of task to review officer forum structure

Approved Action: € Review and, where appropriate, revise funding strategies for the business

Progress: v"Revision of pricing model in progress

Approved Action: ¢ Develop the information management system e.g. Records, website,
knowledge, for the business

Progress: v~ Revision of IT plan and Information Management plan in
progress

Approved Action: € Revise Mindarie Regional Council Business Manual

Progress: v“Policy review programme continuing
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The Council’s Strategic Plan

The Mindarie Regional Council continued to follow the direction of the Strategic
Plan 2006 — 2009,approved by Council at the February 2006 Ordinary Meeting.

The mission of the MRC is:
To provide effective, cost efficient and environmentally sound waste and
other resource management services for the benefit of the region.

The Strategic Plan identifies four strategic objectives and strategies associated
with each objective. These are:

Objective One — Resource Management

To operate defined programmes associated with waste and resource
management in accordance with best appropriate practice.

Objective Two — Resource Business Creation

To identify opportunities to address waste streams in addition to domestic waste.
Objective Three — Industry Leadership

To provide leadership in the waste and related resource industry.

Objective Four — Organisational Management

To ensure excellent organisational management through improvement of the
Council’s business and management systems.

During the second half of the year the MRC undertook an extensive review of the
business activities and necessary future strategies for the region, culminating in
the finalisation of the Strategic Plan 2009 — 2029. This plan was adopted by
Council and will come into effect 1 July 2009.
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SUMMARY OF FINDINGS FROM
MRC STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT STUDY

In July 2008 the MRC commissioned CATALYSE® to undertake an extensive
Stakeholder Engagement Study. The strategic intent of the study was to better
understand the needs, expectations and perceptions of the MRC'’s key
stakeholders, comprising Member Councils, MRC staff, landfill drivers,
customers, including the MRC'’s top 10 debtors, Transfer Station and Recycling
Centre customers, the general public, teachers and active advisory groups —
CEAG (Community Engagement Advisory Group) and WESSG (Waste

Education Strategy Steering Group).

The 2008 study followed a similar study undertaken in 2005. Progress from 2005
was tracked and areas of improvement were identified. The MRC Management
Team has used the findings in planning and decision-making for the business,
and has followed-up on a number of stakeholder-specific issues.

Key findings

What we found

| What this means

People do not see waste as an issue

Waste is being overshadowed by other
environmental issues, particularly water
and climate change.

Greater promotion is needed to raise the
profile and perceived importance of waste.

The recycling message is getting through

Residents reported significant efforts to
recycle in response to Council provision of
recycling bins to make it easier to recycle.
86% of households in the region now have
a separate recycling bin (excluding City of
Stirling), which is an increase from 23% in
2005.

Residents understand recycling and are
participating. Recycling behaviour has
doubled since the previous survey and is
now at 80%.

People are still not sure about what goes in what bin

Products which should not be put in the
wheelie bin are still being disposed of in
this way. For example:
¢ 40% put batteries in their wheelie bin
e 22% put paints and pesticides

Continued education is required on
contaminants, why these should not be put
in either bin (wheelie bin or recycling bin),
and alternative methods of disposal.

Only small numbers of people compost at home

25% of people compost at home, and few
know that their Councils provide worm
farms and compost bins, often at
subsidised cost.

Continued education is required.

People are not connecting with the message to reduce waste

25% of people say they put a high effort
into reducing the amount of waste going

More promotion is needed to encourage
people to reduce waste.
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into their weekly bin or choosing goods
with less packaging.

High levels of satisfaction with waste services
89% satisfaction with Tamala Park facilities | Continuous improvements in site
among those who visit, a significant conditions and facilities needed.
improvement since 2005.

Insufficient awareness of Tamala Park
58% of respondents had heard of Tamala | More people need to know about the waste
Park, and this proportion was higher drop-off and recycling facilities.

among people living closer to the facility.
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Key achievements in Tamala Park operations

The Mindarie Regional Council manages the disposal of some 350,000 tonnes of
waste it receives each year generated by about 590,000 people living in the
MRC’s seven member Councils, comprising the Cities of Joondalup, Perth,
Stirling, and Wanneroo; and the Towns of Cambridge, Victoria Park and Vincent.

Since the Tamala Park landfill commenced operations in 1991, the region’s non-
recyclable household waste has been delivered to Tamala Park for disposal in
landfill.

The disposal picture changed significantly in March 2009 with the official opening
of the region’s new Resource Recovery Facility, operated under contract to the
MRC by BioVision 2020 Pty Ltd. The facility is expected to reduce the volume of
waste sent to the Tamala Park landfill by up to 20 per cent each year.

Both arms of the business are critical to the MRC'’s vision and 2008/2009 was an
intense period for the MRC, with numerous projects being undertaken.

Tamala Park Landfill Operations

In addition to the state-of-the-art landfill, the Tamala Park operations also include
a number of services for the general public including:
e a Recycling Centre,

e a Transfer Station for the receival of general waste and household
rubbish

e a Household Hazardous Waste drop-off facility,

e a drop-off facility for electronic waste including computers and mobile
phones,

e an asbestos drop-off facility which is free on the last Sunday of each
month, and

e a free firewood supply during the cooler months of the year.

Major achievements this year with operation of the landfill include:

Site rehabilitation and groundwater monitoring

A four-hectare site to the eastern and northern boundaries of the landfill, an area
identified as Wagyl Aboriginal heritage land, has been extensively revegetated

this year.

About 14,000 tube stock has been planted as part of the MRC’s commitment to
revegetate the site and return it to good condition, and to provide a buffer to
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reduce potential dust, litter and visual impact. A variety of plant species local to
the area have been planted, including tall species such as tuart and banksia. All
tube stock is tree guarded to protect it from kangaroos.

An additional 1000 trees have been planted along the northern boundary. This
infill planting of five varieties will provide height along the boundary.

Extensive ongoing groundwater investigations are undertaken by the CSIRO on
behalf of the MRC. Bore holes have been placed along the northern boundary
due to development occurring to the north. The bore holes enable the condition
of groundwater along the boundary to be monitored with initial results expected
during the next financial year. No readings to date have been above trigger
levels.

Piggyback liner

Work on site during the year includes the design and construction of a new
“piggyback” liner over a portion of the Stage 1 North capped landfill. The
piggyback liner is necessary to enable landfilling to occur over existing capped
areas within the Stage 1 portion of the landfill. The construction of this liner
enables the final waste placement to be completed in the northern portion of the
landfill site.

The environmental objective of the piggyback liner is to ensure that leachate
generated within the fresh waste placed over the existing, unlined Stage 1
landfill, is adequately contained and diverted to the Stage 2 lined portion of the
landfill, where it can be managed to prevent seepage into the groundwater below
the landfill.

In addition to providing a base liner for the new waste, the piggyback liner
provides a significantly improved “cap” to a large portion of the unlined Stage 1
landfill area, thereby reducing rainwater seepage into the old landfill and a
consequent reduction of leachate being generated in the unlined portion of the
landfill.

The design of the piggyback lining system required the inclusion of special
structural layers to accommodate the differential settlement of the old waste
below the liner. Significant settlement is expected to continue for at least the next
10 years and, hence, the structural layers need to ensure the integrity of the liner
during this period of waste settlement.

Continued excavation for landfill
Excavation continued on the Stage 2 Phase 3 area of the landfill, which is the

final remaining extension of the landfill footprint allowable under existing
development approvals. The only remaining future cell construction will be a
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future piggyback liner over a portion of Stage 1 South, which is anticipated to be
constructed in about four years.

Since commencement of excavation of the Stage 2 Phrase 3 landfill cell, about
800,000 m3 of limestone has been removed from the void, with a further 300,000
m3 remaining to be excavated in the early part of next financial year. The
limestone that has been excavated from the Phase 3 void has been crushed and
placed in stockpiles on site for future use. A significant quantity of crushed
limestone has also been removed free-of-charge from the site.

Limestone processing

The MRC has previously committed to the local Kinross community to
progressively reduce the height of the permanent limestone stockpile to the south
of the landfill area.

For a number of years, there have been two limestone block manufacturers
slowly consuming part of the stockpile. However, the global financial crisis has
realised a significant downturn in the demand for limestone blocks. As a result,
the reduction in the height of the limestone stockpile has slowed considerably
during the year. It is anticipated that as soon as demand for limestone blocks
increases, the height of the limestone stockpile will continue to be reduced.

Replacement landfill

Forecasts estimate that the Tamala Park landfill will reach capacity in 2021. The
MRC is actively pursuing options for future regional waste management,
including securing a replacement landfill site.

Expansion of the landfill gas extraction system

A private company, Landfill Gas and Power Pty Ltd, produces electricity from the
methane gas extracted from the landfill. The MRC has expanded the landfill gas
extraction system into areas of newly-placed waste. This expansion of the
extraction system has enabled the continued production of ‘green’ energy at a
maximum rate of 6.45 MW, and will also reduce the fugitive landfill gas
emissions, thereby improving the environmental performance of the landfill
operations.

Other activities at Tamala Park

In addition to the state-of-the-art landfill, the Tamala Park operations comprise
many services for the general public, including:
e aRecycling Centre
e a Transfer Station for the receival of general waste and household
rubbish
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e a Household Hazardous Waste disposal facility

e a receival facility for electronic waste, including computers and mobile
phones

e an asbestos drop-off facility, which is a free service conducted on the first
Sunday of each month, and

e a free firewood supply during the cooler months of the year.

Significant levels of activity in other areas of the Tamala Park operations include:
ISO Accreditation

The Environmental Management System (EMS) in operation at the Tamala Park
facility has received 1SO14001 certification, making the landfill site the first
Government-controlled waste management facility to achieve the standard in
Western Australia.

All waste management services and operations undertaken and managed by the
MRC at the Tamala Park facility were examined in the certification process.
These included waste education, administration, recycling centre, transfer
station, maintenance workshop, contractor management, landfill construction,
operations, rehabilitation, closure and post closure monitoring and management.

The MRC'’s Chief Executive Officer, Mr Kevin Poynton, outlined the importance of
ISO14001 certification to the business.

“Having an environmental management system ensures that environmental
management is undertaken in a systematic way to prevent environmental
incidents and pollution, to manage environment risks, to comply with all
environmental laws and to ensure that we use our resources efficiently, Mr
Poynton said.

“We are sure that our neighbours, customers, the local Councils who bring their
waste to Tamala Park, and the region’s residents, will be pleased to see that the
facility is operating to this international standard.”

Weighbridge enhancements

In early 2009, the Tamala Park weighbridge was fitted with a radiation detection
system, which will help identify the type of waste being brought to Tamala Park,
and prevent the dumping of sealed radioactive mining and medical waste.
Increase in problem products

We are seeing an increase in two areas of waste at the Tamala Park Transfer
Station and Recycling Centre: e-waste and mattresses.
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E-waste comprises discarded computers, monitors, televisions, video/dvd players
and recorders, and mobile telephones. Australians have embraced this
technology and have purchased these products in large numbers. Unfortunately,
this means we also throw out a lot of them.

E-waste items are made of materials that can be recycled. In many cases, over
90% of these can be recycled if they are disposed of correctly. Also, many
materials contain substances that are toxic and should not be sent to landfill.

The MRC participated in a metropolitan-wide E-waste Collection weekend in
June 2009. About 85,000kg of e-waste were collected at Tamala Park, Stirling
and Perth collection sites, contributing to a total of more than 200 tonnes
collected over the weekend.

During the financial year, the MRC received about 2000 mattresses at the
Transfer Station. The opportunity arose in October 2008 to participate in a Pilot
Mattress Recycling Project in conjunction with the Eastern Metropolitan Regional
Council (EMRC) at its Hazelmere Timber Recycling Centre.

The two key objectives of the trial were to:
o Divert mattresses from landfill where they cause operational problems and
consume considerable airspace.
0 Recover valuable resources such as metal, timber and foam from
mattresses, which can be reused in new products.

The trial proved to be highly successful and will inform the MRC'’s future planning
for this problem product.

Strategic Financial Plan

The Council adopted a Twenty Year Strategic Financial Plan for the period
2008/09 to 2027/28 at its July 2008 Ordinary Council Meeting which supports the
Council’s strategies going forward for the next twenty years.

The Strategic Financial Plan assumes continuity of the Council’s two Business
Streams namely Landfill and Resource Recovery Facilities going forward and
covers the following key areas:

. Capital and Operational Expenditure for 20 years commencing
2008/09
. Funding of Operations for the next twenty years which will be through:

- Internal Funds (Accumulated Surpluses arising from Non-
Members business)

- External Funds — existing and new loans
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Key Capital Expenditure includes:

. Establishment of new Landfill Facility when space at Tamala Park
Facility is fully utilised by 2020/21

. Establishment of the first Resource Recovery Facility (RRF 1) by July
2009 and the next Resource Recovery Facility (RRF 2) by 2013/14

Waste Minimisation Activities

During the 08/09 financial year, the State Department of Environment and
Conservation announced funding for the development of regional Strategic
Waste Minimisation Plans. In discussion with member Councils the MRC
finalised the development of the draft regional Strategic Waste Minimisation Plan.
Following signoff by all member councils, the SWMP will guide the MRC’s waste
minimisation activities for the next five years.

The DEC, following receipt of the draft SWMP, provided significant Regional
Investment Plan funding to the MRC for the execution of various projects
identified within the Plan. The MRC has until the end of December 2009 to
complete six identified projects. These projects had progressed well by the end
of this reporting period and are on track for timely completion.

The list of projects includes:
0 Bulk waste assessment from transfer stations.
Bulk waste assessment from self-haul customers.
Development of guidelines for public event recycling.
Member Council infrastructure waste management.
Wet/Dry bin recycling trial.
Member Council transport and waste management infrastructure
assessment.

O O0OO0OO0Oo

The outcomes from these projects will be reported in next year’s Annual Report.

National Greenhouse Emissions Reduction Scheme (NGERS) reporting and
carbon trading impact

With the implementation of NGERS and the imminent introduction of a carbon
trading scheme, the MRC has extensively reviewed and accounted for the
business-related greenhouse gas emissions in preparation for reporting
commencing in July 2009. The majority of the MRC’s emissions relate to fugitive
landfill gas, and it is expected the issue will become a major focus for the
business over the next few years.
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Tamala Park Regional Council

Ongoing discussions with the TPRC continued during the reporting period,
primarily focusing around the proposed development of the land to the north of
the MRC lease area and how the landfill post closure development activities
could best assist the proposed development. Another aspect of common interest
is the landfill buffer zone that encroaches into the TPRC development area.
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Resource Recovery Commences Operations

The Mindarie Regional Council’s business changed significantly during the year
with the culmination of an eight-year project to commission the design and
construction of a new Resource Recovery Facility for the region.

The facility, which BioVision 2020 Pty Ltd operates under contract to the MRC, is
expected to reduce the volume of waste sent to the Tamala Park landfill by up to
20 per cent each year.

Official opening for the RRF

Following a 13-month construction period, the RRF, in the Neerabup Industrial
Area, was officially opened with a two-stage celebration: a formal opening event
for official guests on March 27 2009, and a Community Open Day held the next
day.

Almost 200 official guests attended the first event, while close to 600 community
members attended the Open Day and took advantage of the opportunity to tour
the facility.

In April 2009, the wheels started revolving on two huge steel cylinders to mark
the beginning of a revolution in the treatment of household waste generated by
some 590,000 people living in the MRC region.

The cylinders, technically referred to as composters, are the entry point for a
process that takes ordinary organic household waste and turns it into market-
qguality compost to help enrich Perth’s nutrient-deficient soils, together with
significant additional benefits to the environment.

A three-month wet commissioning period, from April to July 2009 enabled the
process to be fully tested to ensure the facility was ready for operation.
Recovering resources wastes less waste

The initial phase of the MRC’s planned three-stage resource recovery capability
will treat up to 100,000 tonnes of household waste annually, converting much of

it into compost, with the residue sent to landfill.

This represents a 20% reduction in the total amount of waste sent to landfill each
year, and creates some 40,000 tonnes of compost.

Future stages of the facility will divert a larger percentage of the region’s waste
stream from landfill.
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The long and winding road

The road to Resource Recovery has been both long and winding for the MRC,
the State’s largest waste management authority, and its community.

In 2001, the MRC responded to the State Government's initiative, Towards Zero
Waste 2020, with an investigation into waste treatment alternatives to landfilling.

The following several years saw a massive amount of investigation, consultation
and negotiation undertaken by the MRC’s management team, Councillors,
member Council technical officers, project management team, members and
representatives of the region’s community, and consultants, into alternative
process technologies and possible site locations.

In late 2006, the MRC awarded an $80 million contract to build, own and operate
the plant to BioVision 2020 Pty Ltd for the next 20 years. Construction of the
facility started in May 2008.

BioVision 2020 engaged waste management specialists SITA Environmental
Solutions to operate the plant and Canadian company Conporec to supply the
composting technology.

BioVision 2020 is owned by WA-based superannuation fund Westscheme and
SembSITA Australia Pty Ltd.

The compost generated through the resource recovery process will assist in
improving moisture retention in soils where it is applied. Better moisture retention
reduces the need for artificial fertilisers, thereby both slowing and lessening the
leaching of chemicals into the groundwater.

In deeper ground, even more significant environmental benefits will begin to flow.

Each year, some 70,000 tonnes’ less waste will be buried in landfill.
Consequently, and again, the risk of leaching of chemicals into groundwater will
be slowed and lessened.

The reduction in the volume of waste sent annually to landfill will, over time,
impact substantially on the volume of greenhouse gas created within a landfill,
thereby lessening the impact on global warming.

Statistically, for example, a reduction of 100,000 tonnes in the amount of waste
landfilled each year would represent a saving to the environment equal to
removing about 9000 cars from our roads and also eliminating the consumption
of about 100,000 barrels of oil, or planting about 4000 hectares of trees annually.
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Additionally, as we divert more waste from existing landfill sites, we slow down
the inevitable and expensive process of developing more landfill sites to service
our community’s future needs. Reuse of waste is a big step towards community
sustainability.

Community’s role significant

Community input and feedback played a significant role in the decision-making
process throughout the project’s planning phase.

The MRC sought the community’s views through extensive research, surveys,
guestionnaires and discussions as it distributed information leaflets throughout
the region, published project details on its website, and conducted focus groups,
public information sessions and telephone surveys.

As a direct result of feedback from the community, several milestones were
achieved:

e The location of the proposed facility was changed from Wangara to the
Neerabup Industrial Area.

e Thermal processing technologies for the plant’s operations, such as
combustion and incineration, were discarded in favour of biological processes
(with aerobic composting ultimately favoured).

e In early 2003, a Community Engagement Advisory Group was established,
comprising community representatives from across the region, to provide the
MRC with input on the community’s views and values.

e CEAG then led the way in formulation of a unique document, the Community
Partnership Agreement (CPA), which identified 20 different objectives and 66
associated outcomes that it believed the MRC had to deliver with the
Resource Recovery Facility in order for the project to receive broad community
endorsement.

CEAG continues to meet regularly. The CPA will form the basis for community
reporting of performance. See the website www.mrc.wa.gov.au for a copy of the
CPA.

In its review of the MRC’s proposal for the facility, the Environmental Protection
Authority praised the organisation for its comprehensive community consultation
program. It said:

“In progressing this proposal, the MRC has undertaken a comprehensive
consultation which has set new standards for involving the community in the
decision-making process.”

Odour Management

BioVision 2020 Pty Ltd selected Conporec as the composting technology
provider for the Resource Recovery Facility, partly due to the company’s robust
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odour management system. The Conporec composting process is conducted in
aerobic conditions to minimise the potential to cause odour problems.

Ensuring the Biofilter is effective is a key element of the odour management
system.

All of the RRF’s operational buildings are kept under negative pressure, with
several changes of air every hour. The odorous gases are collected as close to
the source as possible and transferred to the Biofilter for treatment.

The Biofilter is designed to filter odorous gases collected from the waste
reception area, the composter feeding area, and the maturation area. The
2000sg-metre Biofilter at Neerabup is designed to ensure that it can effectively
handle the maximum air flow through the system.

Prior to construction of the facility, BioVision 2020 engaged an independent
expert to undertake a peer review of the detailed design of the total odour control
system, with particular emphasis on the design of the Biofilter and the process
control.

The peer review report was submitted to the Department of Environment and
Conservation with the application for works approval, and approved.

SITA is conscious that community acceptance of the RRF at Neerabup is highly
dependent upon the facility effectively managing odour emissions.

SITA considers proactive monitoring of the composting process, including
assessing the performance of the Biofilter, is a critical part of the odour
management system, with the aim of preventing odour emissions being released.

In addition, regular odour monitoring will be undertaken at locations agreed with
the Department of Environment and Conservation.

Reduce, Reuse, Recycle, and Dispose Wisely!

More and more of us are recognising the value to the environment — and our hip-
pockets — of reducing, reusing and recycling the products we use. But, there’s
another step we need to take in making our efforts most effective. We need to be
always mindful of disposing of our waste correctly.

While the resource recovery facility in Neerabup is designed to convert some
100,000 tonnes of organic household waste received each year into about
40,000 tonnes of market-quality compost to boost the quality of our nutrient-
deficient soails, it's really important that the plant’s feedstock — the material we
place in our household green-lidded wheelie bin — doesn’t contain products that
will damage the compost production process.
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The following five steps are being communicated to community members at
every opportunity:

1. Think about what you can do to minimise waste (for example, purchase
less, and choose products with less packaging)

2. Only put household waste into your green-lidded household wheelie bin.
Keep other material for a verge collection.

3. Keep all hazardous household waste (HHW) products (such as oils,
chemicals, batteries) out of your wheelie bin and dispose of them at
Tamala Park, the Recycling Centre Balcatta, or take them to a HHW
Disposal Day.

4. Contact your local Council to find out what should go in your other bin -
the recycling bin - and make the effort to put recyclables there, because if
they go in the household wheelie bin they are likely to end up in landfill,
and that’s a waste of good resources.

5. Contact your local Council to find out what to do with any other products.

Monthly communication tools

In July 2008, the MRC initiated a monthly update advertisement in Community
Newspapers across the region to help build awareness about the facility.

A primary rationale for the advertisement is to provide information that would help
people to put the right material in the right bins and, more importantly, to be
aware of what shouldn’t go in the bin.

Visit the website www.mrc.wa.gov.au and view the complete set of monthly
update advertisements.
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Key achievements in waste education and engagement

As indicated in the results of the Stakeholder Engagement Study, much more
work needs to be done to encourage appropriate community behaviour to ensure
that the items people place in their household bins can be dealt with effectively
at the new Resource Recovery Facility at Neerabup.

The MRC’s response during 2008/09 has been to further develop the Waste
Education portfolio and provide more resources for it to achieve its goals. As at
the end of the financial year, two full-time staff now comprise the Waste
Education Unit, and a solid program of activities is being followed.

The strategic thrust of the program continues to consolidate within four broad
programming categories:

e Strong regional approach, with activity integrated where possible

e Improving general levels of awareness and knowledge

e Targeting individual behavioural change

¢ A focus on the next generation.

The waste hierarchy

The waste hierarchy is central to how the MRC formulates its waste education
programs. The hierarchy is:

AVOID
REDUCE
REUSE
RECYCLE
RECOVER
DISPOSE

As a waste management authority, the MRC has traditionally focused on
disposal, which is the bottom rung of the waste hierarchy.

The MRC provides a best-practice and well-managed landfill operation at Tamala
Park. Each week, Member Councils collect household waste and deliver it in
continually-increasing volumes to Tamala Park to be buried in landfill. Australians
generate about 690 kilograms of waste per year per person, making us the
second highest generators of household waste, behind the United States.

With the commencement of operation of the resource recovery facility in mid-
2009, the MRC has moved to the next rung of the hierarchy — Recovery.
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Recovering waste from the waste stream serves a dual purpose. Not only does it
divert waste from landfill, it also enables value to be recovered from the waste,
as it is converted into a useful and useable commodity. The RRF produces
market-quality compost.

During the year, the MRC has continued its efforts to address other levels on the
waste hierarchy and, in fact, focused much more of its waste education effort in
these areas rather than on disposal. The objectives of the waste education
program are:
o To build good levels of knowledge about waste management;
o To support and encourage appropriate waste behaviours,
particularly at the top-end of the waste hierarchy;
o To work collaboratively with Member Councils in supporting
appropriate waste behaviours.

What we're doing and how we’re going
Many of the initiatives outlined in last year's Annual Report have gone from

strength to strength this year. Visit the website www.mrc.wa.gov.au for full
details.

Tours

Tours are one of the best ways to open people’s eyes about the amount of waste
being generated, and the need for each person to personally join the journey to
reduce, reuse and recycle.

The MRC offers free tours to school groups, businesses, service organisations
and individuals, and also provides a bus subsidy to help people make the trip.

Tour options include:

e Tamala Park Landfill and Recycling Centre;
¢ Recycling Centre Balcatta;

e Resource Recovery Facility, Neerabup; or
e A combination.

At Tamala Park, visitors see how the MRC handles and disposes of an average
1200 tonnes of waste each day. Visitors also visit the Recycling Centre, where
thousands of customers a year find what their looking for at bargain prices, as
well being able to safely dispose of all manner of recyclable goods, and
household hazardous wastes.

An Education Centre is being developed on site and will add an extra dimension
when it is ready for inclusion in the tours program. A feature of the Education
Centre is the artwork made from recycled materials, displays on recycled bed
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frames, and demonstration compost beds and worm farms, which show people
how easy it is to use their own organic waste at home.

Tours will also extend to the MRC/BioVision’s newly-commissioned Resource
Recovery Facility in Neerabup and, during the next year, a Visitors Centre will be
developed on-site at Neerabup to further communicate the waste story.

During 2008/09, the number of tours has steadily increased and, with more
staffing, the capacity to accommodate tours has also increased, with about 150
tour groups conducted. By the end of June 2009 tour demand was at a minimum
of three tours a week and up to a maximum of ten tours per week, with groups
ranging in size from 5 to 75.

The ‘Roaming Recycler’ waste education trailer

The Roaming Recycler waste education trailer is designed to take the waste
education message out to the region.

The display includes:

e Six information panels on recycling and waste minimisation, made from
recycled screen door display boards.

¢ ‘The Recycling Game’ is a board game similar to ‘snakes and ladders,” where
players roll a dice and move forwards or backwards depending on whether
they land on a square with positive or negative recycling/waste minimisation
actions.

e ‘The Recyclaball Game’ is a game where players throw a newspaper ball
(rolled-up newspaper pages) through a hoop and learn about newspaper
recycling.

¢ An interactive display about household hazardous waste (HHW). The display
visitor opens each bin lid to find out about correctly disposing of HHW.

¢ There are also brochures and information sheets to take away.

This year, in its first year of operation, the Roaming Recycler has visited libraries,
community fairs and community events, including Garden Week at Perry Lakes,
Great Gardens workshops, National Tree Day events, Sustainability Festivals,
Conscious Living Expo, Perth Royal Show, the Wanneroo Show, Cappucino
Festival, Little Feet Festival, and many more across the region. It is out and
about almost every weekend during summer, and requests are being received for
attendance at events outside the region.

Earth Carers

The Earth Carers program continued to grow during 2008/09, with close to 100
community members having undertaken the Earth Carers training program.

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009 ITEMSd H



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 115
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

The training program comprises five sessions over a three-week period. Each
session is held at a different ‘waste’ focused venue, such as REmida (a
community organization, which collects industrial waste for distribution to schools
and artists); City Farm (community garden and reuse/recycling collection point in
the City); and Landsdale Farm in Landsdale (education department farm school).

The emphasis is on contribution and exchange, and giving participants an
opportunity to express ideas and frustrations on waste issues. The approach is to
give participants a feeling of connection to the waste we produce and how we
can take action to change the waste path.

For example, the ‘Useful Book’ was produced after the first training program,
from the suggestions and knowledge of the group. The manual contains
information and ideas for reducing and utilising waste and will be updated with
input from future Earth Carers.

In the final training session, we discuss how to communicate the ‘waste
message’ to others at home, work, school, the neighbourhood - or the world! By
session five, the group is inspired and filled with enthusiasm to make some kind
of difference in their community. When assessing the participant knowledge and
awareness of waste issues, we use the same evaluation form at the beginning
and end of the course to gauge the information gained and attitude changes, if
any, of participants.

How do we maintain the momentum? The main method of communication is via
email, to let everyone know of upcoming events of interest, and a quarterly
newsletter. We invite Earth Carers to send in items of interest and these are
often forwarded to the whole group.

The Earth Carers participate in a range of Council-run events where volunteer
help is needed, such as Household Hazardous Waste Disposal Days and events
involving the Roaming Recycler, where they give demonstrations on waste
issues such as recycling or using organic waste. They have given lectures to
community groups, assisted at school presentations and performed in street
theatre.

Earth Carers often take their passion to the workplace. One person has become
affectionately known as the ‘worm lady’ and gives information to work colleagues
and neighbours on the abilities and usefulness of compost worms. Another is on
the ‘green team’ in her workplace. Several people have become involved in
community gardens and others assist City Farm organic markets and the
Earthwise Community Centre in Subiaco.

Case Study 1. Chris works in a large hospital. Following Earth Carers
training, Chris joined into a community garden and assists managing organic
markets at City Farm. Chris found a use for recycled waste packaging from
hospital at the Cat Haven. Chris performs in street theatre for MRC at
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| community events. |

Everyone finds their own level of involvement and application. For some, it may
be simply that the course ‘has really changed what we do and how we think
about things’. Other Earth Carers may connect us to a particular school and offer
support to a staff member in the school garden, or help out for a session at the
Royal Show display.

Case Study 2. Loni was a member of a community garden group before
undertaking Earth Carers training. She extends her knowledge to school
activities, linking MRC staff to the school to set up worm farms. Loni has a
‘waste wise’ stall at school fete and assists in ‘waste free’ lunch days.

Linking in with community organisations is an easy way for people to make
differences without having to create a new project. Part of the rationale for
locating the training in community facilities is to provide opportunities for these
places to be showcased and supported.

Case Study 3. Mim is a primary school teacher and was able to apply her
Earth Carers training to the school curriculum. She links in with the ‘Waste
Wise’ schools program and encourages staff to bring students on tours of the
MRC'’s waste facilities and to link ‘waste’ issues to the broader curriculum.

Household Hazardous Waste Disposal Days

A practical service was introduced during 2009 — a program of temporary
Disposal Days across the metropolitan area, funded through the Landfill Levy.
The aim of the program is to achieve the safe storage and disposal of Household
Hazardous Waste and to obtain reliable data on the quantities and types of HHW
collected in Western Australia.

Household Hazardous Waste includes household products containing chemicals
or substances that can be harmful to people and/or pets, or the environment,
including a broad range of products that are flammable, toxic, explosive or
corrosive.

The Temporary Disposal Days enable the public to drop off and safely dispose of
these unwanted materials. All materials collected are reused, recycled or
disposed of safely. At a range of locations across the region, the Temporary
Disposal Days make it easy and convenient for people to dispose safely of HHW
rather than putting it in the household bin. This practice is particularly important
with the commencement of operation of the RRF at Neerabup, as HHW in the
waste stream could affect the quality of compost produced at the facility.

At the same time, the MRC is communicating the AVOID message to provide
information about alternatives to the use of HHW products.
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One size doesn'’t fit all

The MRC is looking to employ many different strategies to target different groups
in order to get the waste message across to as broad a part of the population as
possible. Different things appeal to different people and developing the materials
to support this strategy will be an ongoing task.

Some of our other initiatives include:
Tales with a Twist puppet show

The MRC'’s association with Tales with a Twist's Kasper and all that Rubbish
puppet show began in 2006 to raise community awareness in the lead up to the
opening of the Resource Recovery Facility at Neerabup. Our goal was to educate
community members, particularly children, about the part they play in sustainable
waste management.

The message has expanded now to educate about Reduce Reuse Recycle and
topical issues such as the correct disposal of Household Hazardous Waste. The
fun and informative puppet show medium has particular appeal to the younger
audience and has become a valuable tool in raising awareness of waste issues
particularly within schools.

Following performances, the MRC regularly receives comments, drawings and
letters inspired by the show, and demonstrating key learnings from the show.
This feedback is a positive indication of the way the shows are received.

Information distribution
This includes:

e In conjunction with member Councils, the MRC funds the production of Waste
and Recycling Guides (fridge calendars) for distribution into households

e Development and deployment of static display material for use at shopping
centres, conferences and libraries

e Development and distribution of brochures and pamphlets to support the work
of the education team ie Earth Carers, Tours, and Roaming Recycler

¢ Fact sheets and project work sheets for tour groups

Events and projects to raise waste awareness
This includes:

e Household Hazardous Waste Disposal Days,
e Apple e-waste collection weekend
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e Events and public place recycling

e Working collaboratively with other education officers of the other Regional
Councils to share resources, exchange ideas and develop consistent
messaging and procedures across the metropolitan area

Through these and other initiatives, the Waste Education team at MRC is hoping
to make the issues of waste more interesting, more appealing, and easier for
people to take action.
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

OPERATING REVENUES

The Financial Statements included in this report reflect that the Mindarie Regional Council has a sound
financial position and should be read in conjunction with the accounting policies and precepts adopted by the
Regional Councit.

Revenues from the weighbridge charges (excluding recyclables) totalled $20,957,204 which reflects an
increase of 8% over the previous period. This is mainly due to an increase in fees for members and non-
members.

Interest income on invested funds of $696,927 is comparable to last year but slightly higher than the budget
due to the competitive rates received during the Global Financial Crisis.

The Council at their meeting of 18 August 2005, approved that the annual operational surplus (2008/09 -
$4,124,471) will be retained by MRC to meet their on going operational and capital requirements going forward
in line with the Strategic Financial Plan. This was re-affirmed again at the Council meeting of 3rd July 2008.

RESERVES

The only Reserve under the Local government (Financial Management) Regulations 1966 Section 27 (g) as at
30 June 2009 is as follows:

Site Monitoring Reserve

Opening Balance 137,999
Transfer to Accumulated Surplus 0
137,999
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OPERATING EXPENSES
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The operational expenditure for 2008-09 of $19,229,445 was an increase of approximately 14% over last year.

The expenditure generally has gone up in line with the higher level of activities during the financial year. The main area of
increases are as summarised below, which were offset by a drop in interest cost due to the lower rates of interest:-

- Amortisation Costs

$5,786,121

increase is mainly due to the higher cost of excavation.

- Materials and Contract Costs

$4,140,780
the higher cost is related to the increase in expenditure in respect of rec

computing cost ( related mainly to the upgrade of the Weighbridge Systems).

- Employee Costs

$3,806,073

ycling contractors, zero waste plan and monitoring and

increased expenditure is mainly due to the higher number of employees in view of increase of activities over the last few years

- Other Expenses

The comparison to previous years operating expenses is shown in the table below.

$3,140,054
the higher cost is mainly due to the increase in the DEP Levy rate.

$ per Tonne
ITEM 2008/2009 2007/2008 2006/2007 2005/2006 2004/2005
Direct Operational Costs 24.82 21.38 19.31 18.36 19.49
Transfers to Reserves (Provisions) 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.37 242
Amortisation of Excavation Works 13.50 10.28 7.15 3.49 3.42
DEP Landfill Levy 6.30 5.52 4.93 2.90 2.96
Interest on Loans 3.37 3.69 3.34 2.34 0.95
Depreciation 2.40 1.91 2.37 2.24 2.07
Land Lease Fee 1.51 1.42 1.48 0.68 0.49
Total 51.90 44.20 38.58 32.38 31.80
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DISPOSAL FEES AND CHARGES
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Disposal fees and charges, for 2008/2009, are shown in the table below, as dollars per tonne, unless otherwise indicated.

Item

2008/2009
(includes GST)

1. Member Local Governments
- General Waste

59.40

- Inert Material Not applicable
- Greenwaste (uncontaminated) Not applicable
- Bales _23.83

2. (a) General Entry - General Waste 100.00
Minimum charge for entry to site
- Utilities, Vans, Trailers, Trucks etc 8.00
- Cars, Station Wagons 8.00

(b) Swill or Semi Liquid Waste

Not accepted

(c) In the event of weighbridge unavailability the following fees shall apply to (a) above

Non compacted waste

Trailer 1.8m x 1.2m or less 30.00
Trailer larger than 1.8m x 1.2m per wheel 30.00
Compacted waste
All vehicles per wheel - truck or trailer 60.00
(d) Asbestos - whole loads 180.00
(e) Unweighed Load (Drive-Aways) 50.00
3. Special Burials (Supervised)
At the discretion of the Site Controller in addition to the tonnage rates 160.00
4. Controlled waste per tonne 180.00
5. Special Commercial ltems
In lieu of 1 to 4 above the following apply:
(a) Motor bodies and old machinery each item 25.00
(b) Animal carcasses
(i) Small domestic animals 8.00
(i) Large animals (Sheep and cattle etc.) 20.00
(c) Tyres (Maximum disposal 4) 15.00
Per tonne sliced 300.00
(d) Safe sharp containers
(i) 7 litre or less each 13.00
(i) Over 7 litres per litre 1.30
(e) Light weight bulk material less 300 kg per cubic metre 30.00

6. Infringement Agency Costs
(a) Debt Collection Fee

(b) Dishonoured Cheque Fee

Debt Collection
Agency's Costs plus
20% Admin Fee

15.00
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TONNAGES
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The amount of waste received for disposal to landfill at Tamala Park, over the period
since commencement of operations, is tabulated below:

Period / Year Ended

Tonnes

25 Feb 1991 - 30 June 1991
1 July 1991 - 28 June 1992
29 June 1992 - 27 June 1993
28 June 1993 - 26 June 1994
27 June 1994 - 30 June 1995
1 July 1995 - 30 June 1996

1 July 1996 - 30 June 1997

1 July 1997 - 30 June 1998

1 July 1998 - 30 June 1999
1 July 1999 - 30 June 2000

1 July 2000 - 30 June 2001

1 July 2001 - 30 June 2002

1 July 2002 - 30 June 2003

1 July 2003 - 30 June 2004

1 July 2004 - 30 June 2005

1 July 2005 - 30 June 2006

1 July 2006 - 30 June 2007

1 July 2007 - 30 June 2008

1 July 2008 - 30 June 2009

32,991
150,487
156,024
151,945
163,818
179,006
186,875
225,620
249,114
336,502
339,285
331,576
319,756
328,655
333,437
349,156
352,544
380,189
370,607

Total

4,937,587

The total tonnes reported in 2008-09 includes 5,756 tonnes diverted at the Resource Recovery Facility
(7.868 tonnes of processable waste which was sent to the Resource Recovery Facility during its

commissioning period less 2,112 tonnes of bales received at the landfill)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMPARISONS

The amount of waste received for disposal to landfill at Tamala Park, by customer, for 2008/2009 in
‘comparison to 2007/2008 is tabulated below:

2008/2009

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009

2007/2008 Variance
Tonnes Tonnes Tonnes %

City of Perth 14,470 15,251 (781) (5.12)
City of Wanneroo 65,766 70,199 (4,433) (6.31)
City of Joondalup 63,372 65,267 (1,895) (2.90)
Town of Cambridge 10,551 11,639 (1,088) (9.35)
Town of Vincent 14,203 13,824 379 2.74
Town of Victoria Park 12,926 13,613 (687) (5.05)
City of Stirling 86,447 86,857 (410) (0.47)
Total Members 267,735 276,650 (8,915) (3.22)
City of South Perth 14,807 5,306 9,501 179.06
Other Casuals 47,133 65,838 (18,705) (28.41)
Total Casuals 61,940 71,144 (9,204) (12.94)
329,675 347,794 (18,119) (5.21)

City of Stirling - Inert Bales 22,967 25,703 (2,736) (10.64)
City of Wanneroo - Inert Bales 17,965 6,692 11,273 168.45
Grand Total 370,607 380,189 (9,582) (2.52)
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PLANT

The status of key items of plant held by Council as at 30 June 2009 is tabulated below:
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PURCHASED

REGISTRATION

Caterpillar 12G Motorised Grader 9LO775 Nov-99 Second Hand
TANA Compactor 36 Tonne 1CFM425 May-06 New
Water Truck . 1AHW218 Aug-98 New
Caterpillar 242 Skid Steerl.oader 1CHE149 Jun-06 New
Nissan Navara 1CFN586 - Jun-06 New
Nissan 4WD - Fire Fighting Vehicle 1BLLO79 Oct-03 Second Hand
Nissan Patrol 1CFN592 May-06 New
Hitachi Articulated Dump Truck Jan-05 New
Hino Bin Truck 1BTN433 Sep-04 New
Nissan Navara DX Dual Cab 1CJC957 Oct-06 New
Caterpillar Multi Terrain Loader 1CUI247 Mar-08 New
Ford Falcon GE 1CVR980 Jun-08 New
Ford Territory 1CRM552 Dec-07 New
Caterpillar 966H Loader 1CVT009 Jun-08 New
Caterpillar 996H Loader 1CVT010 Jun-08 New
Caterpillar 2.5T Diesel Forklift T18C53121 Sep-08 New
Generator Dec-08 New
Hino 2008 Bin Truck 1CZT036 Dec-08 New
Bomag Refuse Compactor May-09 New
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STATEMENT BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The attached Financial Statements, including supporting notes and information, of Mindarie
Regional Council for the financial year ended 30 June 2009 are in my opinion properly
drawn up to present fairly the financial position of the Mindarie Regional Council at 30 June

_ 2009 and the results of its operations for the financial year then ended in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards and in compliance with the provisions of the Local
Government Act 1995 and the regulations under that Act.

Signed on the day of

Kevin F Poynton
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent audit report to the members of Mindarie Regional Council

Insert page 1
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

Statement of Comprehensive Income by Nature and Type

for the year ended 30 June 2009

ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
Notes  2008/2009 2008/2009 2007/2008
$ $ $
Revenue from Ordinary Activities
Grants and Subsidies 27 105,345 73,000 208,789
Contributions, Reimbursements and Donations 503,786 220,400 173,175
Fees and Charges 26 21,203,710 20,161,500 19,834,880
Gas Generation Services 2 (a) 851,406 450,000 580,153
Interest Earnings 2 (a) 696,927 544,100 696,239
Other Revenue 2 (a) - 11,656 10,200 16,567
Total Operating Income 23,372,830 21,459,200 21,509,803
Operating Expenses
Employee Costs (3,806,073) (3,746,540)  (3,391,694)
Materials and Contracts (4,140,780) (3,945,450) (3,658,257)
Utilities (95,763) (101,600) (78,884)
Depreciation 2 (a) (890,903) (1,196,777) (725,057)
Borrowing Cost Expenses 2(a) (1,247,265) (1,506,400) (1,402,544)
Insurance (122,486) (127,900) (112,847)
Amortisation 2(a@) (5,786,121) (4,837,500) (4,555,813)
Other Expenses (3,140,054) (3,322,000)  (2,878,758)
Total Operating Expenses (19,229,445) (18,784,167) (16,803,854).
Sub Total 4,143,385 2,675,033 4,705,949
Transfer to Investing Activities
Profit on Sale of Assets 7,000 7,948 260,006
Loss on Sale of Assets (25,914) 0 (10,730)
(18,914) 7,948 249,276
NET RESULT 4,124,471 2,682,981 4,955,225
This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
Statement of Comprehensive Income by Program

for the year ended 30 June 2009

ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
2008/2009  2008/2009  2007/2008
$ $ $
Operating Revenues (Refer Notes 1,2)
Community Amenities 23,372,830 21,459,200 21,509,803
Total Operating Revenues 23,372,830 21,459,200 21,509,803
Operating Expenses (Refer Notes 1,2)
Governance (119,871) (101,200) (772,800)
Community Amenities (16,853,263) (15,984,767) (13,958,810)
Other Property and Services (1,009,046) (1,191,800) (669,700)
Total Operating Expenses (17,982,180) (17,277,767) (15,401,310)
Profit on Sale of Assets
Community Amenities 7,000 7,948 260,006
Total Profit on Sale 7,000 7,948 260,006
Loss on Sale of Assets
Community Amenities (25,914) (0) (10,730)
Total Loss on Sale (25,914) (0) (10,730)
Borrowing Costs Expense (Refer Notes 2,24)
Community Amenities (1,247,265) (1,506,400)  (1,402,544)
Total Borrowing Costs Expense (1,247,265) (1,506,400) (1,402,544)
NET RESULT 4,124,471 2,682,981 4,955,225
This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2009

ACTUAL ACTUAL
2008/2009 2007/2008
$ $
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Other Equivalents 3 11,459,868 12,443,104
Trade and Other Receivables 4 2,063,222 2,348,883
Inventories 5 8,927 15,871
Other Current Assets 6 634,812 399,493
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 14,166,829 15,207,351
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property Plant and Equipment 7 8,252,022 6,609,219
Infrastructure 8 466,273 507,583
Excavation Work 9 19,696,294 18,440,193
Resource Recovery Facility 10 10,308,143 5,622,873
Rehabilitation Asset 11 2,320,719 2,832,719
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 41,043,451 34,012,587
TOTAL ASSETS 55,210,280 49,219,938
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and Other Payables 12 3,267,655 2,719,381
Provisions 14 488,626 425,633
Borrowings 13 2,432,725 2,306,206
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,189,006 5,451,220
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions 14 118,217 67,443
Borrowings 13 19,501,151 18,872,976
Rehabilitation Provision 14 4,803,891 4,531,891
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 24,423,259 23,472,310
TOTAL LIABILITIES 30,612,265 28,923,530
NET ASSETS 24,598,015 20,296,408
EQUITY
Retained Surplus 22,315,105 18,190,634
Reserve 15 137,999 137,999
Council Contribution 17 2,144,911 1,967,775
TOTAL EQUITY 24,598,015 20,296,408

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2009

RETAINED SURPLUS
Balance as at 1 July

Change in Net Assets Resulting from Operations
Balance as at 30 June

RESERVES - CASHED / INVESTMENTS BACKED
Balance as at 1 July

Transfer (to)/from Reserves

Balance as at 30 June

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION CONSTITUENT COUNCILS

Balance as at 1 July
Capital Contribution from Constituent Councils
Balance as at 30 June

TOTAL EQUITY

Note

15

Page 129

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ACTUAL ACTUAL
2008/2009  2007/2008
$ $
18,190,634 13,235,409
4,124,471 4,955,225
22,315,105 18,190,634
137,999 138,029
0 (30)
137,999 137,999
1,967,775 1,816,303
177,136 151,472
2,144,911 1,967,775
24,598,015 20,296,408
Page 45
ITEM 8.1.6



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 30 June 2009

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts

Grants and Subsidies

Contributions, Reimbursements and Donations
Service Charges

Fees and Charges

Interest Earnings

Goods and Services Tax

Other Revenue

Payments

Employee Costs
Materials and Contracts
Utilities

Interest Expenses
Insurance

Goods and Services Tax
Other Expenditure

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Payments for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment

Payments for Construction of Infrastructure

Council Contributions

Payments for Excavation Works and Resource Recovery Facility Costs
Proceeds from Sale of Plant and Equipment

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Repayment of Loans

Proceeds from New Loans

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Financing Activities

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents Held

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note

18(b)

22

24
24
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ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
2008/2009 2008/2009 2007/2008
$ $ $
211,070 73,000 64,952
295,971 220,400 618,501
936,547 0 580,153
23,637,243 20,611,500 22,416,118
803,671 544,100 559,312
1,752,191 0 1,811,007
26,577 10,200 6,108
27,663,270 21,459,200 26,056,152
(3,791,185) (3,558,740) (3,133,552)
(5,262,783) (4,096,450) (4,119,013)
(103,201) (101,600) (296,994)
(1,271,176) (1,506,400) (1,396,719)
(148,466) (127,900) (111,361)
(2,247,020) 0 (2,544,468)
(2,771,817) (3,171,000) (2,822,836)
(15,595,648) (12,562,090) (14,424,944)
12,067,622 8,897,110 11,631,208
(3,746,991) (15,393,300) (647,340)
(44,050) (1,623,600) (46,216)
85,809 177,136 0
(10,237,320) (9,250,000) (4,555,303)
137,000 257,000 325,045
{(13,805,552) (25,832,764) (4,923,814)
(2,245,306) (2,245,306) (4,480,1 95)
3,000,000 14,380,000 1,429,597
754,694 12,134,694 (3,050,598)
(983,236) (4,800,960) 3,656,796
12,443,104 12,443,104 8,786,308
11,459,868 7,642,144 12,443,104
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Statement of Financial Activity

for the year ended 30 June 2009

Revenues

Grants and Subsidies

Contributions, Reimbursements and Donations
Fees and Charges - non member and casuals
Gas Generation Services

Interest Earnings

Other Revenue

Profit on Disposal of Assets

Total Revenues

Expenses

Employee Costs

Materials and Contracts
Utilities

Depreciation

Borrowing Cost Expenses
Insurance

Amortisation

Other Expenses

Loss on Disposal of Assets

Adjustment for Non-Cash Operating

Profit/(Loss) on Disposal of Assets

Movement in Accrued Expenses

Movement in Accrued Interest

Movement in Accrued Salaries and Wages

Movement in Employee Benefit Provisions

Movement in Prepayments

Movement in pre-operating expenses for Resource Recovery Facility
Movement in Accrued Income

Movement in Trade Creditors relating to investing activities
Movement in Capital Council Contributions

Council Contributions relating to investing activities
Depreciation of Assets

Amortisation

Total Operating less non cash adjustments
Capital Expenditures

Payments for Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
Payments for Construction of Infrastructure

Payments for Excavation Works and Resource Recovery Facility Costs

Funding Sources

Repayments of Loans

Proceeds from Loans

Proceeds from Sale of Plant and Equipment
Council Contributions

Total Capital Expenditures and Revenue

ADD: Estimated Surplus/(Deficit) July 1 B/Fwd
LESS: Estimated Surplus/(Deficit) June 30 C/Fwd

User Charges - Member Councils

Note

24
24
22

25
25

25
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ACTUAL BUDGET
2008/2009 2008/2009
$ $

105,345 73,000
503,786 220,400
5,851,032 4,265,900
851,406 450,000
696,927 544,100
11,656 10,200
7,000 7,948
8,027,152 5,571,548
(3,806,073) (3,746,540)
(4,140,780) (3,945,450)
(95,763) (101,600)
(890,903) (1,196,777)
(1,247,265) (1,506,400)
(122,486) (127,900)
(5,786,121) (4,837,500)

(3,140,054) (3,322,000)
(25,914) 0
(19,255,359) (18,784,167)
18,914 (7,948)
955,207 0
(24,396) 0
(111,057) 0
113,767 0
(34,484) 0
39,049 0
(200,835) 0
397,510 0
177,136 0
(85,809) 0
890,903 1,196,777
5,786,121 4,837,500
(3,306,181) (7,186,290)
(3,746,991) (15,393,300)
(44,050) (1,623,600)
(10,237,320) (9,250,000)
(14,028,361) (26,266,900)
(2,245,306) (2,245,306)
3,000,000 14,380,000
137,000 257,000
85,809 177,136
977,503 12,568,830

(16,357,039)

(20,884,360)

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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12,755,353 11,639,210

11,750,992 6,650,450

1,004,361 4,988,760

(15,352,678) (15,895,600)
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the
concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is
reported.

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of this financial report:

(a) Basis of Preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards (as they apply to local governments), other mandatory professional reporting requirements, the Local Government Act
1985 and accompanying regulations. The report has also been prepared on an accrual basis under the convention of historical
cost accounting.

The financial report has been prepared on the basis of historical cost and except where stated, does not take into account
changing money values or current valuations of non-current assets. Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given
in exchange for assets.

Compliance with IFRSs

International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") form the basis of Australian Accounting Standards adopted by the AASB,
being AIFRSs. The financial report of the Mindarie Regional Council complies with IFRSs and interpretations adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board except as follows:

- AIFRSs include specific provisions relating to not-for-profit entities. These are not included in IFRSs.

- Australian Accounting Standard AAS 27 Financial Reporting by Local Governments also applies and there is no equivalent
standard in IFRSs

The principle areas of non compliance with IFRS include:
- the recognition of non-reciprocal revenue; and
- the definition of value in use for the purposes of estimating the recoverable amount of impaired assets.

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have been issued or amended but are not yet effective have not been
adopted by the Council for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2009.

Council is of the view the new standards or amendments will have no direct impact on the amounts included in the financial
report although the change may impact upon the way in which some financial information is disclosed.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances; the results of which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The calculation of amortisation on the excavation assets is based on specific estimates and judgements on the total capital costs
and capacity of the landfil. The amortisation rate charged is reviewed regularly and is based upon a standard engineering cost
per cubic metre of landfill. The amortisation expense is arrived at by applying the amortisation rate to the actual tonnages sent to
tandfill during the financial year.

(b} The Local Government Reporting Entity

All funds through which the Council controls resources to carry on its functions have been included in the financial statements
forming part of this financial report.

The financial statemenits are prepared on the basis of a single consolidated fund (Municipal Fund).

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL [TEM 8.1.6
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

(c) Goods and Services Tax

In accordance with recommended practice revenues, expenses and assets capitalised are recognised net of any goods and
services tax (GST) recoverable. Receivables and payables in the Balance Sheet are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating cash
flows.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible. to known amounts of cash and which are subject to any insignificant
risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

(e) Receivables
Trade receivables and other receivables are recarded at amounts due less any allowance for doubtful debts.

Collectibility of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible are written off when
identified. An allowance for doubtful debts is raised when there is objective evidence that they will not be collectible.

(f) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion.

(g) Acquisition of Assets

Assets acquired are recorded at the cost of acquisition, being the purchase consideration determined as at the date of
acquisition plus costs incidental to the acquisition.

In the event that settlement of all or part of the cash consideration given in the acquisition of an asset is deferred, the fair value of
the purchase consideration is determined by discounting the amounts payable in the future to their present value as at the date
of acquisition.

(h) Plant and Equipment; Excavation Work and Resource Recovery Facility
Property, Plant and Equipment, Infrastructure, Excavation Work and Resource Recovery Facility assets are brought to account
at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation, amortisation or impairment losses.

Fixed Assets are written down to recoverable amount where the carrying value of any fixed asset exceeds recoverable amount.
In determining the recoverable amount of fixed assets, the expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present value.

(i) Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment, including buildings but excluding freehold land. All non-current
assets having a limited useful life are separately and systematically depreciated over their useful lives in a manner which reflects
the consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in those assets.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis, using rates which are reviewed each reporting period. The following estimated
useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:

Buildings - 20 years
Plant and Equipment 6 2/3 years
Furniture and Fittings 5 years
Roads, Landscaping, Fences, Walls 20 years
and Security Lighting

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

(j) Leased Assets

The council has no leased assets classified as finance leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a basis which reflects the pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

(k) Investments and Other Financial Assets
Allinvestments are cash and cash equivalents that are valued at cost and interest on those investments is recognised when it
accrues. The Council has no non-cash investments.

(1) Impairment
In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards the Council's assets, other than inventories, are assessed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication that they may be impaired.

For non-cash generating assets such as roads, public buildings and the like, value in use is represented by the depreciated
replacement cost of the asset.

No assets are considered impaired as at the reporting date.

(m) Accounts Payable

Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the council becomes obliged to make future payments
resulting from the purchase of goods and services. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition.

(n) Employee Benefits

A provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, long service leave, and
sick leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably. Under the
Mindarie Regional Council Union Collective W orkplace Agreement of 2008 employees are paid on termination an amount for
unused sick leave based on a graduated entitlement defined in the agreement.

(i) Wages, salaries, annual leave, sick leave and other employee benefits (short term benefits)

The provision for employees' benefits made in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave, and other employee
benefits expected to be settled within 12 months represents the amount that the Council has present obligation to pay resulting
from employees' services provided to balance date. The provision has been calculated at nominal amounts based on
remuneration rates the Council expects to pay and includes related on-costs.

(i) Long service leave (Long term benefits)

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of the services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration
is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yield at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and
currency that match closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. Where Council does not have the unconditional
right to defer settlement beyond 12 months, the liability is recognised as a current liability.

(o) Interest bearing Loans and Borrowings

Allloans and borrowings are recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured using their applicable repayment
schedules. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised in the income statement.

Borrowings are classified as non-current liabilities with repayments due in the 12 months after balance date recognised as
current liabilities.

Borrowing Costs are recognised as an expense when incurred, except where they are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset and the commencement date for capitalisation is after 1 January 2009. Where
this is the case, they are capitalised as part of the cost of the particular asset.
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

(p) Superannuation

In line with Superannuation Guarantee Statutory requirements, the Council contributes a mandatory 9% contribution of the
normal salary of employees, for qualifying employees, to the employees nominated superannuation fund. [n addition to this,
Council matches contributions made by employees to these nominated superannuation funds of up to 7%.

(q) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Council has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that any outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of any outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligation may be small.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is probable that recovery will be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

A provision is recognised for distributions to members when they have been determined by the Council.

(r) Restoration, Rehabilitation and Monitoring Costs

The Council complies with the full provision method of accounting for restoration, rehabilitation and site monitoring costs.
Charges are made to expenses based on the estimated costs of restoring, rehabilitating and monitoring the Tamala Park site.
The rate charged is reviewed annually and is based upon a standard engineering cost per cubic metre of landfill, and the latest
resources calculation. Engineering rates differ according to the nature of the obligation to provide the service.

(s) Future Capping Expenditure

The liability for estimated future capping expenditure is provided under Rehabilitation Provision on a phase by phase basis and
discounted to the present value with the unwinding of the discount being charged to the Operating Statement under finance
costs within the amortisation charge. The discounted present value of the future capping expenditure is also capitalised as part
of the Rehabilitation Asset and is amortised on a straight line basis. Changes in estimates are recognised prospectively with
corresponding adjustments to the provision and associated costs.

(t) Revenue Recognition

Waste Service Charge
Revenue from waste services is recognised on receipt of waste.

Disposal of Assets
Revenue from the disposal of assets is recognised when the Council has passed control of the goods or other assets to the
buyer.

Rendering of Services
Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract.

Gas Generation Services
Revenue from the generation of gas services is recognised on an accrual basis. Proceeds on sale of Renewable Energy
Certificates (REC's) are only recognised when the REC's are sold.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Contributions of Assets
Grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as revenues when the Council obtains control over the assets

comprising the contributions.

Where conditional contributions are received in advance and therefore recognised as revenues in that accounting period and the
conditions on which those funds are to be expended are undischarged at the reporting date, the nature of the amounts
pertaining to those undischarged conditions are disclosed in notes to the financial statements.
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MINDARIE REGIONAL. COUNCIL
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

Contributions received in advance and subject to undischarged conditions are classified as "Restricted Assets" and reported
separately in the notes accompanying the financial statements. These notes also disclose the amount of the contributions
recognised as revenues in a previous reporting period that were obtained in respect of the Council's operations for the current
reporting period.

(u) Fair Value
All assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet, whether they are carried at cost or at fair value, are recognised at
amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair values unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.

The aggregate fair value and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the balance sheet and in
the notes to and forming part of the financial report.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivable and payables are assumed to approximates of their fair
values. The fair values of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that is available to the Council for similar financial instruments.

(v) Comparative and Rounding Off Figures

Where required, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation for the current financial year.
All figures shown in this annual financial report, other than a rate in the dollar, are rounded to the nearest dollar.

(w) Current and Non-Current Classification

In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is given to the time when each asset
or liability is expected to be settled. The asset or liability is classified as current if it is expected to be settled within the next 12.
months, being the Council's operational cycle. In the case of liabilities where Council does not have the unconditional right to
defer settlement beyond 12 months, such as long service leave, the liability is classified as current even if not expected to be
settled within the next 12 months. )

(x) Approval of Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Cduncil approved the 2008-09 Annual Report and Financial Statements at their meeting of 10 December 2009.

(y) Budget Comparative Figures

Unless otherwise stated, the budget comparative figures shown in this annual financial report relate to the original budget
estimate for the relevant item of disclosure.

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009 ITEM 8.b8,c 52



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL :
- ORBINRRYRI B URIE G INEAN N OIEK..- 10 DECEMBER 2009

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

ACTUAL ACTUAL
2008/2009 2007/2008
2. REVENUES AND EXPENSES $ $
2 (a) Results from Operating Activities
The result from operating activities includes:
2 (i) Charging as Expenses
Amortisation
Excavation Works 5,002,121 3,906,813
Finance Charge - decommissioning provision 272,000 206,000
Decommissioning Asset 512,000 443,000
5,786,121 4,555,813
Auditors Remuneration
Financial Audit 26,250 25,000
Operational Audits 0 10,500
The operational audit for 2008-09 was conducted using internal resources.
Depreciation
Land and Buildings 154,435 124,708
Furniture and Equipment 90,722 48,272
Plant and Machinery 580,232 495,174
Infrastructure 65,514 56,903
890,903 725,057
Borrowing Cost Expenses
Interest Expenses Loans (refer note 24) 1,179,765 1,339,294
Loan Expenses (refer note 24) 67,500 63,250
1,247,265 1,402,544
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
2(ii) Crediting as Revenues: 2008/2009 2008/2009 2007/2008
$ $ $
Interest Earnings
Investments - Other Funds 696,927 544,100 696,239
Gas Generation Services
- Gas Sales 851,406 450,000 580,153
Other Revenue
- Other Revenue 11,656 10,200 16,567
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2. REVENUES AND EXPENSES

(b) Statement of Objective

In order to discharge it's responsibilities to the community, the Council has developed a set of operational and
financial objectives. These objectives have been established both on an overall basis, reflected by the
Council's Mission Statement, and for each of its broad activities (programs).

MISSION STATEMENT

To provide effective, cost efficient and environmentally sound waste and other resource managements
services for.the benefit of the region.

The Council is dedicated to providing high quality services to the community through its operations which
encompass the following service orientated activities: )

GOVERNANCE
Objective - To provide a decision making process for the efficient allocation of scarce resources.

Activities - Administration and operation of facilities and services to Member Councils; Other costs that relate
to the tasks of assisting elected members and customers on matters which do not concern specific Council
Services. :

COMMUNITY AMENITIES
Objective - To provide services required by the Community.
Activities - The operation of Waste Facilities.

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 54 -
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

ACTUAL ACTUAL
2008/2009 2007/2008
$ $
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Unrestricted 11,321,869 12,305,105
Restricted 137,999 137,999
11,459,868 12,443,104
The following restrictions have been imposed by
regulations or other externally imposed requirements:
Site Rehabilitation Reserve 137,999 137,999
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade Receivables 1,993,800 2,348,883
Less Provision for Doubtful Debts (989) 0
1,992,811 2,348,883
Goods and Services Tax Receivable 70,411 0
2,063,222 2,348,883
INVENTORIES
Fuel 8,927 15,871
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid Expenses 252,463 257,028
Accrued Income 343,300 142,465
Others - Pre-operating expenses 39,049 0
634,812 399,493
Page 55
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Buildings - Cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Furniture and Fittings - Cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Plant and Equipment
LLess Accumulated Depreciation
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ACTUAL ACTUAL
2008/2009 2007/2008
$ $
5,943,031 5,323,399
(1,530,668)  (1,376,233)
4,412,363 3,947,166
736,893 591,724
(459,360) (368,638)
277,533 223,086
5,472,655 4,328,850
(1,910,529)  (1,889,883)
3,562,126 2,438,967
8,252,022 6,609,219

Effective from 1 July 2004, Council deemed the carrying amount of land and buildings to be their

cost.

Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment between the
beginning and the end of the current financial year.

Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions

Disposals - cost

Depreciation Disposal
Depreciation expense

Carrying amount at the end of year

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Land & Furniture & Plant &

Buildings Fittings Equipment Total
3,947,166 223,086 2,438,967 6,609,219
619,632 145,169 1,859,305 2,624,106
0 0 (715,500) (715,500)
0 0 559,586 559,586
(154,435) (90,722) (580,232) (825,389)
4,412,363 277,533 3,562,126 8,252,022
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for the year ended 30 June 2009

ACTUAL ACTUAL
2008/2009 2007/2008

$ $
8 INFRASTRUCTURE
Infrastructure 1,330,177 1,305,973
Less Accumulated Depreciation (863,904) (798,390)
466,273 507,583

Effective from 1 July 2004, Council deemed the carrying amount of all infrastructure assets to be their cost.
Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts of each class of Infrastructure between the beginning and the end of the

current financial year. .
ACTUAL

2008/2009
. $
Other
Landscaping Infrastructure Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 188,353 319,230 507,583
Additions 0 24,204 24,204
Depreciation expense (17,817) (47,697) (65,514)
Carrying amount at the end of year 170,536 295,737 466,273

ACTUAL ACTUAL
2008/2009 2007/2008

$ $
9 EXCAVATION WORK
Excavation Works - Complete 23,831,511 23,831,511
Less Amortisation (13,745,305) (8,743,184)
10,086,206 15,088,327
Excavation Works - In Progress 9,610,088 3,351,866

19,696,294 18,440,193

Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts of each class of Excavation between the beginning and the end of the
current financial year.

ACTUAL
2008/2009
$
Excavation
, Stage 2 Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 18,440,193 18,440,193
Additions 6,258,222 6,258,222
Amortisation (5,002,121) (5,002,121)
Carrying amount at the end of year 19,696,294 19,696,294
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for the year ended 30 June 2009

ACTUAL ACTUAL
2008/2009  2007/2008

$ $
10 RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY
Resource Recovery Facility 8,215,143 5,622,873
Pre-operating expenses relating to commissioning period 2,093,000 0

10,308,143 5,622,873

The Resource Recovery Facility was commissioned on 16 July 09.

Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts of each class of Resource Recovery Facility between the beginning and

the end of the current financial year.
ACTUAL

2008/2009
$

Resource
Recovery

. Facility Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,622,873

Additions _ 2,592,270
8,215,143

Pre-operating expenses relating to commissioning period 2,093,000
Carrying amount at the end of year 10,308,143

ACTUAL ACTUAL
2008/2009  2007/2008

$ $
11 REHABILITATION ASSET
Decommissioning Asset for Capping Stage 2 4,041,821 4,041,821
Less Amortisation (1,721,102)  (1,209,102)

2,320,719 2,832,719

Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts of each class of Rehabilitation Assets between the beginning and the
end of the current financial year.

ACTUAL
2008/2009
$
Stage 2 Stage 2
Stage 2 Phase 2 Phase 2
Phase 1 (East) (West) Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,149,201 786,518 897,000 2,832,719
Amortisation (383,000) (60,000) (69,000) (512,000)
Carrying amount at the end of year 766,201 726,518 828,000 2,320,719
MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL ITEM sﬁ?@e 58

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009



IMEOUNEMINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
MINBRYHEA RECHIGNEA

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

12

13

14

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current

Sundry Creditors

Accrued Expenses

Accrued Salaries and Wages
Goods and Services tax Payable

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Current

Loan Principal

Non-Current

Loan Principal

PROVISIONS

Current

Provision for Annual Leave and Sick Leave
Provision for Long Service Leave

Non Current
Provision for Long Service Leave

Rehabilitation Provision

Decommissioning Provision for Capping Stage 2 Phase 1
Decommissioning Provision for Capping Stage 2 Phase 2 (East)
Decommissioning Provision for Capping Stage 2 Phase 2 (West)
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ACTUAL ACTUAL
2008/2009 2007/2008
$ $
1,643,026 1,894,822
1,529,129 598,318
95,500 206,557
0 19,684
3,267,655 2,719,381
2,432,725 2,306,206
19,501,151 18,872,976
21,933,876 21,179,182
312,043 291,906
176,583 133,727
488,626 425,633
118,217 67,443
118,217 67,443
606,843 493,076
2,901,373 2,737,373
951,518 897,518
951,000 897,000
4,803,891 4,531,891
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

15 RESERVES - CASH /INVESTMENT BACKED
ACTUAL  BUDGET ACTUAL
2008/2009 2008/2009  2007/2008

Site Rehabilitation Reserve $ $ $

Opening Balance 137,999 137,999 .138,029
Transfer from Reserve 0 0 (30)
TOTAL CASH BACKED RESERVE 137,999 - 137,999 137,999

All of the reserve accounts are supported by money held in financial institutions and match the amount
shown as restricted cash in Note 3 to the financial report.

In accordance with council resolutions in relation to each reserve account, the purpose for which the
funds are set aside are as follows :

Site Rehabilitation Reserve - to be used to fund the rehabilitation following the closure of the landfill
and is expected to be utilised in the future years.

16 RESERVES - ASSET REVALUATION

Council recognises all assets at cost and no revaluation is undertaken.

ACTUAL ACTUAL

17 CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION BY CONSTITUENT COUNCILS 2008/2009 2007/2008
$ $
City of Joondalup 357,485 327,963
City of Wanneroo 357,485 327,963
City of Stirling . 714,970 655,925
City of Perth 288,551 273,790
Town of Vincent 142,140 127,378
Town of Cambridge 142,140 127,378
Town of Victoria Park - 142,140 127,378

2,144,911 1,967,775
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for the year ended 30 June 2009

18

18(a)

18(b)

18(c

NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Reconciliation of Cash

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
includes cash and cash equivalents, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the
reporting period is reconciled to the related items in
the Balance Sheet as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Reconciliation of Net Cash Provided By Operating
Activities to Net Result

Change in Net Assets Resulting from Operations

Depreciation

Excavation Amortised

Amortisation and finance charges for capping provisions
(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Asset

(Increase) / Decrease in Receivables

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories

(Increase) / Decrease in Prepayments and Accrued Income
Pre-operating expenses relating to investing activities
Increase / (Decrease) in Payables

Adjustment for payables relating to investing activities
Increase / (Decrease) in Employee Provisions

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Provisions

Council Contributions relating to investing activities
Increase / (Decrease) in Capital Council Contributions
Transfer to/(from) Reserves

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Undrawn Borrowing Facilities Credit Stand-by
) Arrangements

Bank Overdraft limit

Bank Overdraft at Balance Date

Credit Card Limit

Credit Card at Balance Date

Total Amount of Credit Unused

Loan Facilities

Loan Facilities - Current

Loan Facilities - Non Current

Loan Facilities in use at Balance Date

Unused Loan Facilities at Balance Date
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ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
2008/2009  2008/2009  2007/2008
$ $ $
11,459,868 7,642,144 12,443,104
4,124,471 2,682,981 4,955,225
890,903 1,196,777 725,057
5,002,121 4,837,500 3,906,813
784,000 0 649,000
18,914 (7,948) (249,276)
285,660 0 961,395
6,944 0 (4,998)
(235,318) 0 (132,082)
39,049 0 0
548,274 0 1,599,406
397,510 0 (1,062,423)
113,767 0 131,649
0 187,800 0
(85,809)
177,136 0 151,472
0 0 (30)
12,067,622 8,897,110 11,631,208
1,000,000 1,000,000
0 0
125,000 125,000
(1,999) (320)
1,123,001 1,124,680
2,432,725 2,306,206
19,501,151 18,872,976
21,933,876 21,179,182
0 3,000,000
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

19 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Page 146

A claim has been made against Mindarie Regional Council by the contractor for the lining work in relation to the
landfill under Stage 2 Phase 2, West. The management and the Council members are of the view that the

Council has reasonable prospects of defending the Claim.

ACTUAL ACTUAL
20 CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS 2008/2009 2007/2008
(a) Operating Lease Commitments $ $
The operating lease relates to the lease of the land at Tamala Park but is
not capitalised in the accounts
payable:
- not later than one year 569,032 548,729
- later than one year but not Iater than five years 2,276,129 2,194,917
- later than five years 10,242,582 10,425,858
' 13,087,743 13,169,504
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

21 TOTAL ASSETS CLASSIFIED BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
Community Amenities
Not Classified

22 DISPOSALS OF ASSETS
The following assets were disposed of during the year

ACTUAL 2008/2009

Plant and Equipment
Other Property and Services
Plant 15 Fork Lift

Plant 16 Tana 400

BUDGET 2008/2009

Plant and Equipment
Other Property and Services
Plant 15 Fork Lift

Plant 16 Tana 400
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ACTUAL ACTUAL
2008/2009 2007/2008
$ $

43,741,485 36,760,964
11,468,795 12,458,974

55,210,280 49,219,938

Net book Profit /
Value Sale Price (Loss)
Actual Actual Actual

$ $ $
0 7,000 7,000
155,914 130,000  (25,914)
155,914 137,000 (18,914)

Net book Profit /
Value Sale Price (Loss)

Estimated Estimated Estimated

$ $ $
0 7,000 7,000
249,052 250,000 948
249,052 257,000 7,948
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

2008/09 2007/08 2006/07
23 FINANCIAL RATIOS
User Revenue to Total Tonnes 56.55 51.09 45.01
Current Ratio 2.27 2.76 2.39
Unrestricted Cash to Trade Creditors Ratio 6.89 6.49 1414.56
Debt Ratio 0.55 0.59 0.66
Debt Service Ratio 0.99 1.05 1.45
Operating Costs per Tonne 51.80 44.20 38.58
Gross Debt to Revenue Ratio 0.94 0.98 1.38
Gross Debt to Economically Realisable Assets Ratio 0.98 0.97 1.29

The above ratios are calculated as follows:

User Revenue to Total Tonnes:

- Expressed as an average dollar per tonne

Current Ratio:

Unrestricted Cash to Trade Creditors Ratio:

User Revenue

Total Tonnes

Current assets minus restricted current assets

Current liabilities minus liabilities associated with restricted assets

Unrestricted cash

Trade creditors

Debt Ratio: Total liabilities
Total assets
Debt Service Ratio: Debt service cost (Principal & Interest)

Operating Costs per Tonne:

Gross debt to Revenue Ratio:

Gross Debt to Economically Realisable Assets Ratio;

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Available operating revenue

Operating Expenses (including Depreciation)

Total Tonnes

Gross Debt

Total Revenue

Gross Debt

Economically realisable assets
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24 INFORMATION ON BORROWINGS
(a) Loan Repayments

Budget

Community Amenities

Tamala Park Landfill

Loan 8 - Building Upgrade

Loan 9 - Construction Stage 2 Phase 1b

Loan 12 - Construction Stage 2 Phase 2

Regional Resource Recovery Facility

Loan 11 - Resource Recovery Facility Land

Loan 10 - Resource Recovery Facility Infrastructure
New Loan - Purchase of new Landfill

New Loan - Excavation Works Phase 3
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Total Loan Principal Repayments

Facility Fee
Total Borrowing Costs

New Loans

- $6.6m was approved by the Council for Phase 3 Excavation Works.
- Approval for $12.3m for the purchase of land (replacement of Tamala Park) will be obtained once the land is identified.

(a) Loan Repayments

Actual

Community Amenities

Tamala Park Landfill

Loan 8 - Building Upgrade

Loan 9 - Construction Stage 2 Phase 1b

Loan 12 - Construction Stage 2 Phase 2

Regional Resource Recovery Facility

Loan 11 - Resource Recovery Facility Land

Loan 10 - Resource Recovery Facility Infrastructure

Total L.oan Principal Repayments

Facility Fee
Total Borrowing Costs

(b) Overdraft

Principal Projected Interest
Repayments Balance Repayments
Estimated
Principal 2008/09 as at 2008/09
01/07/2008 Drawdowns Budget 30/06/2009 Budget
438,423 61,989 376,434 26,500
275477 275477 0 3,900
12,916,650 1,666,680 11,249,970 720,100
2,117,951 177,136 1,940,815 121,100
5,430,681 1,600,000 64,024 6,966,657 389,100
12,300,000 12,300,000 148,560
480,000 480,000 37,140
21,179,182 14,380,000 2,245,306 33,313,876 1,446,400
60,000
1,506,400
Principal Principal Interest
Repayments Balance Repayments
Principal Drawdowns Actual to as at Actual to
01/07/2008 2008/09 30/06/2009  30/06/2009  30/06/2009
438,423 0 61,989 376,434 26,441
275,477 -0 275,477 0 3,926
12,916,650 0 1,666,680 11,249,970 720,034
2,117,951 0 177,136 1,940,815 120,734
5,430,681 3,000,000 64,024 8,366,657 308,630
21,179,182 3,000,000 2,245,306 21,933,876 1,179,765
67,500
1,247,265

Council has not utilised an overdraft facility during the financial year although an overdraft of $1,000,000 with the National Bank

exists.
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for the year ended 30 June 2009
25 Statement of Financial Activity Information and Member Charges

Member Charges

Actual 08-09 Budget 08-09
Rate / Tonne Rate / Tonne
Actual (Excl GST) Actual Estimated (Excl GST) .  Estimated
2008/2009 2008/2009 Revenue 2008/2009 2008/2009 Revenue
Total Waste Tonnage Tonnage $ $ Tonnage $ $
City of Perth 14,470 54 781,357 18,219 54 983,800
City of Wanneroo 65,766 54 3,553,472 75,125 54 4,056,800
City of Joondalup 63,372 54 3,424,378 66,300 54 3,580,200
City of Stirling ' 86,447 54 4,667,963 82,700 .54 4,465,800
Town of Cambridge 10,551 54 570,358 13,165 54 710,900
Town of Vincent 14,203‘/ 54 767,688 14,062 54 759,300
Town of Victoria Park 12,926 54 698,846 14,485 54 782,200
Total . 267,735 14,464,062 284,056 15,339,000
Residue
City of Stirling Baled Residue 22,967 217 498,102 22,000 217 476,500
City of Wanneroo MRF 17,965 217 390,514 3,700 ) 217 80,100
Total Baled Residue 40,932 888,616 25,700 556,600
Total Member Charges 308,667 15,352,678 309,756 15,895,600

The budgeted revenue totals for waste tonnage and residue were rounded off to the nearest $100 which has resulted in a difference when compared with the total
tonnage multiplied by the rate / tonne. The actual revenue totals for waste tonnage and residue are immaterially different when compared with the total tonnage
multiplied by the rate / tonne as during the year some of the waste was charged at specific prices per tonne depending on the item landfilled based on the disposal
fees and charges schedule on page 25.

Make up of Surplus Funding (Ligquid Assets) Brought Forward and Carried Forward

ACTUAL Budget ACTUAL
2008/2009 2008/2009 2007/2008
Cash 11,459,868 7,620,497 12,443,104
Receivables 2,063,222 2,587,156 2,348,883
Inventories 8,927 42215 15,871
13,532,017 10,249,868 14,807,858
Less .
Reserves - Cash Restricted (137,999) (138,029) (137,999)
Trade Creditors ' (1,643,026) (1,906,040) (1,914,506)
Accruals 0 ~ (634,282) 0
Provisions 0 (886,067) 0
Other Current Liabilities 0 (35,000) 0

(1,781,025) (3,599,418) (2,052,505

—

11,750,992 6,650,450 12,755,353
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26 FEES AND CHARGES
Community Amenities

27 GRANT REVENUE

Grants and subsidies are included as operating revenues in the

Income statement.

By Nature and Type

NUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

ming part of the Financial Statements

Grants and Subsidies - operating

By Program ,
Community Amenities

28 COUNCILLORS REMUNERATION

The following fees, expenses and allowances are to be paid’

to council members and the Chairman.

Meeting Fees

Chairman's and Deputy Chairman’s Allowance

Conference Expenses
Members Allowances

29 EMPLOYEE NUMBERS

The number of full-time equivalent Employees at balance date.

30 EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION

Page 151

Set out below, in bands of 10,000, is the number of employees of the Council entitled to an
annual salary of $100,000 or more.

Salary Range

100,000 - 109,999
110,000 - 119,999
130,000 - 140,000
140,000 - 150,000
150,000 - 160,000

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES

- 27 NOVEMBER 2009

ACTUAL ACTUAL
2008/2009 2007/2008
$ $
21,203,710 19,834,880
105,345 208,789
105,345 208,789
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
2008/2009 2008/2009 2007/2008
$ $ $
82,560 32,400 34,580
7,500 3,800 3,750
9,058 40,000 47,956
13,453 15,000 12,698
112,571 91,200 98,984
38 - 36
2008/2009 2007/2008
1 1
1
1
1
1
67
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2009

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Council's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including price risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and interest rate risk. The Council overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Council.
Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not
subject to foreign currency risk.
Financial risk management is carried out by the finance area under policies approved by the
Council.
Council held the following financial instruments at balance date:
Carrying Value Fair Value
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $

Financial assets
Cash and Cash equivalents 11,459,868 12,443,104 11,459,868 12,443,104
Receivables 2,063,222 2,348,883 2,063,222 2,348,883

13,523,090 14,791,987 13,523,090 14,791,987
Financial liabilities
Payables 3,267,655 2,719,381 3,267,655 2,719,381
Borrowings 21,933,876 21,179,182 - 21,933,876 21,179,182

25,201,531 23,898,563 25,201,531 23,898,563
Fair value is determined as follows:
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Payables, Borrowings, Held-to-Maturity Investments -
estimated to the carrying value which approximates net market value.
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31

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Council's objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of
liquidity and preserving capital. The finance area manages the cash and investments portfolio and provides a
monthly report to Council.

Cash and investments are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could
affect returns.

Another risk associated with cash and investments is credit risk - the risk that a contracting entity will not
complete its obligations under a financial instruments resulting in a financial loss to Council. The Council
does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors under financial
instruments entered into by the Council. The one major concentration of credit risk within the council is in
relation to its cash and cash equivalent deposits which are with one major financial institution.

Council manages these risks by investing surplus cash into term deposits with only the major financial
institutions.

There is no material impact of a 1% movement in interest rates on cash and investments as the Council's
investments consist of short term deposits.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(b) ‘Receivables
Council's major receivables comprise user charges and fees. The major risk associated with these receivables

is credit risk - the risk that the debts may not be repaid. Council manages this risk by monitoring outstanding
debt and employing debt recovery policies.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for
acceptable collection performance.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most
non-rate debtors. :

There are no material receivables that have been subject to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

The profile of the Council's credit risk a balance date was:

30.6.2009 30.6.2008
Percentage of Other Receivables:
Current 70% 85%
Overdue 30% 15%
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31
(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Payables and Borrowings

Payables and borrowing are both subject fo liquidity risk - that is the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to meet payment
obligations and when they fall due. Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and
maintaining an adequate cash buffer. Payment terms can be extended and overdraft facilities drawn upon if required.

The contractual undiscounted cash flows of Council's Payables and Borrowings are set out in the Liquidity Sensitivity Table below:

Due within Due Due after 5 Total Carrying values

1year between1 years Contractual
and 5 years Cash flows
Year Ended 30 June 2009
Payables 3,267,655 0 0 3,267,655 3,267,655
Borrowings 3,866,303 18,128,005 4,664,547 26,658,855 21,933,876
7,133,958 18,128,005 4,664,547 29,926,510 25,201,531
Year Ended 30 June 2008
Payables 2,719,381 o] 0 2,719,381 2,719,381
Borrowings 3,454,319 18,798,827 7,860,028 30,113,174 21,179,182
6,173,700 18,798,827 7,860,028 32,832,555 23,898,563

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding costs. Council
manages this risk by borrowing long term and fixing the interest rate to the situation considered the most advantageous at the time of
negotiation.

The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk:

Page 155

Weighted
Average
within 1 greater than 5 Effective
Year Ended 30 June 2009 year 1-2years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years years Total Interest Rate
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Borrowings
Fixed Rate
Borrowings 11,249,970 8,366,657 376,434 1,940,815 21,933,876 6.06%
Weighted average effective interest rate 5.98% 6.16% 6.45% 597%
Weighted
Average
within 1 greaterthan § Effective
Year Ended 30 June 2008 year 1-2years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4.5 years years Total Interest Rate
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Borrowings
Fixed Rate
Borrowings 275,477 12,916,650 5,430,681 2,556,374 21,179,182 6.03%
Weighted average effective interest rate 5.78% 5.98% 6.16% 6.14%
Page 71
MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
ITEM 8.1.6

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009



MINDYIRIE REGKAATOURUINCIL
 Not ORRINARIYFG RNl ME T NG MNTER: SREHFMBER 2009

for the year ended 30 June 2009

32

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009

Page 156

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet

effective have not been adopted by the Council for the annual reporting period ending 30 June 2009.

Council's assessment of these new standards and interpretations is set out below.

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

Title and topic Issued Applicable Impact

(i) AASB 8 Operating Segments and February 2007 1 January 2009  Nil - The Standard is not applicable to

AASB 2007-3 Amendments to not-for-profit entities.

Australian Accounting Standards arising

from AASB 8

(i) Revised AASB 123 Borrowing Costs June 2007 1 January 2009  Nil - The revised Standard has

and AASB 2007-6 Amendments to removed the option to expense all

Australian Accounting Standards arsing borrowing costs and, when adopted,

from AASB 123 [AASB 1, AASB 101, will require the capitalisation of all

AASB 107, AASB 111, AASB 116 & borrowing costs directly attributable to

AASB 138 and Interpretations 1 & 12] the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. An
assessment of this Accounting
Standard by Council indicates the
commencement date for capitalisation
of borrowing costs occurred before the
application date of 1st January 2009
so there is no impact on these
Financial Statements.

(iii) Revised AASB 101 Presentation of September 2007 1 January 2009  Nil - the revised Standard requires the

Financial Statements and AASB 2007-8 and December presentation of a Statement of

Amendments to Australian Accounting 2007 comprehensive income and makes

Standards arising from AASB 101 and changes to the Statement of changes

AASB 2007 - 10 Further Amendments to in equity, but will not affect any of the

Australian Accounting Standards arising amounts recognised in the financial

from AASB 101 statements.

(iv) AASB 2008-5 Amendments to July 2008 1 January 2009  Nil — The revisions are part of the

Australian Accounting Standards arising AASBs annual improvement project to

from the Annual Improvements Project help ensure consistency with
presentation, recognition and
measurement criteria of IFRSs.

AASB 2008-6 Further Amendments to  July 2008 1 July 2009 The revisions embodied in these

Australian Accounting Standards arising standards relate largely to terminology

from the Annual Improvements Project or editorial comments and will have a
minimal effect on the accounting
practices of the Council.
It is not anticipated the more
significant changes will have any
effect on the financial report as the
topics are not relevant to the
operations of the Council.
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New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)

Title and topic
(v) AASB 2008-11 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standard —
Business Considerations Among Not-for-
Profit Entities

{vi) AASB 2008-1 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standard ~ Share-
Based Payments: Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations

AASB 2008-2 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liguidation

AASB 2008-3 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 3 and AASB 127

AASB 2007-7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards — Cost
of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate

AASB 2008-8 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards —
Eligible Hedged ltems

AASB 2008-9 Amendments to AASB
1049 for Consistency with AASB 101

AASB 2008-13 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB Interpretation 17 —
Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to
Owners

Interpretation 1 — Changes in Existing,
Decommissioning, Restoration and
Similar Liabilities

Interpretation 12 — Service Concession
Arrangements

Interpretation 15 — Agreements for the
Construction of Real Estate

Interpretation 16 — Hedges of a Net
Investment in a Foreign Operation

Interpretation 17 — Distributions of Non-
Cash Assets to Owners

Interpretation 18 — Transfers of Assets
from Customers

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

Issued
November 2008

February 2008

March 2008

March 2008

July 2008

August 2008

September 2008

December 2008

June 2008

June 2007
August 2008
August 2008
December 2008

March 2009

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009

Applicable
1 July 2009

1 January 2009

1 January 2009

1 January 2009

1 January 2009

1 July 2009

1 January 2009

1 July 2009

1 January 2009

1 January 2009

1 January 2009

1 October 2008

1 July 2009

Ending 1 July
2009
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Impact:
Nil — Whilst this standard has the
effect of applying AASB 3 Business
Combinations to the Not-for-Profit
sector, specific provisions are
provided in respect of local
government. These specific
provisions are very similar to the
previous requirements of AAS 27.

Nil — None of these amendments will
have any effect on the financial report
as none of the topics are relevant to
the operations of the Council.
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

We have audited the accompanying financial report of the Mindarie Regional Council, (the “Council”) which
comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2009 and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and
cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes and the statement by the chief executive officer on pages 42 to 73. We have not audited the
budgeted figures presented in the financial report; as such we provide no opinion on the budgeted figures.

The Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The councillors’ are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with the Local Government Act 1995 Part 6 and Australian Accounting Standards (including the
Australian Accounting Interpretations). This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in circumstances.

Auditors Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These auditing standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Councillors’, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Independence
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of Australian professional ethical
pronouncements.

Audit opinion
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Mindarie Regional Council is drawn up in accordance with
Local Government Act 1995 including:

i Giving a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position as at 30 June 2009 and of its performance for
the year ended on that date; and

ii. Complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and
the Local Government Act 1995.

WHK HORWATH PERTH AUDIT PARTNERSHIP

NICHOLAS HOLLENS

Principal
Perth, WA
Dated this day of December 2009
Total Financial Solutions Member Horwath International
WHK Horwath Perth Audit Partnership ABN 96 844 819 235
Level 6, 256 St Georges Terrace Perth WA 6000 Australia
GPO Box P1213 Perth WA 6844 Australia
MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Telephone +61 8 9481 1448 Facsimile +61 8 9481 0152
TECHNlCAFWUP MENRESrs RHNQVEMBERN20BSciation, a Swiss verein. Email perth@whkhorwath.com.au WWW.V\IFHEM\&&‘Ihﬁlom.au

Each member of the Association is a separate and independent legal entity. A WHK Grou P firm



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 160
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

ITEM 7 CONSTRUCTION OF AN EXTENSION TO EXISTING WORKSHOP
BUILDING AT TAMALA PARK WASTE MANAGEMENT FACILITY

File No: WST/168 (D/09/6065)

Tender No: 13/102

Attachment(s): 1. Tender Evaluation Report

Author: Mike Tolson

SUMMARY

The purpose of this Item is to provide the Council with information to approve the
recommended tender for capital works at Tamala Park.

BACKGROUND

The proposed extension to the workshop at Tamala Park is essential for Council
maintenance staff to conduct repairs and maintenance to critical landfill equipment in a
safe stable environment with ready access to tools and equipment. Council approved
funds for the extension of the workshop at Tamala Park, within the context of Budget
09/10.

DETAIL
Tender Organisation
A public tender advertised an invitation, via the Western Australian on 17 October 2009

for suppliers to tender. The tender was closed 4 November 2009 with three suppliers
responding to the request for tender, they were:

Devco Builders $329,991.35 exc GST
BCL Constructions Pty Ltd $325,333.00 exc GST
Western Australian Building Group $294,700.00 exc GST

Tender Assessment

Independent third party organisations are used by the Council’s administration to prepare
the tender documents, open and assess the tenders submitted and provide a report to the
Council. This process is used to ensure openness and transparency of Council
purchasing procedures. The assessment for this tender was prepared by Michelle Van
Dyk of GHD. A copy of the tender assessment is included as Attachment One to this
ltem.

Selection Criteria

The selection criteria associated with this tender follows:
Compliance Criteria

Qualitative Criteria

Form of Offer completed and signed
All documents and Attachments requested submitted

The detailed assessment by GHD against these criteria is contained in the Attachment.

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Tender Evaluation

The GHD evaluation information, extracted from Section 6, the Attachment, is described
below.

6.1. Devco Builders

This was the highest priced bid and was essentially a conforming one (with the exception
of QA requirements) and noted the following conditions;

» A substantial price increase in the Government landfill levy is expected in January
which will be directly passed onto the client;

» No allowance has been made to modify the existing chassis on the main switchboard
to fit the new 100A circuit breaker;

» Mindarie Regional Council is to be responsible for all documentation and plans for
building license application if not already done;

» All work to be completed during normal working hours; and

» We reserve the right to change our price with any alterations brought about by
conditions in the Building License.

Devco Builders stated that they have no conflicts of interest in the performance of their
Contractual obligations.

6.1.1.Understanding, Physical Resources and Previous Experience

Devco Builders has stated that their bid complies with the Specification which forms part
of the Request for Tender documentation.

Devco Builders has listed the proposed company personnel, their qualifications and a brief
description of their previous experience.

Devco Builders has provided details of demonstrated and recent project experience the
majority of which was performed for either local Government Authorities or for State
Government Departments. Devco Builders completed the recent Administration Building
for Mindarie Regional Council on the Tamala Park site.

6.1.2.Financial

Devco Builders state that they are able to pay all debts in full when they fall due and that
there is no current litigation against Devco Holdings Pty Ltd. Devco Builders included a
number of written financial references to illustrate their financial profile.

Devco Builders gave Mindarie Regional Council permission to conduct enquiries into their
financial position and provide the appropriate contact details to do so, but have not
provided further details of their financial position as part of the Tender.

6.2. BCL Constructions Pty Ltd

This was the second highest priced bid and was essentially a non conforming bid with no
noted conditions.

BCL Constructions Pty Ltd indicated that they have no conflicts of interest in the
performance of their Contractual obligations.

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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6.2.1.Understanding, Physical Resources and Previous Experience

BCL Constructions have not indicated as part of their bid any intention to alter the
Specification, as such it is assumed that BCL Constructions prepared their bid in
accordance with the Specification document.

BCL Constructions has listed the company directors, their qualifications and a brief
description of their previous experience.

BCL Constructions have provided brief details of demonstrated and recent project
experience the majority of which was performed for Local Government Authorities.

6.2.2.Financial

BCL Constructions indicate that they are able to pay all debts in full when they fall due
and that there is no current litigation against BCL Constructions Pty Ltd. BCL
Constructions did not include any financial referees.

BCL Constructions provided details of their financial position which indicate that they are
in a financial position to undertake this Contract.

6.3. Western Australian Building Group

This was the lowest price bid submitted and was essentially a non conforming bid which
stipulated that the inclusions listed in their bid are all that they have allowed for.

Western Australian Building Group indicated that they have no conflicts of interest in the
performance of their Contractual obligations.

6.3.1.Understanding, Physical Resources and Previous Experience

Western Australian Building Group provided a list of inclusions which they have allowed
for as part of their bid. This list is not as comprehensive as the Specification and in context
of the bid is interpreted to replace the Specification.

Western Australian Building Group did not list any employee details, qualifications or
previous experience.

Western Australian Building Group has provided brief details of demonstrated and recent
project experience the majority of which was performed for the Mining Sector.

6.3.2.Financial

Western Australian Building Group indicate that they are able to pay all debts in full when
they fall due and that there is no current litigation against Western Australian Building
Company. Western Australian Building Group did not include any financial referees or any
information regarding their financial position.

Tender Recommendation

This summary, compiled by GHD and complemented by the tabular information in the
Attachment, has been analysed by the administration. The tender document allows non
conforming bids to be assessed with due consideration to non conformity.

In this tender all tenderers had levels of non conformity none of which were sufficiently
significant to require non assessment. Following the assessment the recommendation for
contract award to Devco Builders is supported by the administration.

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
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CONSULTATION
. GHD
STATUTORY ENVIRONMENT
Not applicable.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

A provision of $250,000 exists within the context of the Budget 2009/2010. An additional
amount of $100,000 is required to meet construction costs including a 5 per cent
contingency. The additional funding required would be offset from budget surpluses or as
a last resort from casual tipping revenues. GHD cost to conduct the tender assessment
was $4,090.00. The initial estimate was developed with quantity surveyor input, however;
market conditions have led to ‘higher then estimated’ bids.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS
Nil.
COMMENT

Although being the highest bid Devco Builders was deemed to be the only conforming
tender of the three tenders received. Devco Builders recently completed the extension of
the Tamala Park Administration Building; this project was finished on time and within the
agreed budget.

MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

0] accept the tender (Tender No. 13/102) offered by Devco Builders of
$329,991.35 excluding GST for the construction of the workshop extension at
Tamala Park

(i) approve an additional expenditure of $100,000.00 for construction of the
workshop extension

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MEETING - 27 NOVEMBER 2009

The Group agreed that the matter of conformity with respect to tender clauses, and its
treatment during evaluation, needed to be clarified. This has occurred.

The CEO was tasked to develop a template for tender preparation, assessment and
reporting.
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TWG OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

0] accept the tender (Tender No. 13/102) offered by Devco Builders of
$329,991.35 excluding GST for the construction of the workshop
extension at Tamala Park

(i) approve an additional expenditure of $100,000.00 for construction of the
workshop extension
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TENDER EVALUATION REPORT
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Mindarie Regional
Council

Report for Tamala Park Waste
Management Facility Workshop
Extension

Tender Evaluation
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1. Executive Summary

11 Project Description

The works comprise the Construction of an extension to the existing Mechanical
Workshop located at Tamala Park Waste Management Facility in Mindarie and other
such works as shown on the drawings or included in the specification.

The Project was subject to an Open tender Process. Tender Documents were
available from Saturday 17" October 2009. Tenders closed on Wednesday 4™
November 2009 at 12 noon.

1.2 Tender Details

The tender closed on 4™ November 2009. At the close of the tender period three
tenders were received and are summarised in the following table;

Table 1 Tender Price

Tenderer Tender price (excl GST)
Devco Builders $329,991.35
BCL Constructions Pty Ltd $325,333.00
Western Australian Building Group $294,700.00
1.3 Tender Compliance

The following Selection Criteria were assessed for compliance;
» Compliance Criteria;

» Qualitative Criteria;

» Form of Offer completed and signed; and

» All Documents and Attachments submitted.

14 Tender Evaluation

Of the 3 Tenders received only Devco Building was deemed to be conforming.

15 Recommendation

It is recommended that Devco Builders be awarded Preferred Tenderer status.

61/24441/94214 Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension
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2. Project Description

2.1 Project Scope

The works comprise the Construction of an extension to the existing Mechanical
Workshop located at Tamala Park Waste Management Facility in Mindarie and other
such works as shown on the drawings or included in the specification.

2.2 Tender Process

The Project was subject to an Open tender Process. Tender Documents were
available from Saturday 17" October 2009. Tenders closed on Wednesday 4™
November 2009 at 12 noon.

2.3 Tender Submission Assessment

The Project Manager Michelle Van Dyk of GHD Pty Ltd assessed the Tenders
submitted. The GHD Project Director, lan Nelligan, subsequently reviewed the Tender
Assessment.

2.4 Conflict of Interest

All members of the Tender Assessment Panel have confirmed that no “Conflict of
Interest Issues” existed for the Tender Assessment of this Project.

61/24441/94214 Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension 2
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3. Tender Details

3.1 Tender Details

During the Tender period an amendment was made to Clause 2.6 via email to all
Tenderers that collected Tender Documents as follows;

“As a part of the approval process Mindarie Regional Council will need to seek project
approval from the WA Planning Commission. Therefore to avoid possible contractual
and construction difficulties it is necessary for MRC to amend Clause 2.6 Tender
Validity Period to reflect a validity period of 90 days. Any concerns in regard to this
amendment should be directed to MRC Operations Manager on 9396 6314.”

Verbal confirmation of acceptance of this amendment was received from Devco
Building only and no written confirmation was received from any Tenderer.

» The tender closed on 4™ November 2009.
At the close of the tender period three tenders were received and are summarised in

the following table;

Table 2 Tender Price

Tenderer Tender price (excl GST)
Devco Builders $329,991.35
BCL Constructions Pty Ltd $325,333.00
Western Australian Building Group $294,700.00
61/24441/94214 Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension 3
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4.

61/24441/94214

Form of Contract

The Form of Contract used for this Tender was AS2124 — General Conditions of
Contract.

The Tender Documents for this Project that will form part of the Contract define the:
» Principal as Mindarie Regional Council; and the
» Superintendent as “GHD Pty Ltd".

If the Contract is awarded, it will be administered by the Superintendent and the
Superintendents Representative. There are several matters under the General
Conditions of Contract on which the Superintendent must make decisions, such as
Progress Payments, Extensions of Time and Variations. The General Conditions of
Contract require the Superintendent in an impartial way.

4.1 Progress Payments

Progress Payments to the Contractor will be made as per the Conditions of Contract.
GHD Pty Ltd will certify the Contractor’s Progress Claims and recommend payment of
the certified amount to the Contractor by Mindarie Regional Council.

Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIgnder Evaluation
TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009 ITEM 8.1.7



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

i—

5. Tender Compliance

51 Selection Criteria
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The Request for Tender documentation outlined the Selection Criteria which the
Tenders must satisfy in order to be deemed compliant. This criteria is summarised

below.

» Compliance Criteria;

» Qualitative Criteria;

» Form of Offer completed and signed; and

» All Documents and Attachments submitted.

5.2 Compliance Criteria

The following Table illustrates Tenderer compliance with the Compliance Criteria as
stated in the Request for Tender documentation.

Table 3 Compliance Criteria

Yes/No
Description of Compliance Criteria | Devco BCL Western
Builders Constructions | Australian
Pty Ltd Building
Group
Compliance with the Specification Yes Yes No
contained in the Request.
Compliance with the Conditions of Yes No No
Tendering this Request.
The Quality Assurance requirement No No No
for this Request is that the tender’s
QA be nationally recognised.
Compliance with the Delivery Date. Yes Yes Yes
Compliance with and completion of Yes Yes Yes
Part 3, Attachments A and B.
Compliance with Referees. Yes Partial No
Tenderers are to list the names of
the State Public or Authorities and /
or private companies which have
utilised the tenderer to provide
services together with references
(name and telephone number)
61/24441/94214 Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension 5
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61/24441/94214

53 Qualitative Criteria

The following table indicates Tenderer Compliance with the Qualitative Criteria as
stated in the Request for tender documentation.

Table 4 Qualitative Criteria

Page 174
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Description of Weighting | Devco BCL Western
Qualitative Criteria Builders Constructions | Australian
Pty Ltd Building
Group

Price offered 60% 42% 42% 48%

Demonstrated and 20% 16% 12% 12%

relevant experience in

and evidence of the

successful delivery of

similar projects.

Skills and experience 20% 16% 16% 8%

of key personnel. (The

technical aspects and

the organisational

capacity to service the

Contract)

Compliance Percentage 74% 70% 68%

Ranking 1 2 3

Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension 6
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61/24441/94214

54 Documents Submitted with tender
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The following Table illustrates Tenderer submission compliance with the documents
requested as part of the Request for Tender documentation.

Table 5 Submitted Documents

MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIgnder Evaluation
TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP MINUTES - 27 NOVEMBER 2009

Yes/No
Document Devco BCL Western
Builders Constructions Australian
Building
Group
Form of Offer Yes Yes Yes
Attachment 1 — Organisation Profile Yes Partial Partial -
Website
Address
Provided
Attachment 2 — Current ASC Partial Partial No
company extracts search including
latest annual return
Attachment 3 — Referees and Yes Yes Partial
Examples of Previous Work
Attachment 4 — Details of Principal N/A N/A N/A
that tenderer is acting as an agent for
(if applicable)
Attachment 5 — Trust Detalils (if Yes N/A N/A
applicable)
Attachment 6 — Subcontractor Details | Yes Yes No
Attachment 7 — Declaration of N/A N/A N/A
Conflict of Interest (if applicable)
Attachment 8 — Financial Profile of Yes No No
Tenderer
Attachment 9 — Quality Assurance No No Partial
and Management System Details
Attachment 10 — Insurance Details Yes No Yes
Attachment 11 — Demonstrated and Yes No Yes (on
Relevant Experience CD)
Attachment 12 — Skills and Yes Yes No
Experience of key personnel
Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension 7
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55 Documents Submitted after Close of Tender

Following the closure of the Tender Period no additional information was requested
from the three Tenderers.

61/24441/94214 Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension
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0. Tender Evaluation

6.1 Devco Building

This was the highest priced bid and was essentially a conforming one (with the
exception of QA requirements) and noted the following conditions;

» A substantial price increase in the Government landfill levy is expected in January
which will be directly passed onto the client;

» No allowance has been made to modify the existing chassis on the main
switchboard to fit the new 100A circuit breaker;

» Mindarie Regional Council is to be responsible for all documentation and plans for
building license application if not already done;

» All work to be completed during normal working hours; and

» We reserve the right to change our price with any alterations brought about by
conditions in the Building License.

Devco Building stated that they have no conflicts of interest in the performance of their
Contractual obligations.

6.1.1 Understanding, Physical Resources and Previous Experience

Devco Building has stated that their bid complies with the Specification which forms
part of the Request for Tender documentation.

Devco Building has listed the proposed company personnel, their qualifications and a
brief description of their previous experience.

Devco Building has provided details of demonstrated and recent project experience the
majority of which was performed for either local Government Authorities or for State
Government Departments. Devco Building completed the recent Administration
Building for Mindarie Regional Council on the Tamala Park site.

6.1.2 Financial

Devco Building state that they are able to pay all debts in full when they fall due and
that there is no current litigation against Devco Holdings Pty Ltd. Devco Building
included a number of written financial references to illustrate their financial profile.

Devco Building gave Mindarie Regional Council permission to conduct enquiries into
their financial position and provide the appropriate contact details to do so, but have
not provided further details of their financial position as part of the Tender.

6.2 BCL Constructions Pty Ltd

This was the second highest priced bid and was essentially a non conforming bid with
no noted conditions.

61/24441/94214 Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension 9
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61/24441/94214

BCL Constructions Pty Ltd indicated that they have no conflicts of interest in the
performance of their Contractual obligations.

6.2.1 Understanding, Physical Resources and Previous Experience

BCL Constructions have not indicated as part of their bid any intention to alter the
Specification, as such it is assumed that BCL Constructions prepared their bid in
accordance with the Specification document.

BCL Constructions has listed the company directors, their qualifications and a brief
description of their previous experience.

BCL Constructions have provided brief details of demonstrated and recent project
experience the majority of which was performed for Local Government Authorities.

6.2.2 Financial

BCL Constructions indicate that they are able to pay all debts in full when they fall due
and that there is no current litigation against BCL Constructions Pty Ltd. BCL
Constructions did not include any financial referees.

BCL Constructions provided details of their financial position which indicate that they
are in a financial position to undertake this Contract.

6.3 Western Australian Building Group

This was the lowest price bid submitted and was essentially a non conforming bid
which stipulated that the inclusions listed in their bid are all that they have allowed for.

Western Australian Building Group indicated that they have no conflicts of interest in
the performance of their Contractual obligations.

6.3.1 Understanding, Physical Resources and Previous Experience

Western Australian Building Group provided a list of inclusions which they have
allowed for as part of their bid. This list is not as comprehensive as the Specification
and in context of the bid is interpreted to replace the Specification.

Western Australian Building Group did not list any employee details, qualifications or
previous experience.

Western Australian Building Group has provided brief details of demonstrated and
recent project experience the majority of which was performed for the Mining Sector.

6.3.2 Financial

Western Australian Building Group indicate that they are able to pay all debts in full
when they fall due and that there is no current litigation against Western Australian
Building Company. Western Australian Building Group did not include any financial
referees or any information regarding their financial position.

Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension 10
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6.4 Tender Evaluation Summary

Of the 3 Tenders received only Devco Building was deemed to be conforming.

61/24441/94214 Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension
MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIender Evaluation
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7. Recommendation

7.1 Recommendation

It is recommended that Devco Builders be awarded Preferred Tenderer status.

7.2 Funds Required

The total estimated funds required based on this recommendation are as follows;

Table 6 Fund Required

Item Amount (excl GST)

Devco Building $329,991.35

Construction Contingency (5%) $16,499.60

Total $346,490.95
61/24441/94214 Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension 12
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Appendix A

Mindarie Regional Council Tender Opening
Register

61/24441/94214 Tamala Park Waste Management Facility Workshop Extension
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Tender Number

TENDERS REGISTER - Tender Opening 3 \ o2,

ATTACHMENT - List of Tenderers opened
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TO ITEM 8.1.7
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
10 DECEMBER 2009

CONSTRUCTION OF AN EXTENSION TO EXISTING WORKSHOP BUILDING
AT TAMALA PARK WASTE MANAGEMENT FACILITY
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING — 10 DECEMBER

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

ITEM8.1.7 CONSTRUCTION OF AN EXTENSION TO EXISTING WORKSHOP
BUILDING AT TAMALA PARK WASTE MANAGEMENT FACILITY
BACKGROUND

Financial check to be completed. Recommendation amended accordingly

Additional funds to be sourced from “Excavation - Phase 3 Stage 2.
Recommendation amended to reflect this

Absolute majority required on basis of budget variation

REVISED RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

accept the tender (Tender No. 13/102) offered by Devco Builders of
$329,991.35 excluding GST for the construction of the workshop
extension at Tamala Park subject to demonstration by Devco Builders of
a satisfactory financial position

approve an additional expenditure of $100,000.00 for construction of the
workshop extension

approve allocation of additional funds of $100,000.00 which will be
funded from savings expected on “Excavation — Phase 3 Stage 2"

(Voting Requirement — Absolute Majority)

Page 2
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ITEM 8.2.1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIODS ENDED
30 SEPTEMBER 2009 AND 31 OCTOBER 2009

File No: FIN/5-02 (D/09/6550)

Attachment(s): 1. Financial Statement for the period ended 30 September 2009
2. Financial Statement for the period ended 31 October 2009

Author: Kalwant Dhillon

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide financial reporting to meet statutory requirements
and to provide useful information to stakeholders of the Council.

BACKGROUND

Financial Statements as at 30 September 2009 and 31 October 2009 are attached and
show separate columns for Actual and Adopted/Revised Budget figures.

Reporting requirements are defined by regulations 34 and 35 of the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 1996. There is scope in these regulations to provide
other reporting that the Local Government considers appropriate.

The financial statements presented for each month consist of:

. Operating Statement by Nature

. Operating Statement by Function

. Statement of Financial Position

. Statement of Investing Activities

. Information on Borrowings
DETAIL

The reports attached are for the months ended 30 September 2009 and 31 October 2009
and are at Attachments One and Two to this Item.

. Statement of Income and Expenditure. Pages 2 to 3 of the Attachment.
These statements have been adjusted to include a number of year-to-date
estimates that are not finalised until the end of the financial year. These are as
follows:

- Deferred Excavation Consumed

- Site Rehabilitation Provision

- Site Monitoring Provision
These are based on the estimated rates per tonne calculated with reference to estimated
excavation cost of various stages of the landfill and the life of the landfill. An adjustment is

made (if necessary) at the end of the year based on a survey carried out to assess the “air
space” remaining.

ITEM 8.2.1
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. Operating Statements by Function and Type. At page 4 of the Attachment.
This shows a summary of operating income and expenditures. The Operating

Statement by Function may be useful to the reader as a snapshot of the
business operations

A complete suite of Financial Statements including Operating Statement and Statement of
Financial Position are reported on a monthly basis and include accruals that may be

based on estimates to provide meaningful reporting to stakeholders. These reports are at
Attachment One and Two to this Item.

MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That the Financial Statements as attached at Attachment One and Two for the
months ended 30 September 2009 and 31 October 2009 be noted.
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ATTACHMENT ONE
TOITEM 8.2.1
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
10 DECEMBER 2009

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
30 SEPTMBER 2009
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MANAGEMENT
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

FOR THE MONTH ENDED
30 SEPTEMBER 2009
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Mindarie Regional Council
INCOME STATEMENT BY NATURE AND TYPE
For the month ended 30 September 2009
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Adopted
Description Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual $ Variance % Variance
Revenue form Ordinary Activities
User Charges
User Charges - City of Perth 1,930,400 482,601 434,968
User Charges - City of Waneroo 7,570,900 1,892,724 1,835,876
User Charges - City of Joondalup 7,418,100 1,854,525 1,732,943
User Charges - City of Stirling 8,376,000 2,094,000 1,757,494
User Charges - Town of Cambridge 1,224,000 306,000 291,822
User Charges - Town of Vincent 1,687,800 421,950 348,384
User Charges - Town of Victoria Park 1,728,200 432,051 376,627
User Charges - RRF Residues 1,980,000 495,000 341,283
Total Member User Charges 31,915,400 7,978,851 7,119,397 (859,454) -10.77%
User Charges - City of South Perth 337,100 84,276 13,237 (71,039) -84.29%
User Charges - Casual Tipping Fees 5,018,140 1,254,534 1,063,239 (191,295) -15.25%
Total User Charges 37,270,640 9,317,661 8,195,873 (1,121,788) -12.04%
Service Charges
Sale of Recyclable Materials 240,000 60,000 131,581 71,581 119.30%
Sale of Limestone
Gas Power Generation Sales 550,000 72,000 71,717 (283) -0.39%
Grants & Subsidies 320,000 80,000 80,000 0 0.00%
Contributions, Reimbursments & Donations 340,100 92,963 60,464 (32,499) -34.96%
Interest Earnings 369,200 92,301 111,682 19,381 21.00%
Other Revenue 10,200 2,551 53,248 50,697 1987.34%
39,100,140 9,717,476 8,704,565 (1,012,911) -10.42%
Expenses from Ordinary Activities
Employee Costs 4,300,140 1,233,832 1,067,797 166,035 13.46%
Materials and Contracts
Consultants and Contract Labour 804,600 203,452 149,731 53,722 26.40%
Communications and Public Consultation 722,800 208,348 90,940 117,408 56.35%
Landfill Expenses 1,057,400 253,077 181,693 71,384 28.21%
Office Expenses 259,500 94,987 75,616 19,371 20.39%
Information Systems 399,300 170,800 34,456 136,344 79.83%
Building Maintenance 129,200 48,799 25,268 23,531 48.22%
Plant and Equipment Operating and Hire 1,027,800 413,553 272,936 140,617 34.00%
RRF Operations 15,355,000 3,344,588 2,416,261 928,327 27.76%
Waste Minimisation 316,000 79,002 67,551 11,451 14.49%
Utilities 131,300 98,076 52,745 45,331 46.22%
Depreciation 1,159,080 289,773 258,049 31,724 10.95%
Borrowing Cost Expenses 1,417,000 390,301 371,364 18,937 4.85%
Insurance 127,400 107,600 69,072 38,528 35.81%
DEP Landfill Levy 4,699,700 469,950 540,856 (70,906) -15.09%
Land Lease/Rental 590,000 142,251 142,258 @) 0.00%
Other Expenditure
Member Costs 149,500 12,000 10,213 1,787 14.89%
Administration 159,000 39,753 38,394 1,359 3.42%
Amortisation (LandFill) 4,054,200 1,013,550 1,013,550 0 0.00%
Amortisation (RRF) 534,600 133,650 133,650 0 0.00%
0 0 0
37,393,520 8,747,342 7,012,400 1,734,942 19.83%
Profit on Sale of Assets 27,800 0 0 0 0.00%
Loss on Sale of Assets 28,700 0 0 0 0.00%
(900) 0 0 0 0.00%
Changes in Net Assets Resulting from Operations 1,705,720 970,134 1,692,165 722,031 74.43%
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NOTES FOR VARIATIONS - INCOME STATEMENT BY NATURE AND TYPE

Note # Description of Item Nature of Variance where actual is 10% and $5,000 from YTD Budget

The drop in revenue is due to the decrease in tonnages from all the Member Councils

1 Total Member User Charges s .
which is mainly related to seasonal factors.

5 User Charges - City of South Perth City of Squth Per_th has gone for a tender and they are sending their waste to a
commercial landfill.

3 User Charges - Casual Tipping Fees The drop is mainly attributable to the increase in fees as well as seasonal factors.

The drop in revenue is due to the fact that Tox Free invoices are now directly sent to
4 Contributions, Reimbursements & Donations WALGA for payment. The hazardous waste at Mindarie Regional Council is collected by
Tox Free. WALGA has government funding for this cost.

The increased levy cost is due to higher tonnages going to landfill as a result of RRF

s DEP Landfill Levy Facility not operating at full capacity.
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Mindarie Regional Council
INCOME STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT
For the month ended 30 September 2009

Description
Revenues from Ordinary Activities

Operating Revenues
Community Ammenties
Total Operating Revenues

Profit on Disposal of Assets
Community Ammenties
Total Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Assets

Expenses from Ordinary Activities

Operating Expenses
Governance

Community Ammenties
Other Property and Sevices
Resource Recovery Facility
Total Operating Expenses

Loss on Disposal of Assets
Community Ammenties
Total Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Assets

Borrowing Costs Expense
Community Ammenties

Resource Recovery Facility

Total Borrowing Costs Expense

NET RESULT

Page 192

Adopted
Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual $ Variance % Variance
39,100,140 9,717,476 8,704,565 (1,012,911) -10.42%
39,100,140 9,717,476 8,704,565 (1,012,911) -10.42%
27,800 0 0 0
27,800 0 0 0
149,500 12,000 10,213 1,787 14.89%
19,444,220 4,586,900 3,890,817 696,083 15.18%
1,027,800 413,553 323,745 89,808 21.72%
15,355,000 3,344,588 2,416,261 928,327 27.76%
35,976,520 8,357,041 6,641,037 1,716,004 20.53%
28,700 0 0 0
28,700 0 0 0
880,400 232,400 216,536 15,864 6.83%
536,600 157,901 154,828 3,073 1.95%
1,417,000 390,301 371,364 18,937 4.85%
1,705,720 970,134 1,692,165 722,031 74.43%
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Mindarie Regional Council

Balance Sheet

For the month ended 30 September 2009

Description
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Debtors

Stock

Prepayments

Other Current Assets
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Land
Buildings & Improvements
Furniture & Equipment
Plant & Equipment
Infrastructure - Other
Infrastructure - Excavation
Infrastructure - RRF
Infrastructure - Rehabilitation
Work In Progress - Excavation
Work In Progress - Other
Other Non Current Assets
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors
Provisions
Loans Leases Overdrafts
Accruals
Other Current Liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Loans Leases Overdrafts

Other Non Current Liabilities
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Retained Surplus
Reserves

Council Contribution
TOTAL EQUITY

ACTUAL ACTUAL
2009/2010 Movement 2008/2009
808,890 663,197 145,693
10,304,386 (1,009,789) 11,314,175
3,645,794 1,652,983 1,992,811
14,726 5,799 8,927
178,580 (73,882) 252,462
13,674 (625,742) 639,415
14,966,050 612,566 14,353,484
2,658,127 0 2,658,127
1,713,174 (41,061) 1,754,235
271,459 (6,074) 277,533
3,390,353 (171,774) 3,562,127
461,386 (4,887) 466,273
9,072,656 (1,013,550) 10,086,206
8,322,786 107,644 8,215,143
2,320,719 0 2,320,719
11,371,319 1,761,231 9,610,088
8,162 8,162 0
2,066,849 (26,151) 2,093,000
41,656,991 613,540 41,043,451
56,623,042 1,226,106 55,396,935
1,898,542 68,861 1,829,681
510,341 21,715 488,626
1,826,922 (605,804) 2,432,725
1,614,808 (9,821) 1,624,629
0 0 0
5,850,613 (525,049) 6,375,661
19,501,151 0 19,501,151
4,936,000 13,892 4,922,108
24,437,151 13,892 24,423,259
30,287,764 (511,157) 30,798,920
26,335,278 1,737,263 24,598,015
24,007,269 1,692,165 22,315,104
137,999 0 137,999
2,190,010 45,098 2,144,911
26,335,278 1,737,263 24,598,015
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF INVESTING ACTIVITIES
For the month ended 30 September 2009

Description

PLANT, VEHICLES AND MACHINERIES
Plant and Vehicles

Replacement of Operation's Foreman Vehicle
Replacement of Operation's Manager Vehicle
Replacement of Fire Vehicle

Replacement of Executive Vehicle
Replacement of Executive Vehicle
Replacement of Skid Steer Loader No.2
Replace 2x 30m3 Transfer Bins
Replacement of Workshop Vehicle

Vehicle Tray - Welder's Vehicle

New Utility Vehicle-Marketing and Education

Machinery and Equipment

New Tarpomatic System

New LGF Monitoring System

New Paint Can Crusher

Upgrade Recycling Centre Cameras

TOTAL PLANT, VEHICLES AND MACHINERIES

FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

Computer Equipment

Replacement of Laptop (Operations Manager)
Replacement of Desktop PC (Finance Officer-Reporting)
Replacement of Desktop PC (Foreman)

Replacement of Desktop PC (Envrironmental Officer)
Replacement of Laptop (Administration Manager)
Replacement of Laptop (Waste Education Officer)
Various Replacement Printers and Computing Equipments
New Desktop PC (Finance Officer-Accts Payable)
Additional UPS System (Admin and Recycling)

Office Furniture and Equipment
Replacement of Furniture and Equipment
Purchase of New Office Equipment

3x Storage Cabinets

TOTAL FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

LAND AND BUILDINGS

Land

brought forward item:

Land Purchase (New Landfill Site)

Buildings

Workshop Extension (Work in Progress)
Ground Maintenance Shed

Chemical Toilet Facilities

TOTAL LAND AND BUILDINGS
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% to Revised

Adopted Budget  YTD Actual Budget
38,500 0
47,900 0
45,500 0
51,000 0
50,000 0
85,000 0
27,000 0
29,500 0
7,000 0
44,000 0
425,400 0 0.00%
240,000 0
20,000 0
30,000 0
7,000 6,480 92.57%
297,000 6,480 2.18%
722,400 6,480 0.90%
3,500 0
1,500 0
1,500 0
1,500 0
2,500 2,149 85.96%
2,500 2,149 85.96%
15,000 5,959 39.72%
1,500 0
2,000 0
31,500 10,257 32.56%
26,400 2,965 11.23%
13,000 0
5,000 2,771 55.42%
44,400 5,736 12.92%
75,900 15,993 21.07%
12,000,000 0
12,000,000 0 0.00%
250,000 0
10,000 0 0.00%
15,000 0
275,000 0 0.00%
12,275,000 0 0.00%
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF INVESTING ACTIVITIES
For the month ended 30 September 2009

Description
INFRASTRUCTURE
Operations

Litter Control Fences (Work in Progress)

Reticulation

Upgrade Recycling Centre Water Main

brought forward item:
Surveillance and Boom Gate

Resource Recovery Facility
Site Infrastructure

TOTAL INFRASTUCTURE

LANDFILL EXCAVATIONS
Excavation - Phase3 Stage2
Construction

Design

Excavation/Earthworks

MRC Project Manager

Siteworks, Survey, Etc.

TOTAL LANDFILL EXCAVATIONS
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% to Revised

Adopted Budget  YTD Actual Budget
75,000 8,162 10.88%
7,000 0
10,000 0
15,000 11,780 78.53%
107,000 19,942 18.64%
829,000 215,143
829,000 215,143 25.95%
936,000 235,085 25.12%
8,208,700 0
300,000 57,914
7,720,000 1,694,115
40,000 2,313
20,000 6,890
16,288,700 1,761,231 10.81%
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ATTACHMENT TWO
TOITEM 8.2.1
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
10 DECEMBER 2009

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
31 OCTOBER 2009
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FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

FOR THE MONTH ENDED
31 OCTOBER 2009
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Description
Revenue form Ordinary Activities
User Charges
User Charges - City of Perth
User Charges - City of Waneroo
User Charges - City of Joondalup
User Charges - City of Stirling
User Charges - Town of Cambridge
User Charges - Town of Vincent
User Charges - Town of Victoria Park
User Charges - RRF Residues
Total Member User Charges
User Charges - City of South Perth
User Charges - Casual Tipping Fees
Total User Charges
Service Charges
Sale of Recyclable Materials
Sale of Limestone
Gas Power Generation Sales
Grants & Subsidies
Contributions, Reimbursments & Donations
Interest Earnings
Other Revenue

Expenses from Ordinary Activities
Employee Costs
Materials and Contracts
Consultants and Contract Labour
Communications and Public Consultation
Landfill Expenses
Office Expenses
Information Systems
Building Maintenance
Plant and Equipment Operating and Hire
RRF Operations
Waste Minimisation
Utilities
Depreciation
Borrowing Cost Expenses
Insurance
DEP Landfill Levy
Land Lease/Rental
Other Expenditure
Member Costs
Administration
Amortisation (LandFill)
Amortisation (RRF)

Profit on Sale of Assets
Loss on Sale of Assets

Changes in Net Assets Resulting from Operations
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Mindarie Regional Council
INCOME STATEMENT BY NATURE AND TYPE
For the month ended 31 October 2009

Adopted
Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual $ Variance % Variance
1,930,400 643,468 584,807
7,570,900 2,523,632 2,543,119
7,418,100 2,472,700 2,344,908
8,376,000 2,792,000 2,596,792
1,224,000 408,000 403,074
1,687,800 562,600 488,333
1,728,200 576,068 507,697
1,980,000 660,000 481,412
31,915,400 10,638,468 9,950,141 (688,327) -6.47%
337,100 112,368 13,237 (99,131) -88.22%
5,018,140 1,672,712 1,477,948 (194,764) -11.64%
37,270,640 12,423,548 11,441,326 (982,222) -7.91%
240,000 80,000 209,119 129,119 161.40%
550,000 86,000 85,117 (883)
320,000 80,000 80,000 0 0.00%
340,100 114,004 72,037 (41,967) -36.81%
369,200 123,068 147,784 24,716 20.08%
10,200 2,568 66,407 63,839 2485.94%
39,100,140 12,909,188 12,101,790 (807,398) -6.25%
4,300,140 1,630,459 1,458,764 171,695 10.53%
804,600 241,268 229,140 12,128 5.03%
722,800 256,288 121,499 134,789 52.59%
1,057,400 318,078 313,254 4,824 1.52%
259,500 112,104 90,157 21,947 19.58%
399,300 187,800 89,267 98,533 52.47%
129,200 61,432 34,791 26,641 43.37%
1,027,800 481,804 459,086 22,718 4.72%
15,355,000 4,621,673 3,624,845 996,828 21.57%
316,000 127,503 120,864 6,639 5.21%
131,300 101,768 55,367 46,401 45.60%
1,159,080 386,364 344,471 41,893 10.84%
1,417,000 509,568 479,977 29,591 5.81%
127,400 127,400 139,436 (12,036) -9.45%
4,699,700 626,600 727,211 (100,611) -16.06%
590,000 189,668 189,677 9) 0.00%
149,500 16,000 10,213 5,787 36.17%
159,000 59,671 65,341 (5,670) -9.50%
4,054,200 1,351,400 1,351,400 0 0.00%
534,600 178,200 178,200 0 0.00%
0 0 0
37,393,520 11,585,048 10,082,962 1,502,086 12.97%
27,800 0 0 0 0.00%
28,700 0 0 0 0.00%
(900) 0 0 0 0.00%
1,705,720 1,324,140 2,018,828 694,688 52.46%

ITEM 8.2.1

Note

N



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

Page 200

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

NOTES FOR VARIATIONS - INCOME STATEMENT BY NATURE AND TYPE

Note #  Description of Item

1 Total Member User Charges

2 User Charges - City of South Perth

3 User Charges - Casual Tipping Fees

4 Contributions, Reimbursements & Donations

5 Insurance

6 DEP Landfill Levy

Nature of Variance where actual is 10% and $5,000 from YTD Budget
The drop in revenue is due to the decrease in tonnages from all the Member Councils
which is mainly related to seasonal factors.

City of South Perth has gone for a tender and they are sending their waste to a
commercial landfill.

The drop is mainly attributable to the increase in fees as well as seasonal factors.
The drop in revenue is due to the fact that Tox Free invoices are now directly sent to
WALGA for payment. The hazardous waste at Mindarie Regional Council is collected by

Tox Free. WALGA has government funding for this cost.

The higher cost of insurance premium over the budget is due to the replacement of
TANA G400 to Bomag Compactor which attracted a higher premium.

The increased levy cost is due to higher tonnages going to landfill as a result of RRF
Facility not operating at full capacity.
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Mindarie Regional Council

INCOME STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT
For the month ended 31 October 2009

Description
Revenues from Ordinary Activities

Operating Revenues
Community Ammenties
Total Operating Revenues

Profit on Disposal of Assets
Community Ammenties
Total Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Assets

Expenses from Ordinary Activities

Operating Expenses
Governance

Community Ammenties
Other Property and Sevices
Resource Recovery Facility
Total Operating Expenses

Loss on Disposal of Assets
Community Ammenties
Total Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Assets

Borrowing Costs Expense
Community Ammenties

Resource Recovery Facility

Total Borrowing Costs Expense

NET RESULT
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Adopted
Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual $ Variance % Variance
39,100,140 12,909,188 12,101,790 (807,398) -6.25%
39,100,140 12,909,188 12,101,790 (807,398) -6.25%
27,800 0 0 0
27,800 0 0 0
149,500 16,000 10,213 5,787 36.17%
19,444,220 5,956,003 5,521,896 434,107 7.29%
1,027,800 481,804 446,031 35,773 7.42%
15,355,000 4,621,673 3,624,845 996,828 21.57%
35,976,520 11,075,480 9,602,985 1,472,495 13.30%
28,700 0 0 0
28,700 0 0 0
880,400 308,700 282,336 26,364 8.54%
536,600 200,868 197,641 3,227 1.61%
1,417,000 509,568 479,977 29,591 5.81%
1,705,720 1,324,140 2,018,828 694,688 52.46%
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Mindarie Regional Council

Balance Sheet

For the month ended 31 October 2009

Description
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Debtors

Stock

Prepayments

Other Current Assets
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Land
Buildings & Improvements
Furniture & Equipment
Plant & Equipment
Infrastructure - Other
Infrastructure - Excavation
Infrastructure - RRF
Infrastructure - Rehabilitation
Work In Progress - Excavation
Work In Progress - Other
Other Non Current Assets
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors
Provisions
Loans Leases Overdrafts
Accruals
Other Current Liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Loans Leases Overdrafts

Other Non Current Liabilities
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Retained Surplus
Reserves

Council Contribution
TOTAL EQUITY

ACTUAL ACTUAL
2009/2010 Movement 2008/2009
1,719,527 1,573,834 145,693
10,304,386 (1,009,789) 11,314,175
3,430,540 1,437,729 1,992,811
9,800 873 8,927
124,367 (128,095) 252,462
281,636 (357,780) 639,415
15,870,255 1,516,771 14,353,484
2,658,127 0 2,658,127
1,699,487 (54,748) 1,754,235
268,791 (8,742) 277,533
3,353,276 (208,850) 3,562,127
457,732 (8,540) 466,273
8,734,806 (1,351,400) 10,086,206
8,438,094 222,951 8,215,143
2,320,719 0 2,320,719
11,843,129 2,233,042 9,610,088
8,162 8,162 0
2,058,132 (34,868) 2,093,000
41,840,457 797,006 41,043,451
57,710,712 2,313,777 55,396,935
3,907,951 2,078,270 1,829,681
514,135 25,508 488,626
1,772,923 (659,802) 2,432,725
413,199 (1,211,429) 1,624,629
0 0 0
6,608,208 232,547 6,375,661
19,501,151 0 19,501,151
4,939,412 17,304 4,922,108
24,440,563 17,304 24,423,259
31,048,771 249,850 30,798,920
26,661,941 2,063,927 24,598,015
24,333,933 2,018,828 22,315,104
137,999 0 137,999
2,190,010 45,098 2,144,911
26,661,941 2,063,927 24,598,015
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF INVESTING ACTIVITIES
For the month ended 31 October 2009

Page 203

% to Revised

Description Adopted Budget  YTD Actual Budget
PLANT, VEHICLES AND MACHINERIES
Plant and Vehicles
Replacement of Operation's Foreman Vehicle 38,500 0
Replacement of Operation's Manager Vehicle 47,900 0
Replacement of Fire Vehicle 45,500 0
Replacement of Executive Vehicle 51,000 0
Replacement of Executive Vehicle 50,000 0
Replacement of Skid Steer Loader No.2 85,000 0
Replace 2x 30m3 Transfer Bins 27,000 22,560 83.56%
Replacement of Workshop Vehicle 29,500 0
Vehicle Tray - Welder's Vehicle 7,000 0
New Utility Vehicle-Marketing and Education 44,000 0
425,400 22,560 5.30%
Machinery and Equipment
New Tarpomatic System 240,000 0
New LGF Monitoring System 20,000 0
New Paint Can Crusher 30,000 0
Upgrade Recycling Centre Cameras 7,000 6,480 92.57%
297,000 6,480 2.18%
TOTAL PLANT, VEHICLES AND MACHINERIES 722,400 29,040 4.02%
FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT
Computer Equipment
Replacement of Laptop (Operations Manager) 3,500 0
Replacement of Desktop PC (Finance Officer-Reporting) 1,500 0
Replacement of Desktop PC (Foreman) 1,500 864 57.59%
Replacement of Desktop PC (Envrironmental Officer) 1,500 0
Replacement of Laptop (Administration Manager) 2,500 2,149 85.96%
Replacement of Laptop (Waste Education Officer) 2,500 2,149 85.96%
Various Replacement Printers and Computing Equipments 15,000 7,106 47.37%
New Desktop PC (Finance Officer-Accts Payable) 1,500 0
Additional UPS System (Admin and Recycling) 2,000 0
31,500 12,268 38.95%
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MINDARIE REGIONAL COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF INVESTING ACTIVITIES

For the month ended 31 October 2009

Description

Office Furniture and Equipment
Replacement of Furniture and Equipment
Purchase of New Office Equipment

3x Storage Cabinets

TOTAL FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

LAND AND BUILDINGS

Land

brought forward item:

Land Purchase (New Landfill Site)

Buildings

Workshop Extension (Work in Progress)
Ground Maintenance Shed

Chemical Toilet Facilities

TOTAL LAND AND BUILDINGS

INFRASTRUCTURE

Operations

Litter Control Fences (Work in Progress)
Reticulation

Upgrade Recycling Centre Water Main
brought forward item:

Surveillance and Boom Gate

Resource Recovery Facility
Site Infrastructure

TOTAL INFRASTUCTURE

LANDFILL EXCAVATIONS
Excavation - Phase3 Stage2
Construction

Design

Excavation/Earthworks

MRC Project Manager

Siteworks, Survey, Etc.

TOTAL LANDFILL EXCAVATIONS
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% to Revised

Adopted Budget  YTD Actual Budget
26,400 5,731 21.71%
13,000 0

5,000 2,771 55.42%
44,400 8,502 19.15%
75,900 20,771 27.37%

12,000,000 0
12,000,000 0 0.00%
250,000 0
10,000 0
15,000 0
275,000 0 0.00%
12,275,000 0 0.00%
75,000 8,162 10.88%

7,000 0
10,000 0
15,000 13,780 91.87%

107,000 21,942 20.51%
829,000 366,283 44.18%
829,000 366,283 44.18%
936,000 388,225 41.48%
8,208,700 0
300,000 79,244
7,720,000 2,143,908
40,000 3,000
20,000 6,890
16,288,700 2,233,042 13.71%
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ITEM 8.2.2 LIST OF PAYMENTS MADE FOR THE MONTHS ENDED
30 SEPTEMBER 2009 AND 31 OCTOBER 2009

File No: FIN/5-02 (D/09/6551)

Attachment(s): 1. List of payments made for the month ended 30 September 2009
2. List of payments made for the month ended 31 October 2009

Author: Kalwant Dhillon

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide details of payments made during the periods
identified. It is also a requirement as part of the delegation given to the Chief Executive
Officer, to make payments from the Municipal Fund, that a list of payments made since
the last Ordinary Council meeting be presented to Council.

COMMENT

The lists of payments for the months ended 30 September 2009 and 31 October 2009 are
at Attachment One and Two to this Item and are presented for endorsement. Payments
have been made in accordance with delegations that allow payments between meetings
and are subsequently required to be presented to the next Council meeting following such
payments. Further, at the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 23 October 2008, the Council
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer the exercise of its power to make payments from
the Municipal Fund. This delegation has been renewed upon annual reviews. In order to
satisfy the requirements of Clause 13(2) of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations, a list of payments made must be submitted to the next Council
meeting following such payments.

It should be noted that generally all payments are GST inclusive and Mindarie Regional
Council is able to claim this tax as an input credit when remittance of GST collected is
made each month.

Months Ended Account Vouchers Amount
30 September 2009 | General Municipal | 4307 - 4467
DP 285 — DP 299

EFT 203 - EFT 207 $2,546,369.48
31 October 2009 General Municipal | 4468 - 4638

DP 300 - DP 311

EFT 208 — EFT 210 $2,838,626.06

MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That Council endorse the list of payments made, as per the delegation made to the
Chief Executive Officer, for the months ended 30 September 2009 and 31 October
2009.
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ATTACHMENT ONE
TOITEM 8.2.2
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
10 DECEMBER 2009

LIST OF PAYMENTS MADE FOR THE MONTH ENDED
30 SEPTEMBER 2009
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Page 208

MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

00'v£6$
00'9T0'S$
G2'9€9'T$
98'v€2'88%
09'9¢€$
or'LvES
08'2se'e$
LL6VT'T$
0€'ISV'T$
T.'v06'S$
¥9'8/6'8%
08'v61$
18'502$
1€°0.E'T$
6¥7'000°c$
66°LVE€'T0C$
00°009%
00°'58¢$
09°'€16'G$
00°0v$
0t°'995%
G8'T0L$
00°0£9°c$
00°0%
I'v9¢$
00'TT$
00°009%
00'96T'6$
0t'c0ocs
00'¥STS$
00'6¢v$
00°'895$
€0'eves
00°/8T$
0598.%
05'69¢$
¥1'298'CT$
SrvTT'8%
00'9€T'v$
S'ZeET'CH
unowy anbay)

Sjuswasinquiial ysed Anad

[eAnowal 81eyoea -sis0D allH ue|d

BlUBWISE ‘92UBIBJU0D BISBAA -JUBWASINqWIDY
Buiysnid suolsawi

swJojiun yeis

saoys A1ajes

s99) |eba

1apeo| urela) BN - sdueusuew 7 Jreday
60/L0/12 - 60/T/9T dNsuo abesn 1ajem

sasuadxa Buisnianpy

doysiom Jo Jeal Te adusy Jan

s19A|} 81se/\\ snopiezeH ployasnoH Jo uonnqguisiq
sahiusWly jjels

saoines Bulues|d

9,/emyos dH 404 uoddns [ea1uyda) [enuuy

109l01d z abeis g aseyd Jo 3Jom uoieAeoxy
9J1uaD uoneINP3 - IN0ge| 19eNU0D

9IS Je Bujues|d Mopuipn

slepua|ed abpuy jo Bunuud

S9[OIYaA J0JoW JO ddUBUBUIRI

asnoy s,Jayel a1ed oy sioop abeseh asejday
Buiyio|D 8AdB101d P SWIOHUN Jels
60.1snbny-|udy Bunaaw Alosiape 108lo1d
3INO3HD @ITTIONVD

sasuadx3 auoydaja L

sasuadx3g Buikdoooloyd

a1ua) uoireonp3 Joj Buined youg

[eAOwWal 8yeyaes| J0j YN} Jarem Jo aliH

sJa)ly Jre yonu dwnq - @sueualurew 7 Jreday
[0JU0D 1S8d - @dueuaure Buip|ing

Japeo| Jejjidiare) Joj ssueusiurew % Jreday
weiboid ssau|dMm

loyoedwo) Hewog 10} sia)iH Iy

SjuswpusWe Jauueq 9)SeA\ snopiezeH ployasnoH
uonin -uj/|0au0D-u| ddueuaurew AjYuow
saulydew SOd1-43 Jo sdueuURI

sarel |1ounod dngelaaN 44y

3I0M 1S0dW 09 [Bued 4HY - S9IINISS [eUOISSS)0Id
Ajioey |Iypuel DHIN 4oy dn 81um meT [ed07 - Aoueynsuo)
aJjusD uoneaNnp3 1o spulld

uonduasaqg

[1oUN0D [euolBay allepullN 8vEY
NILNIVIN ® SLINIGVYD MD0d SNNINO Lvey
[1ouUnoY [euolBay allepulN 9veEy

p11 A1d abe|neH xng 1sejhey ever

P17 Aid BXYeA 2Zhey

H399010 YHOM Trey

_m@wn_ 9SNOYPOOM OFEY

p11 Aid oRILSOM BEEY

NOILYHOdHOD H3ALVM 8EEY
UOoI1eId0SSY JUBWUIBA09D [0 VM LEEY
Burousq NCS 9eey

80104RIPaN Tewes Seey

VI YdNS SSOUNIN vEEY

leauser geey

P17 Aid eljesisny pJexoed 119|MaH ZEEY
SpueS UJayInos 1ealo Teey

uslg,0 UBID 0EEY

Buiues|o mopuip [89X3 62V
uofiediunwwod wniqljinb3 gzey

VM THVO UVD LZEY

saljddns Buipjing sbBuluung 9zey
SUD)IY ® Spoomyoe|g SZEY

Al Ald ONILTNSNOD M M tZEY
paj@oued gzey

Vvd1ST3L 22EY

ONIDVINI SSANISNG Id0OIS TZEY
lsidey ozev

NILNIVIN ® SLINIGVYD MD0d SNNINO 6TEY
SY3LTIH ¥V 34Nd 8TEY

ucmemmCm_\/_ 1S9d S1011SsIg UIBYlioON LTEY
S3YAL TVYNOILVYN 9TEY

NOSMHVY1D STT1OVLOAdS LSNC STEY
S317ddNS H3LTIH YIEY

SNOIS IOVHA £TEY

P11 Aid Bunnsuoo aqnd ZIeY

wo) vV puewwo) TIEY

0O0Jauuep\ Jo \S_O OTEY

ali Ald (VM) ONQYVD 60y
Buninsuod MH4A 80eY

Bunrew psoueApy L0cY

aweN Jopusp '

juawnooqg bBunsod anbay)d

6002 Jaqwadad yi0T - Bunasi |1ounod
6002 laquwaidas 10} 1uswAed Jo 8|npayds

600¢/60/TT
600¢/60/6
600¢/60/8
6002/60/¥
600¢/60/€
6002/60/€
600¢/60/€
600¢/60/€
600¢/60/€
6002/60/€
600¢/60/€
600¢/60/€
600¢/60/€
6002/60/€
600¢/60/€
6002/60/€
600¢/60/€
600¢/60/€
600¢/60/€
6002/60/€
600¢/60/€
600¢/60/€
600¢/60/€
600¢/60/€
600¢/60/€
6002/60/€
600¢/60/€
6002/60/€
600¢/60/€
6002/60/€
600¢/60/€
6002/60/€
600¢/60/€
6002/60/€
600¢/60/€
600¢/60/€
600¢/60/€
6002/60/€
600¢/60/€
6002/60/€
aked

ITEM 8.2.2



Page 209

MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

00'6TT$
62'T6T$
09°'S.6$
18'2€2'S$
6.',62%
06'€18'T$
00°€90'9T$
22'225'e9%
00'00T'T$
0T'0LE$
00'96.%
0S'v786'TT$
LEECYS
02'Tve$
v1'€92°C$
00'9TL'T$
00°060°C$
8T'L18'9%
09'80€‘c$
08'9T$
GE'08L'T$
00°'Sv$
9v'8G6'T$
00°'6¢$
85'16.'C$
TS'TIES
9T'9e€$
00'€.8%
06'8817'9%
00°'007$
00°0€€$
28'2¢E$
18'E6'89%
98'Lv.'8$
00'890°C$
00°000'TT$
00'9.T$
G/'€0€$
GL'89T'T$
00°'00Z$
08'STv$
00°'052$
00'99T$
S0'T9%
00'0L€$

suonealgnd/sreaipolad AJYiuow

3onJi dwnp Joj JapuljAd Jy - 8dueusiuew % Jreday
suawasInquial yseo Anad

Juswaaibe ases| Japun sasuadxs Jo JuswasInquiay
s|oo] ajgepuadxy

s|oo] ajgepuadxg

6002 - 92UaIaju0) 3ISLA\ 10} suonensibay
Buiysniy auoisawi

Aoueynsuo) yoddns NIHL

s|00] 9|qepuadxa doysyIop

99U3J3Ju02 600Z D91

aINjonuSelul 44y - S9JIAISS [BUOISS3}0id

UIPI0H - durUSIUrRW % Sileday

s$y)00q puey Aouabiaws % Alajes

1SI98yd aulyoew Joresado

S|00) 8|gepuadxy

anua) uoneonpy

juswabeuew aulagn} % pueysng

S8110SS929® % Joje||giad

Kianijpq auizebe|y » JadedsmaN aosue|y v6EY
P11 Aid VM 8pInbiT 11y €6€Y

[1ounoQ [euolfiay allepulN Z6EY

JUSJUIA JO UMO] T6EY

1931S ®el[eplN 06EY

suoljedlige JeN 68EY

S9IUBJI9JU0D 9l0UAdY 88EY

P11 Aid 9be|neH y|ng i1sejkaM 98ch

S92IAJBS UOlew.ou| JaIndwod G8sY

SUD}Y %® spoomyoe|g ¥8EY

U0I1e120SSY JUBWUIBA09 [8207] Y\ €8SV
SdNn 28y

1awdinb3 pauun I8sYy

ellensny A18100s Buines 8417 [eAoy 8yl 08ey
AHOLOV4 ONILNIYd IHL 6.8V

uewbueH ayl 8Ley

Kioyoeq qundayl /ey

AUIT Hels 9/ey

JONVINGANY NHOC 1S SV

60.AINC -yoeas 3|2IYsA 30110 8j1uewalH ainjoniselju] % Buluue|d jo 1deq vy

1019€11U09 BulpAd8) B1SEMT

9SIn02 Y|| 3Io- - Bulures; yeis
juswdinb3 J8indwo) Jo aseyaind
MH996 1D - 9dueusew 7 Jredey
uonelqifed B a2IAIas abpugybiap
s|00] a|gqepuadx3y

sanuswy jreis

welbold ssau|ldgp

s103lo1d - [eula1x3 Jnoge] 19eu0D
SIno} sng - 81juad uoledINpP3

1apeo| 193ls pis 10} usaIISuUIM ade|day
[eyual sjue|d

109lo0ud z abeis ¢ aseyd o 3Jom uoneAedxy

‘lipioeq dures pue syIom Jaul| Ul an g aseyd T abelS - S80IAIes [euoISsSajoid

Bulohoay ssaimen - S1019eU0D

60/800¢ diysiosuods 108loid yoreasay

|lem uondadal uo obo| pue Buans| |eIsuIey
S10[[19UN0D Yum Bunasw mainay aduewlopad 030 - buueied
Nied ejewe] 1e Buidaams peoy

SIno} sng - 81juad uoledNp3

Aunaas Buipjing Buuonuop - uswAied Agauend
S9[OIYaA J0JoW JO ddUBUBUIRI

sIno} sng - 81juad uoleINp3

abesn se9

Arejes yels wouy apew uononpaq - 0No7 Jeis

dnoio swis SgS €/8v

9JIAIBS mc_r___\/_ SpJeydiy ¢Ley

P11 Aid TT pad TLEV

SIHAL TVYNOILVYN 0OLEY

A3LINIT Od3TOL ¥31LLAN 69EY
SO|qeUSA L ® 1 89g¥

VI YdNS SSOYNIN 298y
NOSMHVY 1D STTOVLOAdS LSNC 99EY
s108loid MI G9EY

Ssauljyodoeo) B sng 1Sap\\ SUOZIIOH #9El
SSV1D 1% H €9¢Y

suapleg Ioopu| pliomusal) Z9cr
Spues ulayinos 1eal9 1oLy

dl1 Ald STLVIDOSSY ¥3A109 09EY
OYN3 6SEY

Ausisniun uemo)d yip3 8sey

SNOIS IOVHA LSEF

mc_\_mymo ulewoq 9GeYy

d33AMS NV3ITD SSeF

S9JIAISS Inajineyd ySeEY

Aid [e211109(3 ® A1un28S 8|1SD £GEY
VM THVO UVD ZSEY

lalreyo sng abpuijeg TSey

SVO VINITV 0SEV

1UN022Y 01107 JeIS [12UN0D [euolfiay slepuliN 6vEY

600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/T¢
6002/60/ST
600¢/60/ST
6002/60/ST
600¢/60/ST
6002/60/ST
600¢/60/ST
6002/60/ST
600¢/60/vT
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/7T
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/vT
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/vT
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/vT
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/7T
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/vT
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/vT
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/vT
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/vT
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/7T
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/vT
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/7T
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/vT
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/vT
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/7T
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/vT
6002/60/7T
600¢/60/TT

ITEM 8.2.2



Page 210

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

09'860'7$
00°L0v$
90'069'6£$
60'9G.'S$
98°'CTIv$
00'8.LE'ST$
0T°022'0T$
00°'082%
00'70T$
00°0%
9L'vL$
V6'61.$
02'GGE'T$
8€'66€'0E$
00'959%
00'vET'vC$
T9'60T'T$
02'9.€$
00'78t7$
0v'€0T$
00'9€.$
08'070'9¢$
00°¢¥S$
09'68.%
ET'TI9%
€517$
28'602'T$
60°L56'7S$
0C'.8€$
00'00S'€T$
18°027'T$
00'2LL'C$
00°20S$
00'.8T$
S.'0LL$
0v'889'C$
877'8€6%$
00'S.Z$
00°0€8%
TV'915%
60'298'T$
00'0T8%
0L°€TS$
ST'8€9%
00'92/.%

Jloresado % J01eARIXT -S1S0D) BlIH ue|d

$19]10] [eualxa Joj adid umopysem Jreday
uoiNQLUIUOI [19UN0I AlosiApe 31sep\ 0T/6002
Juswaaibe ases| Japun sasuadxs Jo JuswasInquiay
sasuadx3 auoydaja

weibold uoireanp3 7 Bunayiey - Jnoge| [eulalx3 19euod
44y Jo AaAIng [elay

3onJy uig oulH Joy Jredas aimound

sasuadx3 piy 1si14

3INO3IHD A3TT1IONVD

sabpeg yeis

sasuadx3 buiAdodoloyd

60.)snbny - aoueualurew B woddns waisAs |eloueulH
ale|sia

salreuoness Jo bunuud

juawdinb3 Jeindwo) Jo aseyaind

sasuadx3 auoydaja

UOI99]|09 |10 BISBAA - J01oBIU0D

sareb Ainoas - asueualurew Buipjing

uonduasgns auoydajay A|yuow

diysiaquiaw yINDT Aiea A - suonduosgns

Buiysniy auoisawi

weibold ssaujlop

6002/80/82 Bunss ov30

Alauonels aoo

99} Alyuow juswabeuew spioday

a1Is ay} 1e 189|101 21ignd Jo} saddns

ubisap g aseyd g abeis - Sa21nI8s [euoISSajold
sabureyd Aianiep % Jaded BuiAdoooloyd

44y e Buluonpuoa 1y - asdueusurew Buipjing
S3[2IYaA 2MISUO 10} SIdYI} |IO - 9durUSIURW 7 Jleday
sassalne - si01oenuo) Buiphoay

eUR] - 9oueUSURW P Jreday

Sjuswipuauwie Jauueq alSe)\ snoplezeH pjoyasnoH
Bulures; siared yues Joy Buusre)

spJeoqdno abelois Jo Alddns

s|oo] ajgepuadxy

S8JJIYDdA BMIS UO SOIpel p[aypueH - 8dueusjurew % Jreday
Buluren yeis

[107%® |and

s|oo] ajgepuadxy

Buiuren yers

eUR] - 9oueUSURW B Jreday

99} UO01199]|09 ysed AYiuo

6002 d2uUalaju0) 3ISBAN 10} S191se09 Jo Alddng

P11 Aid (VM) 811H 1ue|d uls1sep\ 6E1Y
IDIAYIS ONIFANNTd OOYINNVYM 8EVY
UOI11e100SSY JUBWUIBA0D [B207 VM LETY

Jed BIIOIOIA JO UMOL 9EVY

VvH1ST3L SEvY

INIWNIDOVNVIN ANVTIOHTNIN LLONNAS vEPY
SOIHAVYYD AIAHNS €Y

JOIAYTS FHAL ITFONW S.IAILS 2EvY
JONVINGNY NHOC 1S TEbY

paj|@oued 0Evy

S39AV4 404 S.NVAIYIHS 621

ONIDVINI SSANISNG Id0IS 82hy

sueng epuoyy /ey

wnajollad aduel|sy 9¢vy

P17 A1d uswnaY 1ulld SZhy

(VM) V1Vvd 39Vd vy

SNOILVOINNWINOD SNLdO €2vy

710 IAIMNOILYN 22vy

dLl1 Ald NOILVIWOLNY DILANDOVIN TZhY
p11 Aid diodibeiy ozyy

eljeisny siabeue 1UBWUIBA0D [€207 6TYY
p11 A1d abe|neH Xng 1sejhey 8Ty

NOSMHV1D STT1OVLIAdS LSNC LIy

140S3d dN1YANOOC 9TvY

[euolreN 921440 dnjepuoor STy

p17 A1d Bl[elISNy ureiunol uol| yTyy
Q:O_O S10Npo.id uelisu| €Ty

al1 Ald SILVIDOSSY ¥3A109 ZIvy
p17 A1d elfensny xousx Iin4 Ty
ueuood ¥ piod 0Tvv

S317ddNS H3LT14 60v1

DYN3 807

SOIYLO313 NI AINA LovY

SNOIS I9DVHA 907y

@C_._mumo urewoq qovv

Slol”1u| oineq vOvy

SAIUBADD E£OVY

wo) vV puewwod zovy

VM H8QWwayd 10wy

Ald NNFT10YLAd VITVHLISNY XILTVD 00vY
SUDIVY ® SPOOMYJR|] 66EY
chrcwmmcm_\/_ JO 9InlNsuj ueljellsny 86&Y
solnelpAH 1V L6E¥

AYVYNOVINYEY 96EY

SNOILOWOYd MHVINTIV S6EY

600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
6002/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢2/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢2/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢

ITEM 8.2.2



Page 211

MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

0£'98G'/$
0S'Vv1$
TT'198'7$
00°'0ST$
0T'9vE'29$
00°000'v$
8C'68Y7'TT$
0£'€e8'0T$
00°.t0'cS$
00°'0¢$
00°0ST$
00'0L$
09'85$
08'66€$
€9'998%

¥1'60G5'20C'T$
00'819%
9T'vZT'eeS
229TY$
00'G81'€$
00'0LE$
GE'98€'T$
09'282%
LT'L9v$
Zv'60€$
Zv'60€$
T09EL'T$
S0'GTO'TES
LLIVE'YS
LL'9VE'YS
LLIVE'YS
G5'€69'8$
0T'/8E'LT$
LL'9VE'YS
G5'€69'8$
00'82T'L$
06'T9G'€T$
S/'TE0'E8TS
09'2S.%
00'35$
€€',€9%
68'TC6$
08'8T€'C$
0€'T¥9'C$

juswAedal qoT ueo]

994 Buidaay} JunodaYy

294 Aujioe4 ueoT

994 umopmelq ||ig 90T ueoT

juswAedal 90T ueo

JuswAed Ajeal Jrey AljioeH YelpianQ yueq
pred upaid

juswAedal gT ueo

6002 1snbny syg

994 109UU0D gVvN

2T ueo 984 umopumeld ||ig

yueg Yieamuowiwio) Wolj UoewIju09/aredlia) as) Ipny
934 auluO euoneN

abreyo dIOA 18ulau|

60, laquiaidas 1o} Saa} JueydIaN

wniwaid uoienuueladns

wnijwaid uonenuuesadns

wniwaid uonenuueladns

wnijwaid uonenuuesadns

Alefes Jels wouy spew uonanpaq - 0307

wniwaid uonenuueladns

wniwaid uonenuueladns

Arefes Je1s woly apew uononpaq - JuswAed asuemo|y uoddns pjiyd
wniwaid uoienuueladns

wnijwaid uonenuuesadns

juawdinb3 Jjaindwo)

s103l01d - [eula1x3 Jnoge] 19eu0D

60, 1990100 10} SAY UOIWIB\ 8TT 107] 984 aseaT
60, /870100 10} DAY UOIWIB\ 8TT 107] 934 aseaT
60, 1990100 10} DAY UOIWIB\ 8TT 107] 984 aseaT
60, /870100 10} DAY UOIWIB\ 8TT 107] 934 aseaT
60, 1990100 10} SAY UOIWIB\ 8TT 107] 994 aseaT
60, /870100 10} DAY UOIWIB\ 8TT 107] 934 aseaT
60, /990100 10} SAY UOIWIB\ 8TT 107] 984 aseaT
a11uad BulpAoal Joy 1aplodal [eubip eiswed apelbdn
welbold [eluswuUoIIAUT - [BUIBIXS JINOgET JoBU0D
109l0ud z abeis ¢ aseyd o Jom uoneAedxy

geDd [enq eJeneN uessIN 10} saiAL

wuoiun yeis Joy obo| Auedwo)

1ybia14 % abelsod

swJojiun yeis

saolnes [eba

3onJ) dwnp pale|noy - adueuslurew % Jreday

Bl[RIISNY 4O YUeqg Yleamuowwo)
yueg elfelisny [euolyeN
yueq elelisny [euolren
yueg elfelisny [euolyeN
yueq elelisny [euoiren
yueg elfelisny [euolyeN
yueq elelisny [euolren
yueg elfelisny [euolyeN

9214J0 UoneXe] UelRIISNY
yueg elfelisny [euolyeN
yueg elelisny [euolren

BI[RJISNY JO YUeq Yleamuowwo)
yueg elfelisny [euolren

palwi 18Ul
yueg elfelisny [euoiren

sjuawAed anbay) [e1ol

INIHOSLSIM L9t
all Ald NV1d SOTVM 9971

co_uchcm\_mo_:w 1S3 99y

S9JIAISS JUsWalllay wnlwald - SNd0j0l1|0J110d ot
1UN022Y 01107 JelS [12UN0D [euolBay slepuliN €971
AaNN4 ¥3dNS V1S3IH 29ty

VM 10 pun4 soueinsuj yijesH 19y

140ddNS adliHD 091

SNgo 65k

S92IAISS 01]0J110d U0IBISY 8SHY

P11 A1d TT pay LSy

s108(oid MI 9SvY

1USOUIA JO UMOL SSh

Jed BLI01DIA JO UMOL St

abpuqueD Jo umol €Sy

00Jauuep Jo \S_O YASi7a74

Builins jo AD 1SV

yuad 1o A11D 0Svy

dnrepuoor jo AuD 6vv1

uonesliunwwo) @ b::oww 0__mmcw_>_ [8iarard

p11 A1d 1013U0D 3ASH 2Py

Spues uiayinos 1eal ovvy

LH¥VINL ANYCE09 Sty

S3ISIYdYILNT NOLSTAM M B S bbb

dNTVYANOOC - 1SOd VITVH1SNY iy

P11 Aid BYYeA Zhih

_mmon_ 9SNOYPOOM Ty

p11 A1d JeILSOM OvY

66200-dd 600¢/60/0€
86¢00-dd 600¢/60/0€
£6¢00-dd 600¢/60/0€
96¢00-dd 600¢/60/0€
§6200-dd 600¢/60/0€
¥62¢00-dd 6002/60/€C
€6200-dd 600¢/60/T¢
¢6¢00-dd 600¢/60/T¢
16200-dd 600¢/60/8T
062¢00-dd 6002/60/7T
68¢00-dd 600¢/60/ST
88¢00-dd 600¢/60/¢C

£8¢00-dA 600¢/60/T

98¢00-dd 600¢/60/T

§8¢00-dd 600¢/60/T

600¢/60/6¢
600¢/60/6¢
600¢/60/6¢
600¢/60/6¢
600¢/60/6¢
600¢/60/6¢
600¢/60/6¢
600¢/60/6¢
600¢/60/6¢
600¢/60/6¢
6002/60/8¢
600¢/60/8¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
6002/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢2/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢
600¢/60/5¢

ITEM 8.2.2



Page 212

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL

4301440 IAILNDIX3 43IHD

‘JuswAed Joj anp sjunowe ayl pue Builsod

pue ‘suoleindwod ‘sadlid 01 Se pue S89IAISS JO UollIpual ayl pue spoob o 1disdal ayl 0}

se palyIlied AINp usag aAey YdIym pue yiimaiay paiiwgns ate ydiym SadloAul pue s1ayonoa Aq
pauoddns Ajny sI pue pa)2ayd usag sey 600Z J2g0o1d0 Tg UO |[IDUN0D 40 Jaquaw ydea 0} paniwagns
Sem UdIyM dA0Qe Se SIayonoA Bulianod ‘JuawAhed Jo) passed sem Yyoaiym Slunodde Jo 3|Npayds siyl
Hg301440 IAILNDIXF 43I1HO 40 F1VvIIdI11LHd3D

|sv60c'ovs'ze [2101 puelS |
2.°1€8'88T'T$ /0200-143 01 £0200-143
29'220'SST$ 66200-dd 01 §8200-dd
wucw:.;mn_ oluoA29|3
¥1'60G'202'T$ /9% 01 L0SY "ON anbayd
sjuawAed anbayp
sjuawAed Jo 9|npayds Alewwns
|sv69c'avszs [e101 puel |
2.°1€8'88T'T$ sjuswAed |43 [el0L
16'29.'08% Buip|ing anua)d uonednp3 % abpiqubiam 44y - ¢ wre|d 108foid p11 Aid suononnsuod 109 L0200-143 6002/60/62
2€9LL'2v$ Buipjing anua)d uopeonp3 % abpiqubam 44y - € wre|d 108foid p11 Aid suononnsuod 109 90200-143 6002/60/62
10°0€€'288% 44 - S99 S1019BNU0D p11 A1d 020z uoisinolg  S0200-143 6002/60/S2
9/'GGE'T6$ DN sabep s9hojdw3 |joiked  £0Z00-143 6002/60/S2
09'2T9'T6$ DU sobem sahojdw3 |joi1fed  €£0200-143 6002/60/TT
29'220'GST$ s1uswAed 10a41q [e101

ITEM 8.2.2



MINDRIE REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 213
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 10 DECEMBER 2009

ATTACHMENT TWO
TOITEM 8.2.2
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
10 DECEMBER 2009

LIST OF PAYMENTS MADE FOR THE MONTH ENDED
31 OCTOBER 2009
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ITEM 8.2.3 DELEGATED AUTHORITY: 2009/2010 CHRISTMAS/NEW YEAR
RECESS
File No: COR/1 (D/09/6565)

Attachment(s): Nil.

Author: Kathleen Ferridge

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to delegate some powers and duties to the Chief Executive
Officer to deal with urgent items of business, which may arise during the 2009/2010
Christmas/New Year Recess period.

BACKGROUND

The Council will be in recess from its last meeting of the year on 10 December 2009 to the
first meeting for the New Year to be held on 25 February 2010 at the City of Joondalup.

It would therefore be prudent to make arrangements to enable urgent items of business,
which may arise during that period, to be dealt with.

DETAIL

The Local Government Act 1995 details the Council’s ability to delegate some powers and
duties to the Chief Executive Officer. Section 5.42 states:-

“a local government may delegate to the Chief Executive Officer (by absolute
majority) the exercise of any of its powers or the discharge of any of its duties
under this Act other than those referred to in Section 5.43 and this power of
delegation.”

Section 5.43 of the Act specifies those powers and duties unable to be delegated to a
Chief Executive Officer. The Act also states that the delegation may be general or as
otherwise provided in the instrument of delegation.

Accordingly, it is recommended that in accordance with Section 5.42 of the Local
government Act 1995, the Chief Executive Officer be delegated authority to exercise the
powers and duties of the Council, other than those referred to in Section 5.43, during the
Christmas/New Year period for 2009/2010, subject to the following:-

0] in relation to general matters, where the recommendation is for an item of
business of a general nature, a majority of all Elected Members being in
agreement

(i) a report summarising the items of business dealt with by delegated authority
be submitted for information to the next Council meeting

Should any item require an absolute majority of the Council, the requisite level of consent
will, of course, be sought.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

Nil

ITEM 8.2.3
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STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

No unbudgeted expenditure will be incurred unless by an absolute majority decision of the
Council.

MRC OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

That in accordance with Section 5.42 of the Local Government Act 1995, the Chief
Executive Officer be delegated authority by an ABSOLUTE MAJORITY to exercise

the powers and duties of the Council, other than those referred to in Section 5.43 of
the Act from 10 December 2009 to 25 February 2010:

0] in relation to general matters, where the recommendation is for an item of
business of a general nature, a majority of all Elected Members are in
agreement

(i) a report summarising the items of business dealt with by delegated
authority is submitted for information to the Council meeting to be held
on 25 February 2010
VOTING REQUIREMENTS

Absolute Majority
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ITEM 8.2.4 RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY — ISSUES RE REDUCED
AVAILABILITY OF PROCESSING CAPABILITY

File No: WST/119

Attachment(s):

Author: lan Watkins

THIS ITEM IS CONFIDENTIAL, NOT FOR PUBLIC VIEWING.

SEPARATE COVER TO ELECTED MEMBERS
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